
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              July 12, 2022 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 
224 North Edwards 

Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

July 12, 2022 - 8:30 A.M.                             AMENDED 

  
  

1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County 
Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association 
(ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; 
Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. 
County designated representatives – Administrative Officer Leslie Chapman, 
Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy 
Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Health and Human 
Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. 
Individual Board members may participate remotely in accordance with applicable open meeting law 
requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public 
Health orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(CalOSHA).  

The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be 
accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 
205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. 

Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public comment or 
a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in 
writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call 
on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a 
part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              July 12, 2022 

  4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
  

 

  
 

4A. ADDENDUM - Request Board ratify approval and authorization for the Chairperson 
to sign a declaration by the Director of Emergency Services proclaiming the 
existence of a local emergency as a result of the Fairview Fire that ignited Friday, 
July 8, 2022 in the West Bishop area. 

 

  
 

  5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

  6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
  

 

  7. EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION - The Board will recognize employees who 
reached service milestones during the Second Quarter of 2022. 

  
 

  8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Grae Biggs, Office Technician I, Auditor-Controller's Office; and Nolan Ferguson, 
Assistant Engineer, Public Works. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; approval 
recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
  

9. Clerk-Recorder - Elections - Request Board declare elected those persons for each 
election under the County’s jurisdiction, and declare the results of each election 
under its jurisdiction as to each measure voted on at the election, based on the 
certified results as required by law and as specified in the Statement of All Votes 
Cast. 

  
  

10. County Administrator - Request Board approve the Collective Partnership 
Agreement Letter supporting the Community Economic Reslience Fund (CERF) 
proposal for the Eastern Sierra region developed by the Sierra Business Council, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
  

11. County Administrator - Personnel - Request Board approve the  AIG 
Nonstandardized Governmental Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan Adoption Agreement #001 
and authorize the County Administrator or designee  to sign all future plan 
documents. 

  
  

12. County Counsel - Request Board: A) approve Assignment of the Agreement 
between the County of Inyo and Wendel Rosen LLP to Fennemore Wendel LLP, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the transition letter; and B) approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the agreement to extend the term to cover future litigation of the same 
nature. 

  
  

13. County Counsel - Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the 
Board reconsidered the circumstances of the existing State of Emergency issued on 
March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local officials 
continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of 
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in 
person. 

  
  

14. District Attorney - Request Board authorize the District Attorney to sign any 
documentation to accept and utilize the Inyo County Victim/Witness Assistance 
Program Grant (VW21 30 0140) on behalf of the County, including any extensions or 
amendments thereto. 

   
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              July 12, 2022 

 
15. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board ratify and approve 

the agreement between the County of Inyo and the County Medical Services 
Program (CMSP) Governing Board for the provision of the Local Indigent Care Needs 
Implementation Grant Program (LICN), in an amount not to exceed $649,538.00 for 
the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
  

16. Health & Human Services - Social Services - Request Board: A) declare 
Symmetric Solutions, Inc. of Redding, CA a sole-source provider of Homeless 
Information Management System (HMIS) and Coordinated Entry (CE) consultation 
services; B) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Symmetric 
Solutions, Inc. of Redding, CA for the provision of HMIS and CE consulting services 
in an amount not to exceed $33,600.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget; 
and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

  
17. County Administrator - Request Board discuss and consider directing staff to: 

A) Obtain a letter of permission from LADWP to maintain property adjacent to 
Mendenhall Park in Big Pine that was leased and maintained by the Big Pine 
School until recently; and/or 

B) Work with LADWP to secure a long-term right to operate and maintain the 
park area, including the currently leased area known as Mendenhall Park and 
the property historically leased by Big Pine School; or 

C) Notify LADWP that the County desires to continue to operate and maintain 
Mendenhall Park, which is currently in a hold-over lease status, without 
assuming responsibility for the additional property. 

  
  

18. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board review 
and provide input on a proposed Request for Proposals for Inyo County Film 
Commissioner services, and direct staff to release the RFP. 

  
  

19. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of July 5, 2022. 

  
 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  

  
 

  20. Southern Inyo Healthcare District - Request to consolidate the Healthcare District 
election of directors with the Statewide General Election to be held on November 8, 
2022, pursuant to SIHD Resolution No. 22-7 and Election Code section 10403. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  21. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited) 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Mikaela Torres 
  
SUBJECT:  Confirmation of Local Emergency Declaration 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
4A. ADDENDUM - Request Board approve Resolution No. 2022-24 titled, A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors for the County of Inyo, State of California, Ratifying the Existence of a Local Emergency and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Your Board is asked to ratify the Director of Emergency Service's declaration of a local emergency, and also find 
that conditions of extreme peril did warrant and necessitate the proclamation. This can be accomplished by 
approving Resolution No. 2022-24, titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors for the County of Inyo, State 
of California, Confirming the Existence of a Local Emergency." 
 
On July 8, 2022 at around 3:02 p.m., the County experienced a devastating fire in West Bishop. The event 
appears to have started as a structural fire, which rapidly spread to additional structures and a wildfire. The 
Bishop Fire Protection District assumed incident command in response to the event. A state of local emergency 
was proclaimed by the Director of Emergency Services at 5:02 p.m. 
 
Under the State Emergency Services Act and the County's local implementing ordinance, proclaiming a state of 
local emergency when a crisis situation exists provides emergency powers and authorities to the County and 
provides some additional liability protections for the County. In many cases, this local proclamation is also the 
first step in seeking State and Federal proclamations that provide for reimbursement and other financial 
assistance. 
 
Government Code Section 8630 requires that a proclamation of a state of local emergency that is made by the 
Director of Emergency Services, rather than the Board of Supervisors, must be confirmed by a Resolution of the 
Board of Supervisors within seven (7) days of the proclamation. The proclamation was issued by the County 
Administrative Officer as the Director of Emergency Services on July 8, 2022. Unless the Board of Supervisors 
adopts a Resolution confirming the state of local emergency by July 15, 2022, the state of local emergency will 
terminate. Because proclaiming a state of local emergency provides extraordinary powers to the County, if 
confirmed by the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Supervisors must re-confirm the state of local emergency 
every 60 days thereafter. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
County Counsel 
  
FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 2022-24 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/11/2022 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 7/11/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 7/11/2022 



County of Inyo
Proclamation of Local Emergency - Confirmation

July 12, 2022
Page 1 of 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

RATIFYING THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 8630, and Section 2.56.060 of the Inyo County Code empowers 
the Director of Emergency Services to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local 
emergency when the County Board of Supervisors is not in session and Inyo County is threatened or 
likely to be threatened by the conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and 
property that are or are likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and 
facilities of this County. Subject to the ratification by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors; and,

WHEREAS, conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen within the 
county, caused by a structural fire and subsequent wildfire, commencing on July 8, 2022, at which time 
the Board of Supervisors was not in session; and,

WHEREAS, the Director of Emergency Services did proclaim the existence of a local emergency 
within the county on July 8, 2022, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Attachment A.

WHEREAS, said Board of Supervisors does hereby find that the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril 
did warrant and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the proclamation of a local 
emergency by the Director of Emergency Services of the Inyo County is hereby ratified, and that said 
local emergency shall be deemed to continue to exist until its termination is proclaimed by the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California.  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of _______, _______, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo:

AYES:  
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
                                                                     __________________________________________
                                                    Chair
                                                                      Inyo County Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:
Leslie L. Chapman, Clerk of the Board

By: ________________________________
Assistant Clerk of the Board

                                                                    



COUNTY OF INYO 
 
 

  PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT 
 P. O. Box 249, Independence, California 93526 
 760-878-0377   
 760-878-0465 (Fax)                                         
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Department Heads 
 
From:    Denelle Carrington, Senior Budget Analyst 
 
Date:  June 24, 2022 
 
Re:  Employee Service Awards for 2nd Quarter 2022 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following employees will be recognized for their service to the County of Inyo, at the 
Board of Supervisors Meeting on Tuesday, July 12th at 10:00 am. Please invite your 
employees to attend the Board of Supervisors meeting (in person) to be recognized.  
 

Name 
Hire Date Years of 

Service 
Department 
Head 

Joey Peterson 05/16/07 15 Marilyn Mann 
Tim Villanueva 05/16/12 10 Marilyn Mann 
Jamie Shannon 05/18/17 5 Marilyn Mann 
Brandon Nelson 05/01/12 10 Mike Errante 
Cap Aubrey 05/16/12 10 Mike Errante 
John Pinckney 06/29/17 5 Mike Errante 
David Miller 04/04/07 15 Nate Reade 
Scott Armstrong 05/04/17 5 Leslie Chapman 

 

 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Clerk-Recorder - Elections 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Danielle Sexton 
  
SUBJECT:  Statement of All Votes Cast 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board declare elected those persons for each election under the County’s jurisdiction, and declare the 
results of each election under its jurisdiction as to each measure voted on at the election, based on the certified 
results as required by law and as specified in the Statement of All Votes Cast. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
"The elections official shall prepare a certified statement of the results of the election and submit it to the 
governing body within 30 days of the election..." (Elections Code Section 15372) 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board alternatively may choose not to issue an order to accept the Statement of All Votes Cast, which would 
be contradictory to Elections Code Section 15400.  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  
FINANCING: 
No impact. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Certification of the Results of the Canvass 
2. Statement of All Votes Cast Letter to Board  
3. Statement of Votes Cast 
  
APPROVALS: 
Danielle Sexton Created/Initiated - 6/21/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/22/2022 
Danielle Sexton Approved - 7/6/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/7/2022 
Keri Oney Approved - 7/7/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 7/7/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 7/7/2022 
John Vallejo 

 



CnnrrrrcATroN oF
Couxry Cmnx/RncrsrRAR or VoTERS oF THE

Rnsur,rs oF THE C.tNvnss
oF THE Jurvrc 7 12022,
Pnrnnany Er,ncrloN

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF rnyo

ss.

I,
of lnyo

Danielle Sexton County Clerk/Registrar of Voters of County
do hereby certify that, in pursuance of the provisions of Elections Code

section 15300, et seq., I did canvass the results of the votes cast inthe Primary Election held in said
County on June 7,2U2, for measures and contests that were submitted to the vote of the voters, and
that the Statement of Votes Cast, to which this certificate is attached is fu[ true, andcorrect.

I hereby set my hand and official ssal fl1i5 7th day of .lrty , 2022, atthe
County qf lnyo

County Clerk/Registrar Voters
County of lnyo

State of Califomia

Canvass Certification of Elections Official
(6/2022)



Clerk-Recorder/Elections Office 
County of Inyo 
Danielle M Sexton 

Clerk-Recorder, Registrar of Voters 

July 7, 2022 

Honorable Members of the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
P.O. Drawer N 
Independence.CA 93526 

P. 0. Drawer F • 168 N. Edwards St • Independence, CA 93526
Tel: (760) 878-0224 • Fax (760) 878-1805 

https://www.inyocounty.us/services/clerk-recorder 
https :// elections. inyocounty. us/ 

RE: Statement of All Votes Cast at the June 7th
, 2022 Primary Election 

Dear Members of the Board: 

In accordance with the requirements of Election Code Section 15372, attached is a 
certified Statement of all Votes Cast in the Primary Election held June 7th

, 2022. In 
accordance with Section 15400 of the Elections Code, your Board must now 
declare elected those persons for each election under the County's jurisdiction, 
and declare the results of each election under its jurisdiction as to each 
measure voted at the election, based on the certified results as required by 
law and as specified in the Statement of All Votes Cast.

COUNTY 

COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

Barry D. Simpson (3,890 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

SUPERVISOR - 1 ST DISTRICT 

Carl Hoelscher (388 Votes)- 29.82% 
Jeff Gabriel (494 Votes)- 37.97% 
Trina Orrill (419 Votes)- 32.21% 

SUPERVISOR - 3RD DISTRICT 

David J. Lent (161 Votes)- 13.43% 
Todd Vogel (273 Votes)- 22.77% 
Kody Jaeger (288 Votes)- 24.02% 
Scott E. Marcellin (477 Votes)- 39.78% 



ASSESSOR 

Dave Stottlemyre (4,246 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

AUDITOR 

Amy Shepherd (4,205 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

CORONER 

Jason E. Molinar (4,285 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

COUNTY CLERK-RECORDER 

Danielle Sexton (4,307 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 

Thomas L. Hardy ( 4, 111 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR 

Patricia Barton (4,099 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

SHERIFF 

Eric Pritchard (1,919 Votes)- 34.45% 
Stephanie Rennie (1,722 Votes)- 30.91 % 
Joe Vetter (1,602 Votes)- 28.76% 
Kelvin Johnston (328 Votes)- 5.89% 

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 

Alisha McMurtrie (4,239 Votes)- 100% Declare Elected 

Following the Board declare elected those offices under their jurisdiction for this 
election, the Clerk's Office will issue the required Certificates of Election and Nomination 
pursuant to Elections Code §15401 . 

.c.::"-._+ffl�ITFe Se 

Inyo County Clerk/Recorder and 
Registrar of Voters 



Page: 1 of 53 

Precinct 

Countywide 

Electionwide 

101 

102 

103 

104 

105 

106 

107 

108 

109 

110 

111 

112 

113 

114 

115 

116 

117 

118 

119 

Electionwide - Total 

Cumulative 

Cumulative 

Cumulative - Total 

Registered 

Voters 

999 

1,329 

0 

26 

1,004 

1,012 

8 

440 

944 

877 

617 

432 

47 

1,099 

83 

412 

996 

264 

266 

10,855 

0 

0 

Statement of Votes Cast 

Statewide Direct Primary Election 

Inyo 

June 07, 2022 

SOVC for: All Contests, All Districts, All Counting Groups 

Voters Cast % Turnout 

583 58.36% 

792 59.59% 

0 N/A 

19 73.08% 

488 48.61% 

447 44.17% 

9 112.50% 

273 62.05% 

641 67.90% 

318 36.26% 

332 53.81% 

269 62.27% 

28 59.57% 

569 51.77% 

34 40.96% 

233 56.55% 

491 49.30% 

141 53.41% 

121 45.49% 

5,788 53.32% 

0 N/A 

0 N/A 

7/6/2022 3:13:58 PM 



Page: 2 of 53

Precinct

Countywide - Total

Registered

Voters

10,855

Vote6 Cast

5,788

% Turnout

53.32o/o

7/612022 3:13:58 PM



Page: 3 of 53

Governor (Vote for r) **** - Insufficient Turnout to Protect Voter Priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

U
U51
etu<^OJo-u!d
d.V2rh=

d.u(,
tU
6)-u4< u.l

.!J6-u!:o->hz

c)
o-
0)

o

o
otq,
!c
l

!
E9.
o;ood>

6U
0,
E't:Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

1iB

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

583

792

0

19

4BB

447

9

273

b4 I

318

332

269

fo

569

34

l)2

491

141

121

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

bt/

432

47

1,099

o5

412

996

264

266

10,855

16

31

0

0

19

10

7

14

2

10

0

11

0

6

10

J

2

159

1

1

0

0

3

1

B

4

0

0

2

2

0

0

0

0

1

I

5

'1

1

0

6

0

1

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

ttb

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

15

32

0

0

tb

B

7

21

0

5

11

3

17

2

2

16

2

4

tbl

2.68%

4.23o/o

0.18o/o

0.13o/o

0.00o/o

3.43o/o

'Tl:
2.640/o

3.35o/o'

0.00o/o,

1.52o/o

4.260/o

10.71o/o

3,08%

5.880/o

0.88"/o

3.33o/o

1.45"/o

3.360/o

2.BBo/o

0.000/o

0.64o/o

,ril:

0.00%

0.160/o

0.34o/o

0.30o/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.18o/o

0.00o/o

0.440/o

0.21%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.21o/o

00

0

34

00

0

0

0

0

0

159

0

0

10,855

0

12

0

0

5,788 34 161 2.880/" 12 0.21o/o



Page: 4 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

llCr

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

L/\z
=)o
U
du
I^tza*
+o

z
=Jo
\J
z
=^-tL
>Uhs

vz
z
:E
(9
6;e<z

*U
d.U

olooozol

=efte-*Fg5

d
oFd
oth
U
z^
7d-
=uY4

CL
CLz

lzu
u
Fuz
E
d

3=Oirn
d-^d

eF?s

71612022 3:13:58 PM

0.72o/o

0.53o/o

4

4

0

1

5

2

0

0

0

0

2

)

0

0

0

1

3

5

0

1

2

0

0

2

2

0.18o/"

0.260/o

0.00%

0.430/o

0.460/o

0.000/o

0.16o/o

0.34o/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.720/o

0.007o

0.00%

0.00%

0.72o/o

0.00%

0.250/o

7

0.54o/o

0.66o/o

5.260/o

1.50o/o

2.76o/o

1.89"/"

0.160/o

0.68o/o

1.52o/o

3.100/o

0.00%

0.720/o

5.BBo/o

1.77%

1.670/o

2.17o/o

5.88o/o

1.38o/o

0.360/o

0.40o/o

1

1

0

0

1

3

1

1

12

0

0

0

3

0

0

5

0

0

28

0.18o/o

O.13o/"

0.18o/o

0.00%

43

46

0

3

1E

27

14

36

10

1B

23

0

3B

3

17

31

IJ

11

3sB

0

7.690/o

6.08o/o

12

0

0

9 0.160/"

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.23o/o

0.38o/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.000/o

0.000/o

0.36%

2s4%

O.BB%

0.21o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.23o/o

0.00%

0.21%

0.69o/o

0.38o/o

0.160/o

4.05o/o

0.00o/o

0.000/o

0.00o/o

0.54o/o

0.00%

0.00%

1.04o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.50o/o

0.00%

0.21o/o

0.00%

0.75o/o

0.00%

0.340/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.360/o

0.00%

0.44o/o

0.210/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.160/o

15.79o/o

5.35o/o

6.21o/o

5.28o/o

5.75o/o

3.38o/o

5.47o/o

8.910/o

0.00%

6.88/o

8.820/o

7.520/"

6.460/o

9.42o/o

9.24o/"

6.40o/o

5.26o/o

1.07o/o

oo!.':

0.38o/o

0.48o/o

1.35o/o

0.91o/"

0.00%

0.00%

0.18o/o

0.00%

0.44o/o

0.420/o

0.000/o

0.00%

0.55o/o

0

1

1

0

0

0

4

0

0

0

1

0

14

3

4

3

0

0

1

0

1

2

0

0

31

2

0

1

0

0

0

2

0

1

1

0

0

9

0

0

0

0

2

2

0

5

1

2

5

B

0

4

2

4

B

3

7

77 13

0000

0

0

0

0 0

14 0.25o/o 77 1.38o/o 13 0.23% 28 0.500/o 358 6.400/o 31 0.55%



Page: 5 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

oz
N

J
o^
>d
AE,

U
J
u
d

)x^
=ldZ Uqvs

Vz
N
4
Joi-<f,tz
6=

v
U
N
0^o$
ue
J=

acN

=B5e6

z
\Zz
I

(,t
Ec.-w7tn=

!zoI
4<t)t^+<-;
ess

1

2

0

0

11

4

2

1

5

2

0

0

4

o'

1

4

0

1

50

0.18o/o

0.260/o

0.00o/o

2.360/o

0.92o/o

0.75o/o

0.160/o

1.690/o

0.61%

0.00o/o

0.000/o

0.72o/o

0.00%

0.44o/o

0.83%

0.00%

0.84o/o

0.680/o

15

21

0

1

1B

17

9

34

7

B

10

0

20

1

13

10

6

2

193

0

2.68o/o

2.77o/o

0.00%

0.260/o

tt
to

0

0

10

10

15

24

7

14

13

4

20

0

6

B

3

2

182

3.040/o

3.70o/o

14

2

0

0

7

..:.

6

14

6

2

3

0

10

0

1

6

1

1

2.50%

0,26%

0

2

0

0

1

0

0

1

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

5

0

0

4

1B

0

B

4

3

4

0

6

0

1

4

0

4

66

1

1

0

0

0

0

1

1

1

0

1

0

0

0

2

0

0

9

0.18o/"

0.13o/o

0.00o/o

0.000/"

0.00%

0.38o/o

0.160/o

0.34o/o

0.00o/o

0.39o/o

0.00o/o

0.18o/"

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.42o/o

0.00o/o

0.000/o

0.16o/o

0.89o/o

0.66o/"

0.00%

0.860/o

4.14o/o

0.00%

1.28%

1.35o/o

0.91o/o

1.55o/o

0.00%

1.09o/o

0.00%

0.44o/o

0.83o/o

0.000/o

3.36o/o

1.18o/o

5.26o/o

3.85o/o

3.91%

3.40o/o

5.43o/o

2.36o/o

2.430/o

3.BB%

0.00o/o

3.62o/o

2.94o/o

5.750/o

2.08%

4.35o/o

1.680/o

3.45o/"

0.00%

2.14o/o

2.300/o

5.66o/o

3.83o/o

2.36o/o

4.260/o

5.04o/o

14.290/o

3.62o/o

0.00%

2.650/o

1.67o/o

2.17o/o

1.680/o

3.25%

0.00%

1.50o/o

0.92o/o

2.260/o

2.24%:

2.03o/"

0.61o/o:

1.16%:

0.00%'

1.81o/o

0.00%:

0.44o/o'

1.25o/o

0.72o/o

0.84o/o

1.38o/o:

5

0.000/"

0.21o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.160/o

0.680/o

0.00o/o

0.007o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.000/o

0.0070

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.11o/o

0

0

00

0

0

0

9

0

0

0

0

6 0.110/0

0

38 0.68% 0.16% 66 1.18o/o 1 93 , 3.450/o 182 3.250/o 77 1.38o/o



Page: 6 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

I lt)

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

grz
o
ZC
9e

6

=J

=d.o^
-d<u
>e_

LJ

u&FzU
rE4uoo

u
J
I
o
z^<o-
EU.

=Liz
F<dsu=^
cojd
a'\uu&zq

o

=t+Jz
z^

6a

<=
o;)&{u^Zoo-ozu-d<9

71612022 3:13:58 PM

0.540/o

0.40o/"

11

9

0

0

10

4

3

11

)

5

)

0

9

0

3

12

2

0

B6

1.970/o

1.19o/o

202

297

0

4

198

218

109

184

175

151

7B

7

231

17

96

197

56

64

2,284

36.140/o

39.23o/o

13

1B

0

0

9

7

10

21

4

4

15

0

3

0

2

13

7

1

127

2.33o/o

2.38o/o

0.00%

1.93o/o

1.61%

3.77o/o

3.350/o

1.350/o

1.22%

5.81%

0.00%

0.540/o

0.00%

O.BB%

2.71o/o

5.070/o

0.840/o

2.27o/o

165

221

0

B

96

73

57

215

26

90

69

11

136

6

54

108

33

10

1,382

29.52Yo

29.19Vo

6

2

0

1

5

4

2

1

5

0

7

0

6

2

4

11

I

2

59

1.07o/o

0.26o/o

11

21

0

0

9

7

10

14

2

2

)

2

12

0

7

t3

0

0

113

0

1.97o/o

2.770/o

0.00%

2.14o/o

0.92o/o

1.130/o

1.760/o

1.010/o

1.520/o

1.160/o

0.00%

1.630/o

0.00o/o

1.33o/"

2.500/o

1.45o/o

0.000/o

1.54o/o

21.05o/o

42.40o/o

50.11o/o

41 .13o/o

29.390/o

59.120/o

45.900/o

30.23o/o

25.00o/o

41.85o/o

42.48o/o

41 .040/o

40.58o/o

53.78"/o

40.82o/o

42.11o/o

20.560/o

16.78o/o

21.51o/o

34.35o/o

B.7Bo/o

27.360/o

26.74o/o

39.29Yo

24.640/o

17.650/o

23.B9o/o

22.50o/o

23.91o/o

8.40o/o

24.700/o

5.26o/o

1.07o/o

0.92o/o

0.75o/o

0.160/o

1.69o/o

0.00%

2.71o/o

0.00%

1.09o/o

5.BB%

1.77o/o

2.29"/o

0.72o/o

1.68o/o

1.05o/o

0.00%

1.93o/o

t u.t.':

3.770/o

2.24o/o

0.68o/o

0.61o/o

1.160/o

7.140/o

2.17o/o

0.00"/o

3.10o/o

2.710/o

0.00o/o

0.00%

2.02o/o

0.00%

1.07o/o

0.00%

1.51o/o

0.640/o

0.340/o

0.00%

1.55o/o

0.00o/o

0.54o/o'

0.00%

1 .77o/o

0.83o/o

0.72o/o

0.840/o

0.660/o

)

3

0

5

0

4

4

0

4

0

3

0

4

4

1

1

37

000

0

00

0

0

0

2,284 40.82o/o

0

127 2.27o/o

0

0

1,382 24.700/o

0

86 1.54o/o 59 1.05o/o 1 13 2.O2o/o 37 0.66o/o



Page: 7 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

11B

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

-o
o
2cO-
S s.t

5=

ql

o

F

)
:)
d,zn<ahla
=\,Uu>5

te
J-ui
Zdo-dUUo>et

zo9z
F20-
eFu

14

24

0

0

19

10

2

23

6

o

2

1

9

0

5

14

6

4

147

2.50o/o

3.17o/o

1.610/o

0.660/o

0.18o/o

0.260/o

559

757

0

19

467

435

265

626

296

329

258

lo

552

34

226

480

138

119

5,59s

0

0

5,595

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

2

0

0

3

1

9

5

0

0

2

2

0.00%

4.070/o

"!.i:
0.75o/o

3.67o/o

2.03o/o

2.43o/o

0.78o/o

3.57o/o

1.63%

0.00%

2.21o/o

2.92%

4.35%

3.360/o

2.630/o

0.00o/o

0.430/o

ooi.':

0.3870

0.16%'

2.70o/o

1.52o/ol

1.55o/o

0.00%

1.630/o

0.00%,

0.44o/o

1.BBYo:

1 410/

1.680/o,

1.09o/o

0.00%

0.640/o

0.23o/o

1.130/o

0.80o/o

1.01o/o

0.910/o

0,007o

0.00o/o

0.18o/o

0,000/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00o/o

2.52%

0.45o/o

1

B

5

4

0

9

0

1

9

3

2

61

0

0

61

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

5

3

3

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

3

25

0 0

0

0

0

00

71612022 3:13:58 PM

147 2.630/" 1.09o/o 25 0.45o/o



Page: B of 53

LieUtgnant GOVefffOf (VOtg fOf f) ***x -InstfficientrurnouttoProtectvoterPriuacy

7/612022 3:13:58 PM

oU
o,
E
F

E
E
C.i .^

.:' dJ
D!oot>

c,,

ot
e,

o

o

e
CJro
c
l

F
FuU
?\)U<
>s<L=
--luz
=vu>l,O

6
.6

:>U>a
z2,C
= 4.9(Jo=Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

11B

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

'105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

llCr

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

583

792

0

19

488

447

9

273

641

318

332

269

28

s69

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

0

0

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

0

0

10,855

25

39

0

0

21

1l

6

29

23

'1 3

11

1

20

2

B

17

5

4

246

4

4

0

0

0

1

36

47

0

1

31

aa

19

50

22

tt

28

2

60

29

54

12

3

436

6.500/o

6.28o/o

6

12

0

0

6

7

1

)

21

4

0

0

10

0

2

9

c

90

1.08o/o

1.600/o

5.260/"

6.640/o

tti.':

7.14%

8.170/o

7.51o/o

5.35o/o

10.85o/o

7.41o/o

10.990/o

6.250/o

12.89o/o

11.39o/o

B.B2o/o

2.56o/o

7.890/o

0.00o/o

1.28o/o

1.65o/o

0.38o/o

0.82o/o

7.17o/o

1.260/o

0.00%

0.00%

1.83o/o

0.00%

0.89o/o

1.90%

4.27o/o

1.63o/o

1

0

2

1

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

16

0 0

0

0

0

0

0 0

246 tb 436 7.89o/o 90 1.630/o



Page: 9 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

e.
u
co-(,
-Z
u(q^
d;<L=4LUUu'to

r
&.

o

-OC>g

v
J

z=>u=u
uV=

J
JUzzu
4
o^
>cL
3E

oo
,.; o
e.> -
EBBa
2=<e

I
dU
dlJJ

=o^
=o-<=o3

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

EEJ

749

0

19

467

425

266

612

293

318

258

aa

546

1)

225

474

136

117

5,526

0

0

5,526

o

o
oF

!
c,

O-pe
53

11

12

0

0

9

11

2

5

4

3

5

4

10

0

6

t5

1

0

96

1.990/o

1.600/o

171

234

0

6

118

84

B3

206

41

B5

t5

12

134

6

47

105

35

12

1,455

30.870/o

31 .240/o

118

145

0

6

70

59

47

156

24

53

53

2

91

5

3B

76

30

24

1,001

21 30%

19.360/o

189

279

0

6

201

213

100

175

134

'139

87

7

203

17

93

181

5l

62

2,137

34.12o/o

37.250/0

1

4

0

0

9

11

3

4

3

4

4

0

3

0

5

11

2

3

67

0.18o/"

0.53o/o lb

0

0

1)

1B

11

11

44

13

B

0

35

2

5

25

3

B

244

3.97o/o

alAO/

0

0

0

0

0

0

0.00%

1.930/o

'"_n_':

0.750/o

0.82%

1.37o/o

0.94o/o

1.94o/o

14.810/0

1.83o/o

0.00%

2.67o/o

2.74%

0.74o/o

0.00o/o

1.74o/o

31 .5go/o

25.27o/o

tn'.1.':

31.200/0

33.66o/o

13.99o/o

26.730/o

28.290/o

44.44o/o

24.54o/o

18.750/o

20.890/o

22.150/o

25.740/o

10.260/o

2633%

31.58o/o

14.99%

" il:.
17.670/o

25.49%

8.19o/o

16.67o/o

20.s40/o

7.41o/o

16.670/o

15.630/o

16.89o/o

16.030/0

22.060/o

20.510/o

18.110/o

31.58o/o

43.040/o

50.12o/o

3759%

28.59o/o

45.73%

43.710/o

33.72o/o

25.930/0

37.18o/o

53.13%

41.33o/o

38.19%

37.500/0

52.99o/o

38.670/"

0.00o/o

1.93o/o

259%

1.13o/o

0.650/o

1.020/o

1.26o/o

1.55o/o

0.00o/o

0.55o/o

0.00%

2.22o/o

2.32o/o

1.47o/o

2.56%

1,210/o

0.00%

4.93o/o

4.24o/o

4.14o/o

1.80o/o

15.020/0

4.09o/o

3.10o/o

0.00%

6.41o/o

6.25o/o

2.22o/o

5.27o/o

a,a | /o

6.84o/o

4.42o/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

67

0

0

0

0

1,455 26.330/0

0

0

1,001 18.110/o

0

0

2,137 38.670/o96 1.740/o 1.21o/o 244 4.42o/o



71612022 3:13:58 PM
Page: 10 of 53



Page: 11 of 53

SeCfetary Of State (VOte fOr f) *n**-rnsufficientTurnouttoprotectvoterpriuacE

71612022 3:13:58 PM

I
Ju
i-i d

*a

Uz
o-

3
tnU^.s o-
<d

o

t
c)

o

o
o
a
0).lJ
c
l

!

9-
.6h
c'lEood>

€
U
o
E
FPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

coa

792

0

19

488

447

9

273

641

318

332

269

28

569

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

33

47

0

1

36

26

14.

43'

20

9'

19'.

3

to

1

B

25

5

8

326

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

'1'10

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

41

a)

0

2

45

36

25

48

25

19

31

4

66

2

45

62

27

10

562

1 AEO/

9.660/o

122

161

0

6

B2

47

49

173

71

52

9

BB

6

25

71

18

13

1,024

22.18o/o

21.610/"

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

11 .110/o

9.96o/o

8.55o/o

9.650/o

8.03%

8.42o/o

5.BB%

12.40o/o

16.00o/o

12.200/0

6.060/o

20.00"/o

13.300/o

19.85o/o

B.B5o/o

10.29o/o

33.33o/o

18.14o/o

tt'.u!:.

18.920/0

28.930/0

9.43o/o

21 .98/o

20.800/o

36.00o/o

16.270/0

1B.1Bo/o

11.110/0

15.240/0

13.240/0

11.50o/o

18.750/o

0

0

5,788

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

1,024 18.750/o10,855 326 562 10.290/o



Page: 12 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

71612022 3:13:58 PM

a)2c
O=
P.e
5=

@

o

6
oF

&,u
cou
3
2
U
d2
=U*s

5z
VIoz
d.uco^
cod
Y.s

d,Uzzu
J
co

2>2
36

Nu:)I
doo
i
J

o-
=.u&qs

os
=2u<r-Fdc<zo->a€

4

10

0

0

7

6

3

3

4

2

3

0

a

1

3

6

2

2

59

0.73o/o

1.34o/o

13

t)

0

0

13

7

9

12

14

9

't 
1

0

12

1

7

14

4

0

141

0

2.36Vo

2.010/o

5

12

0

0

16

15

5

9

13

9

6

0

9

J
J

4

14

2

)

125

0.91%

1.61%

142

167

0

5

67

76

55

162

tb

53

53

4

107

3

41

7B

25

13

1,071

25.82o/o

22.420/0

223

308

0

5

aa)

234

113

191

197

160

94

B

2s6

17

100

tlt

5B

72

) l1Q

40.550/o

41.34o/o

550

745

0

1B

452

421

259

s9B

297

323

250

25

541

33

225

466

136

113

5,461

0

0

0

0

0

0.00%

1.550/o

1.43o/o

1.160/o

0s0%

1.35o/o

0.620/o

1.20%

0.00%

0.55o/o

3.03o/o

1.33o/o

1.29o/o

1.47o/o

1.77o/o

1.08o/o

0.00%

2.BBo/o

1.66o/o

3.47o/o

2.010/o

4.710/o

2.79o/o

4.40o/o

0.00%

2.220/0

3.03%

3.11"/o

3.00o/o

2.94o/o

0.00o/o

2.58o/o

0.00o/o

3.54o/o

3.56o/"

1.93o/o

1 .51o/o

4.38o/o

2.79%

2A0%

0.00o/o

1.660/o

9.090/o

1.78"/"

3.000/o

1.47o/o

2.650/o

2.29o/o

27.73o/o

14.82o/o

18.05o/o

21.240/"

27.09o/o

5.39o/o

16.41o/o

21.20o/o

16.000/o

19.78%

9.09o/o

18.220/0

16.740/o

'18.38%

11.50o/o

19.610/0

27.78o/o

49.120/o

55.58%

4.63%:

31.940/0

66.33o/o

4954%

37.600/o

32.00o/o

47.32o/o

51.52%

44.44o/o

47.42o/o

42.65%

63.72o/o

45.390/0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00

0

59

0

0

0

1,071 19.610/o

0

0

2,479 45.390/o

0 0

0

5,461

0

0

01.08o/o 141 2.58o/o 125 2.290/o



Page: 13 of 53

COntfOllef (VOte fOf f) **** - InsufficientTurnoutto protectvoter priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

Uo

zU
T
o
U
j
J

zU
I
L,'
UUr^
7O-
3g

a,
ot
0)

o

(u

ot
OJ

C
l

!o
q6

3Eood.>

6
U
qr

E
FPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

sB3

792

0

19

4BB

447

9

273

b4 I

318

332

269

28

s69

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

0

0

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

ott

432

47

1,099

t'J

412

996

264

266

10,855

42

50

0

1

3B

fJ

15

50

22

25

Itt

1

29

2

9

28

4

7

372

308

426

0

15

210

158

148

399

69

155

151

19

257

1EIJ

122

217

75

)a

2,790

0

0

2,790

78

118

0

1

90

90

36

63

60

6B

30

)

95

2

3B

B2

21

31

906

14.420/0

15.92o/o

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

56.93o/o

57.49o/o,

83.33%

46.67%

" ill'
57.360/o

67.510/o

23.310/o

50.49o/o,

59.68%

70.37%

47.590/o

46.BBo/o

54.460/0

46.87o/o

54.74o/o

32.46%

51.52o/o

556%

20.00o/o

21.74o/o

13.950/o

10.660/o

20.27o/o

22.15o/o

11.86%

11 .11o/o

17.59o/o

6.25o/o

1636%

17.71o/o

15.33%

27.190/o

16.730/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

10,855

0

0 0

0

0

0

1372 51.52o/o. 906 16.730/o



Page: 14 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

'101

102

103

104

105

tub

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

71612022 3:13:58 PM

J
Ju
3
tl 2
Jdls

l

=uz

>6

z
&U
6-
J

(9^
z2
Vg

EU
N
J
I

E9UUbe

q,

o

6
oF

!(,

O-pe
5=

34

44

0

0

39

41

23

37

28

13

9

,1

45

2

11

34

1)

6

379

0

6.28o/o

5.940/o

0.00%

8.67o/o

9.90o/o

8.91o/o

6.260/o

9.46o/o

4.23o/o

3.56o/o

3.70o/"

8.33o/"

6.25o/o

4.91o/o

7.34o/o

8.760/o

5.26o/o

7.00o/o

39

46

0

0

29

35

It)

a1

20

19

13

0

29

)

16

fo

12

10

))a

0

7.21o/o

6.21o/o B6

0

1

Crl

bU

26

57

106

41

39

4

95

6

31

B3

14

22

805

13.49%

11 .610/o

5.56o/o

13.560/o

14.490/0

10.08o/o

9.640/o

35.81o/"

13.360/"

15.42o/o

14.81o/o

17.590/o

18.75o/o

13.840/o

17.93o/o

10.22o/o

19.30o/o

14.87o/o

9

21

0

1

21

30

9

13

13

11

tt

0

19

4

6

19

3

B

198

541

741

0

1B

450

414

258

591

296

307

253

27

540

32

224

463

137

114

5,415

0.00o/o

6.44o/o

8.45o/o

6.20o/o

3.72o/o

6.760/o

6.190/o

5.14o/o

0.00Vo

5.37o/o

9.39o/o

7.14o/o

6.05o/o

8.76o/o

8.770/o

6.220/o

1.660/o

2.83o/"

5.56o/o

4.67o/o

7.25o/o

3.49o/o

2.20o/o

4.390/o

3.5]o/o

4.35o/o

0.00%

3.52o/o

12.50%

2.68%

4.10o/o

2.19o/o

7.02o/o

3.66o/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

805 14.870/"

0

0

0

00 0

0

198

0

0

5,415379 7.00"/o 337 6.220/" 3.66/o



Page: 15 of 53

Treasurer (vote for r) **** - Insufficient TLn'nout to protect voter priuacll

71612022 3:13:58 PM

6U
o)
E
F

zz<oI>9<^unL>as

odiu>d
.,d^.+uo-
<id

c,
o
a
0)

o

o
o
e
qJ-o
c
l

:o
E9.
3E(I,o
d.>Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

583

792

0

19

4BB

447

9

1t )

641

318

tf1

269

28

569

34

1)2

491

141

121

5,788

0

0

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

ot I

617

432

1,099

412

996

264

266

10,855

))
54

0

1

39

34

14

49

27

15

22

1

32

1

11

23

7

B

371

223

5 tJ

0

11

155

120

93

309

58

114

110

14

187

9

7B

146

45

25

2,015

40.55o/o

42.410/o

61 .11o/o

34.52o/o

*o!.':

35.910/o

52.200/0

19.93%

35.96o/o

44.53o/o

51 .850/o

34.82o/o

27.27o/o

35.14%

31.20%

33.58%

22.120/o

37.200/o

10

Itt

0

0

16

'18

4

10

I)

6

5

0

17

2

5

22

3

4

t)J

0

1.820/o

2.17%

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

llb

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

2,015 37.200/o

0.00%

3.56o/o

4.360/o

154%

1.690/o

5.15o/o

1.890/o

2.02%

0.00%

3.17o/o

6.06%

2.25o/o

4.70o/o

2.24o/o

3s4%

2.820/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

10,855

000

0

0371 153 2.82o/o



Page: 16 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

O-
9l dr

53

0,
o

6
o
F

Eis
85

od
3U
6c
es

103

109

0

2

55

47

4B

B6

25

39

40

5

B1

4

35

75

32

15

B0s

18.73o/o

14.770/o

11.11To

12.250/o

11.380/o

18,530/o

14.530/o

8.59o/o

1230%

16,190/o

18.520/o

15.08%

ta,tl/o

15.77o/o

16.03%

23.BBo/o

13.27o/o

14.860/o

214

300

0

5

223

228

114

187

193

158

92

B

252

1B

104

225

54

69

2,444

38.91o/o

40.650/o

27.780/0

49.670/o

55.21o/o

44.02o/o

31.59o/o

66.32"/o

49.84o/o

37.250/o

29.63"/"

46.93o/o

54.55o/o

46.850/o

48.08%

40.30o/o

61.06%

45.12o/o

550

738

0

18

449

:::
259

592

291

317

247

27

537

33

222

468

134

113

5,417

0:

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2,444 45.12o/o

0

0

5,417

71612022 3:13:58 PM

805 14.860/o



Page: 17 of 53

Attorney General (Vote for f) **** - Insufficient Turnout to protect voter priuaca

71612022 3:13:58 PM

6U
o
E
F

z
<zrf^
F(JO-
>9s

Ua.<=>g
u-^z_i*
ftY=

o
o

-o
0)
(u

.9
O)
qJ
d.

o
oto
o

o
oto
!
f

3B

39

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

583

792

0

19

4BB

447

9

273

b4 I

318

332

269

28

569,

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

31

20

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

'106

107

108

109

110

'111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

11g

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

31

34

0

1

)E

42

1B

27

24

9

7

)

41

6

13

3B

5

7

341

0

5.69o/o

4.520/o

103

154

0

1

72

52

46

138

17

45

51

5

B5

2

34

72

27

14

921

0

18.90o/o

20.450/o

5.560/o

7.660/o

9.840/o

6.87o/o

4.48%

8.03o/o

2.81o/o.

2.75o/o'

11.11%'

7.640/o'

17.650/o

5.860/o'

8.09o/o

3.70Vo

6.14o/o

6.22o/o

5.56o/o

15.75o/o

12.18%

17.560/o

22.89%

5.690/o

14.060/o

20.00o/o

18.52o/o

15.830/o

5.BBo/o

15.3?o/o

15.32o/o

20.000/o

12.28o/o

16.790/o

11

5t

to

12

13

1

)a

0

11

20

6

7

299

0

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

3

0

0

5,788

0

0

10,855 299

000

0

)
J

0

0

341 6.220/o 921 16.790/o



Page: 18 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

lUCr

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

J
d.

u
LJd
-,u

Fzoco a:62ox
d=

NF

oJU
CL

u^zZ
=d.6s

q)

o

T
oF

!
CJ

O-
Ep
5=

5

15

0

1

21

16

5

7

10

6

l

0

11

3

4

14

2

7

130

0

0.92o/o

1.990/o

5.56o/o

4.60o/o

3.75o/o

1.91o/o

1.160/o

3.34o/o

1.BBo/o

1.18o/o

0.00o/o

2.05o/o

8.82%

1.80o/o

2.98o/o

1.480/o

6.140/o

2.37"/o

197

2BB

0

f

197

211

97

111

190

157

BB

6

zzo

16

93

196

54

63

2,261

36.15o/o

38.25o/o

16.670/o

43.11o/o

49.41o/o

37.02o/o

29.350/o

63.55o/o

49.060/o

34.51o/o

22.220/0

42.460/o

47.060/o

41.89o/o

41.700/o

40.00o/o

55.26o/o

41.21o/o

209

262

0

12

132

106

g6

254.

EO

103

106

13

172

7

7B

150

47

23

1,833

38.35o/o

34.790/o

545

7s3

0

'18

457

427

262

603

299

320

255

aaa

34

222

470

135

114

5,486

0

0

5,486

0

0

0

0

0

0

66.67o/o

28.81o/o

24.82o/o

36.640/o

42.12o/o

19.40o/o

32.19o/o

41 .57o/o

48.15o/o

32.03o/o

20.59o/o

35.140/o

31 .91%

34.81%

20.18%

33.41o/"

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

2,261 41.21o/"

0

0

1,833 33.41"/"

71612022 3:13:58 PM

130 2.37o/o



Page: 19 of 53

Insurance Commissioner (Vote for f) ****-rnsufficientrurrrctfttoprotectvoterprtuacy

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

o
o

71612022 3:13:58 PM

J
J
U
3o-
F&U^
60-
PU

N
d.
I
u
=
IF<̂+
zL*

a)
ot
c,

o

qJ

o
eo

l

o
o

6t
0)
d.

oU
o
E

F

583

792

0

19

488

447

9

273

641

5 ta1

332

269

28

569

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

8

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

83

412

996

264

266

10,855

41

66

0

1

54

30

16

49

24

))
)1

1

25

1

14

28

7

11

412

0

1

1

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

tul

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

I tl

113

114

'I 15

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

9

7

0

1

13

19

4

11

5

6

3

0

10

2

5

11

6

2

115

1.66o/o

0.97o/"

5.56o/o

3.00o/o

4.560/o

1.56o/o

1.860/o

1.70o/o

1.94o/o

1 410/

0.00%

1.840/o

6.064/o

2.28o/o

2.38o/o

4.48o/o

1.82o/o

2.14o/o

183

236

0

11

107

9B

74

242

46

96

B6

5

148

10

ca

124

36

1B

1,583

33.83%

32.55o/o

0

61.110/o

24.650/o

2350%

28.790/0

40.95o/o

15.654/o

30.970/o

34.680/o

18.520/0

27.21"/o

30.30o/o

26.48o/o

26.78o/o

26.870/o

16.360/o

29.46%

0

0

0

U

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

5,788

0

0

10,855

0

0

0 0

41E alAO/I t) L.la/O

0

0

1,583 29.46%

0

3412



Page: 20 of 53 71612022 3:13:58 PM

-uF<&;

egg

>
?zcOuo-dv>o(Ju<<o

Uzu
(9
fu
zOz=6u>
7Ju
=J^><3

UztU)
LJ-
d.><u>o

d.
J
oo
<2
H6

Y6
*&^962dsd
>EY

zo
JzoU
9a
5aPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

126

161

0

2

87

57

63

150

26

52

59

11

123

3

Ef

90

)t

15

1,117

23.29o/o

22.21o/o

11.110/o

20.05%

ttuJ.':.

24.51o/o

25.38o/o

B.B4o/o

16.77o/o

23.79o/o

40.74o/o

22.610/"

9.09%"

24.20o/o

19.44o/o

27.61%

13.640/o

2O.79o/"

4

12

0

1

14

15

B

5

24

6

5

0

7

3

2

16

7

3

tJl

0

0

132

0.740/o

1.660/o

146

195

0

1

141

138

76

121

102

114

>t

7

171

10

71

146

36

44

1,576

26.99o/o

26.90o/o

26

71

0

2

26

57

15

40

39

1B

)2'

0

43

2

17

33

B

16

436

4.81o/o

9.790/o

11.11o/o

5.99o/o

13.670/o

5.84o/o

6.77o/o

13.27o/o

5.B1o/o

9.27o/o

0.00%

7.90o/o

6.06o/o

7 .7 60/o

7.13%

5.970/o

14.55o/o

8.11o/o

20

16

0

0

13

1B

10

B

B

6

5

4

11

0

4

15

2

5

145

3.70o/o

2.21%

t)

16

0

0

)1

4

2

6

34

7

4

0

17

3

6

20

2

5

162

2.77o/o

2.21o/o

12

11

0

0

12

11

5

8

10

5

6

0

14

0

3

B

0

2

107

0

2.220/o

1.52o/"

5.560/o

3.23o/o

3.60o/o

3.110/o

0.85%

8.16o/o

1.94o/o

2.020/o

0.00o/o

1.290/o

9.09o/o

0.91o/o

3.460/o

5.22o/o

2.73o/o

2.460/o

5.560/o

32.490/0

33.09%

29.570/o

20.47o/o

34.69o/o

36.77o/o

22.98o/o

25.93o/o

31 .430/o

30.30%

32.420/o

31.53o/o

26.87o/o

40.00%

29.33o/o

0.00%

3.00%

4.32%

3.B9o/o

1.35o/o

2.720/o

1.94%

2.02o/o

14.81o/o

2.02%

0.00%

1.830/o

3.240/"

1.49o/o

4.55%

2.70o/o

0.00%

4.84o/o

0.96o/o

0.78o/o

1.02o/o

11.56o/o

2.260/o

1.61%

0.00%

3.130/o

9.09o/o

2.74o/o

4.32o/o

1.49o/o

4.550/o

3.02o/o

0.00%

2.76o/o

2.64o/o

135%

1.350/o

3.400/o

1.61%

2.42%

0.007o

2.57o/o

0.00o/o

1.374/o

1.73o/o

0.00%

1.82o/o

1.99o/"

0

0

1,117 20.79%

0

0

1 ,57 6 29 .33o/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

2.460/o 436 8.11% 145 2.700/" 162 3.020/o 107 1.99o/o



Page: 21 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

147

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

1'1 5

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

-o
O>-

9.!
5=

o
o

o
oF

541

725

0

1B

434

417

257

59'1

294

310

248

27

544

33

219

463

134

110

5,373

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,373

71612022 3:13:58 PM



Page: 22 of 53

Board of Equalization rst District (Vote for r) ****-Insufficientrurnouttoprotectvoterpriuacs

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

o
U
q,
E
F

Eo
9-.!! ho!oOd.>

O)

o
eo
o

cl
ot
CJ

c
l

Uz
9^oS
FUd
FV

F
tr
-
I
du=azr5Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

8:

440,

944

877'

617

432

47'

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

'10,855

583

792

0

19

488

447

9

273

641

318

332

269

28

569

34

233

491

141

121

5,788

0

0

5,788

47

0

1

6B

46

a)

64

22

2

45

2

17

37

10

17

s30

0

1

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

'1 13

114

'1 15

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

23

36

0

1

47

39

19

)2

22

34

10

1

43

4

19

30

15

B

374

4.29o/o

5.01o/o

5.560/o

11.190/o

9.73o/o

7.600/o

3.99o/o

7.43o/o

11.45o/o

4.08o/o

3.85o/o

8.21o/o

12.50o/o

B.BO%

6.61o/"

11.45o/o

7.69o/o

7.12o/o

336

435

0

13

213

171

155

419

9B

160

167

15

289

15

131

251

7B

39

2,994

62.6970

60.50o/o

72.22%

50.71o/o

42.64o/o

62.00"/o

72.620/o

33.11o/o

53.87o/o

68.160/o

57.690/o

55.15o/o

46.BBo/o

60.65o/o

55.290/o

59.54o/o

37.500/o

56.970/o

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

)

0

0

10,855

0

0

374

00

0

0

0

2,994 56.970/o)530 7.12o/o



Page: 23 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

!
c,

O-pe
5B

o,
o

6
oF

r
o-d
l

zU^
O=
<iid.^
d=

oz
E,

si=^

HEEY<9

9B

153

0

3

91

:::
45

72

112

46

39

3

115

11

41

97

19

32

1,092

18.28o/o

21 .21o/o

79

95

0

1

69

76

5t

63

64

57

29

7

77

2

25

76

19

25

795

14.740/o

13.21o/"

5s6%

16.430/o

18.95o/o

12.40o/o

10.92o/o

21.620/o

19,190/o

11.840/o

26.92o/o

14.690/o

6.254/o

11.57o/o

16.740/o

14.50o/o

24.04%

15.13o/o

s36

719

0

18

420

401

250

577

296

297

245

26

524

32,

216

454

131

104,

5,255

0

0

U

0

0

0

0

16.670/o

21 .670/o

28.6801o

18.00"/"

12.48o/o

37.840/o

15.490/0

15.92o/o

11.54o/o

21.95o/o

34.38o/o

18,980/o

21.37o/"

14.50o/o

30.77%

20.780A

0

0

1,092 20.780/o

n

0 0

0

0

0

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

795 15.13o/o 5,255



Page: 24 of 53

Unitgd States Senator Full Term (Vote for r) ****-rnsufficientrutnouttoprotectvoterpriuoca

o
o Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

71612022 3:13:58 PM

c,
ot
s,
!

!
Eo
'6t
o
d.

l!
(J

o
E
F

6'
o
a
C)

o

z
o
c

oE'zV
Id-ost

I
E
rh
!zU^fo
-UPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

1))

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

8

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

37'

2a

0'

0

23

17

9:

44

21

10.

10.

2

17'

0

4

19

6,

4

262

6

6

0

0

5

4

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

tto

ltt

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

36

52

0

0

33

26

15

40

13

11

21

'1

39

2

26

29

12

11

368

6.640/o

6.94o/o

0

11

0

0

6

10

1

6

1

3

2

1

1

1

3

1

4

1

52

0

0.000/o

1.47o/"

0.00o/o

1.30o/o

2.34o/"

0.39o/o

1.00o/o

0.34o/o

0.gfv.

0.770/o

3.700/o

0.18o/o

3.03%

1.30o/o

0.22o/o

2.94o/o

0.85%

0.95o/o

0.00o/o

7.17o/o

6.07"/"

5.79o/o

6.660/o

4.42o/o

3.44o/o

8.11o/o

3.70o/o

7.10o/o

6.060/o

11.300/o

6.240/o

B.B2%

9.32o/o

6.690/o

B

2

3

2

0

0

4

1

1

7

0

0

0

0

10,855

49

00

0

0

0

0

0 Cumulative

Countywide262 49

Total

Total 368 6.690/o 52 0.95Vo



Page: 25 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

71612022 3:13:58 PM

vzU-
U=t><&.<H(,

I
U
&.
:)

I
ot
=o

J
J

-
j
zo^
dI>s>et

u
\J&U
d

9o
=\d;;<^53>ooHor!f

l-i<
OL.l^a*>
cddqr
Oo-!f

E.FU
o-
u
:)s^
dO-
'-g

J
J
6
o-^xEUUte

182

269

0

5

196

205

95

167

160

145

oc

6

214

.E

93

176

48

61

2,122

33.59o/o

35.91o/o

26.32o/o

42.610/o

47.90o/o

36.68o/o

27.79o/o

54.42o/o

45.310/o

32.82o/o

22.220/0

38.99o/o

45.45%

40.43o/o

37.85%

35.290/"

51 .690/o

38.60o/o

0.00% i

0.000/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o.

0.00o/o.

0.00o/o

0.00%o:.

0.39o/o,

0.00%:

0.00%

0.00%:

0.00o/o

0.22o/o:

0.00o/o

0.00%

0.09o/o,

0.37o/o

0.13o/o

0.00o/o

0.220/o

0.93o/o

0.39o/o

0.00%

1.02%

0.31%o

0.00%

0.00%

0.18o/o

0.00%

0.00Yo

0.43o/o

0.00%,

0.00o/o

0.31%

0.00o/o

1.74o/o

1.87o/o

1.930/o

0.67o/o

3.400/o

0.63o/o

0.39o/o

0.00%

1.640/o

0.00%

0.43o/o

3.230/o

2.210/o

1200/-

1.71o/o

0.00%

0.650/o

0.93%

0.00%

1.830/o

1.02o/o

0.00o/o

1.16o/o

0.00o/o

0.73o/o

0.000/o

0.00%

1.08o/o

0.00%

0.00%

0.69o/o

0.00%

1.960/o

2.10%

0.770/o

0.83%

4.7 6o/o

1.BB%

1.54o/o

0.00%

) 410/-

0.00%

0.870/o

2.58o/o

3.39o/o

1.760/o

5.260/o

0.43o/"

1.640/o

1.54o/o

0.50o/o

1.70o/o

0.940/o

0.390/o

0.00o/o

0.36%,

9.09%

1.30o/o'

0.860/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

0.80o/o

0

0

1

4

2

1

0

0

0

0

) 0.55o/o

0.13%

9

15

0

0

B

B

5

4

10

2

1

0

9

0

1

t)

3

4

94

1.66o/o

2.00o/o

0.55o/o

0.27o/o

9

7

0

U

9

9

2

5

14

6

4

0

13

0

2

12

1

4

97

1.660/o

0.93%

)

3

0

1

2

7

4

3,

5

3

1

0

2

3

3

4

0

0

44

0.550/o

0.4Oo/"

3

2

0

0

3

4

0

3

1

0

0

1

0

0

2

0

0

17

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

5

0

11

3

0

3

0

4

0

0

5

0

0

3B

0

0

2,122 38.600/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

00

0

5

0

0.090/o 17 0.310/o 94 1.71o/o 38 0.690/" 97 1.76o/" 44 0.80%



Page: 26 of 53 7/6/2022 3:13:58 PM

0.92o/o

0.27o/o

@oU
co
L,

=g>-z>

=6

u
Jo
d.
co

o-
r/lU^<6-zu
<d

o
d

29I6r'tsEO63

3g
=z

r<-
gp_

u(,coud.(,-
LA-'dY
6i.ic
9=u_

o
&.

I
d.oz^<duOdz

zz

.o
6d.\o(,ePrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

2

I

5

0

0

2

1

0

0

4

3

6

2

0

0

0

1.11%

0.27o/o

0.18o/o

0.13o/o

13

10

0

0

6

7

4

9

6

2

4

0

B

0

6

10

1

0

87

2.40o/o

1.34o/o

10

10

0

0

9

6

7

o

5

2

4

1

7

0

2

9

4

1

B5

1.850/o

1.34o/o

43

46

0

2

22

12

25

39

9

15

lb

1

3B

1

11

)1

6

5

2aa

7.930/o

6.140/o

0.18o/o

0.67o/o

0.00%

0.43o/o

0.23"/o

0.007o

0.680/o,

0.630/o

0.39o/o

0.000/o

0.910/o

0.00%

0.00%,

0.650/o:

0.74o/o

0.00%

0.45o/o

5

2

0

00.00%

0.22o/o

'ill.
1.160/o

0.00o/o

0.00olo

0.310/"

0.77o/o

0.00o/o

0.18o/o

0.00%

0.43o/o

0.00%

0.000/o

0.00"/o

0.31%

0.00%

0.87%

0.70%

0.00%

0.170/o

1.704/o

0.00%

0.77o/o

0.007o

0.55o/o

0.00%

0.00o/o

1.29o/o

0.74o/o

1.690/o

0.53o/o

0.00o/o

1.300/o

1.640/o

1.54o/o

1.50o/o

2.04o/o

0.63o/o

1.54o/o

0.00%

1.460/o

0.00o/o

2.61o/o

2.15%

0.744/o

0.00%

1.58o/o

0.00o/o

136%

1.40o/o

1.33o/o

1.70o/o

0.630/o

1.540/o

3.70o/o

1.28o/o

0.00%

0.870/o

1.94o/o

2.940/o

0.85%

1.550/o

10.530/o

4.78%

2.80o/"

9.650/o

6.49o/o

3.060/o

4.69o/o

6.18o/o

3.70o/o

6.920/o

3.03o/o

4.78%

6.67o/o

4.41o/o

4.24o/o

5.860/o

0.00o/o

1.74o/o

0.47o/o

0.77o/o

0.50%

1.700/o

1.88o/o

0.39o/o

0.00%

0.73%

0.00%

0.00%

0.65o/o

1.470/o

0.85%

0.80%

B

3

0

0

1

2

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

17

2

3

5

6

1

0

4

0

0

f

2

1

2

0

2

2

0

5

0

0

3

1

0

0

5

0

2

0

3

0

0

6

2

44)E29

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

322

0

17 0.31o/o 29 0.530/" 87 1.58o/o 85 ' 1.55o/o 25 0.450/" 5.860/o 44 0.800/o



Page: 27 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

11i

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

tg
r/l
:)u

o-

Xa<u>g

d
F
o

uo d.
o u.l
J-^
e=L<ryu(99

zvzu
ci
7^
OFs=63

6

J)
=U6^
dd

8U

o
3oo
b^z2

=5

o
12gRe
<=i;du:4

F

=U
7d
=u(J ca

9

19

0

1

4

13

4

14

2

7

11

0

7

2

o

13

3

2

120

1.660/o

2.54o/o

1.660/o

1.07o/o

44

62

0

0

36

53

22

57

B

20

fa

2

45

1

18

43

25

B

446

8.12o/o

8.28o/o

0.18o/o

0.13o/o

037%

0.40%

147

219

0

10

100

69

61

223

29

89

70

15

131

6

49

B5

21

15

1,344

5.260/o

0.87o/o

3.04o/o

1.54%

233%

0.680/o

2.19o/o

4.25%

0.00%

1.28o/o

6.060/o

3.48o/o

2.BjVo

2.21o/o

1.690/o

2.18o/o

0.00%

0.87o/o

ool.':

0.00%

0.330/o

2.38o/o

0.00o/o

0.39o/o

0.000/o

0.73o/o

6.06%

1.30o/o

1.72o/o

0.00o/o

0.85o/o

0.690/o

0.00%

1.090/o

to!.':.

0.77o/o

0.50o/o

1.02o/o

0.94o/o

1.160/o

0.000/o

1.46o/o

0.000/o

0.87%

0.650/o

1.470/o

1.690/o'

1.07%

0.00%

7.83o/o

7.71%

8.490/o

9.48o/o

2.720/o

6.25o/o

8.49o/o

7.41o/o:

8.20o/o'

3.030/o

7.83o/o

9.25o/o

'18.38%

6.78o/"

8.11o/o

0.00%

0.22o/o

0.23o/o

1.160/o

0.17o/o

0.68o/o,

0.00o/o

0.77o/o

0.00%

0.18o/o

0.00o/o

0.007o'

0.00o/o'

0.00%

0.00%

0.24o/o

0.007o

0.00o/o

'i11.

0.39o/o

0.830/o

0.680/o

0.63o/o

0.77o/o

0.00%

0.730/o

0.00%

0.87%

1.29%

1.47%

0.00%

0.560/o

27.12o/o

29.240/0

52.630/0

21.74%,

tut_::

23.55o/o

37.100/o

9.860/o

27.81"/o

27.03%

55.56o/o,

23.86%

1B.1Bo/o:,

21.300/o

18.28%

15.44o/o

12.710/o

24.45"/o

2

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

9

B

0

0

5

6

4

0

0

0

4

2

0.74o/o

0.00o/o

1

5

2

2

2

0

4

0

2

6

2

0

31

32

3

)

3

3

0

B

0

2

3

2

2

59

0

2

7

0

1

0

4

2

3

8

0

38

2

0

2

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

13

0

0

13

0

0

1,344 24.45%

00

0

00

0 0

120 2.18o/o 38 0.690/o 59 1.07o/o 446 8.110/o 0.24o/" 31 0.56%



Page: 28 of 53

!o
O-
Ue
53

c)
o
-6

oFPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

'101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

11(

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

542

749

0

19

460

428

2s9

601

294

320

259

27

s49

33

230

465

lJtr

118

5,497

0

0

q AQ7

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

71612022 3:13:58 PM



Page: 29 of 53

United States Senator Partial Term (Vote for r) ""n* - Insufficient Turnout to Protect Voter Priuacg

71612022 3:13:58 PM

oU
o)
E
tr

o
9-
3Eood.>

A)

e
0)

o

CJ

-
o
!c
l

J)
I
j

zo^c<[>-u>guo

J)
d
CL

xu
JPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

coc

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

44

35

0

0

22

30

12

54

23

1B

14

3

5t

0

5

24,

B.

7

55 I

176

277

0

6

213

103

170

157

142

90

5

208

20

98

202

49

60

2,197

32.77o/o

36.64/o

14

11

0

2

6

10

4

tb

6

0

9

0

14

0

6

11

1

1

112

0

0

112

2.61%

1.46%

10.53o/o

1.29%

"1.':.

1.52o/o

2.70o/o

2.030/o

0.00%

3.53%

0.00o/o

2.61o/o

0.00%

2.630/o

2.360/o

0.75%

0.87o/o

2.05o/o

4

2

0

0

2

1

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

11B

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

2,197 40.220/o

0

31.58o/o

45.910/o

'u,'-'-'-

39.024/0

28.67o/o

53.22o/o

45.220/o

35.290/o

19.23%

38.81"/o

58.B2o/o

42.98o/o

43.35o/o

36.57o/o

52.17o/o

40.22%

0

0

5.BOB

0

0

10,855

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

2

1

0

0

15

0

0

1EIJ

0

331 2.05%



Page: 30 of 53

3.72o/o

3.70o/o

0.00o/o

2.37o/o

2.630/o

2.27o/o

2.19o/o

9.15o/"

5.41o/o

2.35o/o

3.85o/o

4.48o/o

0.00o/o

0.BBo/o

3.860/o

3.73o/o

6.960/o

3.610/o

0

1.30o/o

a,ta/o

0.00%

3.23o/o

2.150/o

1.14%

1 18%

4.070/o

1.18o/o

0.00o/o

3.17o/o

0.00o/o

0.88%

1.72o/o

0.75o/o

1.740/o

1.94o/"

0 0

111 2.03o/o

0

0

1,990 36.430/o

71612022 3:13:58 PM

537

756

0

19

464

418

264

593

295

314

255

26

536

34

228

466

134

115

5,462

0

0

5,462

u
Jo
&
co

c
vlU^>*<E

o
d.

29-o^-
3*Z

II
vl
d,:)
r
o55 .E
=d6

Frlt

=q^
zO-
6H

&u
=U

o
\zda.{usd

o
3oob^z2

=5

o)
o

6
F

1Jo2cOT
$E
53Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

'103

104

105

106

1Q7

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

20

?o

0

0

11

11

6

13

27

17

6

1

24

0

2

1B

5

o

197

7

lf)

0

0

15

9

)

7

1)

4

t

0

17

0

2

B

1

2

106

71,

70

0

0,

41

30

26

69

14

1B

23

0

49

2

11

46

12

4

497

13.22o/o

9.260/o

0.00%

8.84o/o

7.19o/o

9.85o/o

11.640/o

4.75o/o

5.73o/o

9.02o/o

0.00o/o

9.14o/o

5.BBo/o

9.65o/o

9.87o/o

8.960/o

3.48o/o

9.10o/"

21

29

0

1

17

17

14

30

14

18

11

2

21

2

1B

26

B

)

252

0

3.91o/o

3.84o/o

5.260/o

3.66Vo

4.07o/o

5.30o/o

5.060/o

4.75o/o

5.73o/o

4.31o/o

7.690/o

3.92o/"

5.BBo/o

7.89%

5.58o/o

5.97o/o

2.61o/o

4.61o/o

16

10

0

0

10

B

5

7

1E

5

5

0

11

1

3

7

4

4

111

2.98o/o

1.320/o

0.00%

2.160/o

1 .910/o

1.89o/o

1.18o/o

5.08o/o

1.590/o

1.960/o

0.00o/o

2.05o/o

2.94o/o

1.32o/o

1.50o/o

2.99o/o

3.49o/o

2.03o/o

212

315

0

10

151

112

103

281

50

110

108

1B

192

9

77

148

54

33

1,990

39.48"/o

41.67o/o

52.63o/o

32.540/o

26.79o/o

39.02o/o

47.39o/o

16.95o/o

35.03o/o

42.35o/o

69.23o/o

35.82o/o

26.47o/o

33.77o/o

31.76o/o

4030%

28.70o/o

36.43o/"

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0

000

0

197 3.61o/o 106 1.94o/o 497 9j00/o 252 4.610/o



Page: 31 of 53 71612022 3:13:58 PM



71612022 3:13:58 PM
Page: 32 of 53

United States Representative (Vote for f) **nn-InsufficientrurnouttoProtectvoterPriuaca

6U
OJ

E
F

g
E9-
-6ho;ood>

o
o
zo
o

q,

o
eq,

15
c
f

U
Jv
z^
=o-
Yg

zo
&.U
FU
o-
o^
<u^ouPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

5B5

793

0

19

488

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

0

0

10,855

42

26

0

0

55

13

7

?2

24

15

12

)
J

24

1

B

22

7

o

279

41

40

0

2

42

50

14

25

47

22

15

0

47

4

15

57

9

11

441

7.550/o

5.22o/o

215

295

0

6

136

B9

94

275

49

104

101

16

1BB

6

79

138

46

20

1,862

39.59o/o

38.510/o

0

1

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

'1 15

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

10.53o/o

9.23o/o

11 .47o/o

5.20o/o

4.070/o

15.99o/o

6.94o/o

5.840/o

0.000/o

8.610/o

12.12o/o

6.61o/o

12.15o/o

6.67o/o

9.650/o

7.98o/o

31 .51o/o

29.897o

20.41o/o

34.94o/o

44.79o/o

16.67o/o

32.81o/o

39.30o/o

61 .54o/o

34.43o/o

1B.1Bo/o

34.8Qo/"

29.42o/o

34.070/o

17.54o/o

33.68%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

00

0

0

0 0

0

0

1,862 33.68o/o279 441 7.98o/o



Page: 33 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

1i6

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

!o
gT
p .lc

5=

o
o

6
oF

q
zo
F
>SdEUA\z=

uzo
L^ho-YUus

112

144

U

7

B2

79:

55

149

31

49'.

63,

3'

97'
.
o

48

109:

26:

1g

1,082

20.630/o

18.80o/o

175

287

0

4

195

218

106

165

167

142

1Q

7

214

17

85

'165

54

64

2,143

32.23o/o

37.470/0

543

766

0

19

4)5

436

269

614

294

317

257:

26

546

33

227

469

135,

114

5,528

0

0,

5,528'

0

0

0

0

0

0

36.840/o

18.02o/o

18.12o/o

20.45o/o

24.270/o

10.54%

15.460/o

24.51%

11.540/o

17.77o/o

18.18%

21.150/o

23.240/0

19.260/o

16.67%

19.57o/o

21 .050/o

42.860/o

" ill.
39.41o/o

26.870/o

56.807o

44.79%

3435o/o

26.92o/o

39.19o/o

51.520/o

37.44o/o

35.18o/o

40.00o/o

56.14o/o

38.77o/"

0

0,

0,

0

0

0

0

0

U

0

0

0

U

1,082. 19.570/o

0

0

2,143 38.770/o

0

0

0

71612022 3:13;58 PM



Page: 34 of 53

State SenatOr 4th DiStriCt (VOte for f) ****-Insufficientrutnouttoprotectvoterpriuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

c,
o
aq,
E
f

o
9-
_6h
O) {:ooe>

oU
A)
E
i:

o
o
e
c)

o

JZU^rx^
;'idd:Z^u>u5

IF
u
4
a
(9
\z i-
<dPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

' 101

102

103

104

, 105

106

tut

108

:109

110

,111

112

113

114

1'1 5

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

s,808

0

0

s,808

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

. 440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

0

0

10,8s5

40

64

0

1

39

30

13

60

24

24

16

4

40

1

13

9

7

424

0

1

0

0

0

0

Precinqt

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

49

73

0

1

45

40

57

30

20

21

4

79

)
J

z3

75

11

12

584

9.09o/o

10.03%

12

30

0

0

5

7

6

20

9

11

6

4

14

0

9

t5

7

2

168

0

4.27%

4.120/o

0.00%

1.11yo

1.670/o

2.28o/o

3.41o/o

3.06"/o

3.57o/o

2.384/o

16.00o/o

2.640/o

0.00%

4.05o/o

3.27"/"

5.260/o

1.74o/o

3.12o/o

5.56o/o

10.020/o

9.55o/o

14.45o/o

9.710/o

10.20%

6.49o/o

8.33o/o

16.00o/o

14.910/o

9.090/o

10.36o/o

16.34o/o

8.27o/o

10.43o/o

10.85o/"

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

00

0

0

0

2

0

0

424 584 10.850/o 168 3.12o/o



Page: 35 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

tt)

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

1,112 20.660/o

:t
c,

OT
Cl d)Y.:
5=

o
o

o
oF

z
Iu
d
Uz-^ulao-
q5E

oo
&.

J

UE,>{:u>Gg
o-u
d.

U
J

cn
U
zU
uF
6

zo
F
d.u
coo^
Su
=aFV

T
UtuO\92d<^oo+u<=(,d=

w
U
qdrUud

0 U

7/612022 3:13:58 PM

s39

728

0,

1B

449

419'

263

587',

294,

308,

252

25.

s30:

33

222

45g 
'

133 
'

115:

s,382

0

0

s,382

137

177

0

6

103

57

57

182

21

69

63

6

89

2

40

67

25

1,112

25.42o/o

24.310/o

33.33o/o

22.94o/o

ttu.o!:.

21.670/o

31 .010/0

7.140/o

22.40o/o

25.00%

24.00o/o

16.79o/"

6.060/o

18.020/o

14.600/o

18.80%

6.960/o

20.66o/o

5t

65

0

2

AE

aa

15

8,1

B

23

26

2

41

6

10

34

al

B

419

6.86%

8.93o/o

123

194

0

3

138

:.:
66

120

B6

9B

60

3

130

14

75

118

25

49

1,442

22.82o/o

26.650/o

76

aa

0

4

39

2a

?1

6s

)1

)J

40

2

tU

1

42

48

17

11

607

14.100/o

1058%

22.220/0

8.69%

nol.':

12.550/o

11.070/o

7.14o/o

10.71o/o

15.870/o

8.00%

11.32o/o

3.03o/o

18.92%

10.460/o

12.78o/o

9.57o/o

11.28o/o

BO

101

0

2

B5

100

50

108

53

30

4

112

7

20

ot

30

24

931

14.84%

13.87o/o

14

11

0

0

9

15

10

12

11

1

6

0

5

0

3

I)

6

1

119

2.600/o

1.51o/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

11.11o/o

5.57o/o

t'_t_':

5.70o/o

13.80%

2.72o/o

7.47o/o

10.320/o

8.00o/o

7.74o/o

1B.1Bo/o

4.50o/o

7.41%

9.02%

6.96o/o

7.790/o

16.670/o

30.73o/o

33.41o/o

25.100/o

20.44o/o

29.25%

31.820/0

23.810/0

12.000/o

24.53o/o

42.42%

33.78o/o

25.71%

18.80%

42.61o/o

26.79"/o

11.110/o

18.93o/o

23.870/o

14.45o/o

8.52o/o

36.73o/o

17.21%

11.90%

16.000/0

21.130/0

21.210/0

9.01o/o

18.95o/o

22.56o/o

20.87o/o

17.30o/o

0.00%

2.00o/o

'ill.
3.80%

2.040/o

3.74o/o

0.32o/o

2.38o/o

0.00o/o

0.94o/o

0.00%

1.35%

3.27o/o

4.51o/o

0.870/o

2.210/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

419

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0

0

7.79o/o 1,442 26.79% 607 11.28o/o 931 17.30o/o 1 1 9' 2.21o/o



Page: 36 of 53 71612022 3:13:58 PM



Page: 37 of 53

Member of the State Assembly 8th District (Vote for r) **** - rnsufficient rurnout to protect votet priuaca

71612022 3:13:58 PM

't)
e,

O-
PE
53

o
o

6
oF

zo
6eUFF
aa
5U
=d.

0)
oto
o

o
o
a
CJ:o
c
l

-o
q,

9-
3EaJod.>

o(J
o
E
FPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total'

Countywide - Total'

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1 nqq

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

f1E

324

0

7

225

226

100

229

132

150

95

9

240

1B

9B

194

59

67

2,399

0

0

2 1qq

360

469

0

12

262

zz5

176

418

186

182

174

20

330

16

137

297

B3

55

3,408

100.00%

100.00%

360

469

0

12

263

223

176

418

186

182

174

20

330

tb

137

297

a2

55

? 1na

0

0

3,409

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

'1 16

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

3,408 99.970/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

100.00%

99.620/o

100.007o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%,

99.97o/o

0

0

0

0:

0

0

0

0:

0

0

0

0,

0

0

0

10,855

0

0

0

0

0



Page: 38 of 53

State Superintendent of Public Instruction (Vote for r) ****-rnsufficientrurnouttoprctectvoterpriuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

.o
o)

9.
.6h
ood.>

oI
q,
E
i=

q)

o-
c,Ec
:)

t):(9JU
-6dd

H?
=U

zu>(,<2d.u

Ubzd
1f

c,
o
a
c,

oPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

i03

104

105

lub

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

'1 18

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countylvide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

2:1

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,808

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

0

0

10,855

B9

145

0

2

7B

70

41

126

34

53

41

3

70

5

46

60

24

14

902

1B

20

0

2

12

17

t5

21

19

21

15

2

21

2

9

14

14

5

226

3.630/o

3.09o/o

11.760/o

2.93o/o

4.49o/o

5.53o/o

4.040/o

6.690/o

7s3%

6.58o/o

7.690/o

4.20o/o

6.90o/o

4.76o/o

3.25o/o

11.86o/o

4.630/o

4.61%

0

0

0

0

0

0

113

169

0

6

B5

46

48

161

30

EC

39

12

95

2

26

B1

16

B

994

22.78o/o

26,08%

35.29o/o

20.7!%o:.

12.14o/o,

20.43o/o

30.96o/o:

10.560/o

19.71o/o:

17 .110/o

46.150/o

19.00o/o

6.90o/o

13.76o/o

18.79o/o

13.56o/o

7.41o/o

20.27o/o

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

5,808

0 0

0

0

0

0

00

902 994 20.27o/o 226 4.610/o



Page: 39 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

(9
zo
J
d
u
z

z
o
e(,

=

!q,

O-pe
5=

CJ

o

G
oF

oz.o\z>
>dz=
OIFF

(9
z
u
(9
&oU
I

J

oU
i

51

52

0

0

32

2'

25

43

14

It)

20

0

)a

1

1E

39

15

6

408

10.28o/o

8.02o/o

53

5B

0

)
J

5B

75

17

41

84

29

35

2

o2

6

25

6B

17

20

675

10.690/o

8.95%

2l

3B

0

2

14

22

It)

24

)a

11

19

2

39

)

8

31

9

Itt

321

0

6.25o/o

5.860/"

5B

71

0

0

41

29

11

53

24

1)

20

'1

47

3

12

51

B

1)

475

172

240

0

4

168

158

95

177

B1

lz5

BO

7

178

12

B4

147

39

41

1,806

34.68o/"

37.040/0

496

648

0,

410

379

235.

520

284

279

1)a

26

500

29

189

431'

118

108

4,905

0

0

4,905

0.00o/o

7.80o/o

8.440/o

10.64%

8.27"/"

4.930/o

5.73o/o

8.77o/o

0.000/o

7.40o/o

3.45o/o

13.23%'

9.0s%

12.710/o',

5.56o/o

8.32o/o

17.65%

14.150/o

,trl.r:

7.23%:

7.B}o/ol

29.58o/o

10.390/0

15.35o/o,

7.690/o'

16.60o/o'

20.690/o

13.23o/o',

15.78%

14.41%'

1B.52yo

13.760/o'

11.76o/o

3.410/o

5.B0o/o

6.81"/o

4.620/o

11.270/o

4.30o/o

8.33o/o

7.690/o;

7.80%

10.34o/o

4.23o/o'

7.19o/o

7.630/o

14.81o/o

6.540/o

11.690/o

10.960/0

0.00%

10.00%

7.650/o

8.94o/o

10.19%

8A5%

8.24o/o,

8.77o/o'

3.85o/o

9.40o/o.

10.34%

6.35o/o

11.83%:

6.78o/"

11.110/o

9.680/",

23.53o/o

40.98o/o

41.690/o

40.430/0

34.04o/o

28.520/0

44.09o/o

35.09o/o

26.920/o

35.600/o

41.38o/o

44.44o/o

34.11%

33.0s%

37.96o/o

36.820/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

0

1,806 36.820/o

00 0

0

0

0

408 8.32o/o' 675 13.760/o 321 6.540/o 475 9.68o/o



Page: 40 of 53

County Superintendent of Schools (Vote for r) n**n-Insufficientrurnouttoprotectvoterpriuaca

71612022 3:13:58 PM

?6
cra
*.2co (n

o
o
e
o)

o

OJ

eo
c
l

ro
E9..9h
SEn>

6(J
q,

E
F

c)

o
oF

o
o,

O-
PE
53Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

|5

116

117

118

'1 19

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

11s

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

3,890 100.00%

585

793

0

19

488

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

z3>

491

142

122

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47.

1,099

B3

412'

996

264

266

10,855

0

0

10,855

190

313

0

4

171

153

B9

226

B1

119

93

7

172

7

67

119

52

55

'1,918

395

480

0

15

317

296

187

421

z5t

213

176

zz

398

)-7

168

372

90

67

3,890

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00o/o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

'100.00%

100.00%

100.00o/o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

395

480

0

15

317

296

187

421

237

213

176

22

398

)a

168

372

90

67

3,890

0

0

3,890

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,91 B

0

0

0

0

0

0



Page: 41 of 53

Supervisor, rst District (Vote for r) """" - Insufficient Tutnout to Prctect Voter Priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

6U
o
E
F

585

793

0

19

1,397

o
9-
EEood>

&U-U
J
Uo-
J&
U

Ju
&
co

I
ruu

0)
o
e
0,

o

qJ

o
e
qJ

c
f

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

999

1,329

0

26

2,354

0

0

2,354

184

197

0

7

388

164

325

0

5

494

0

0

0

0

0

43

<t

0

1

96

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

33.95o/o

26.59o/o

30.26%

43.860/o

27.78o/o

37.970/o

0

0

1,397

38.B9o/o

29.82o/o

3BB 29.82o/o

0

0

96 494 37.970/"



Page: 42 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

)
J

a
d
U

z
d
F

c)
o

o
oF

qJ

O-vl d,Y.r
53

194

219

0

6

419

542

741

0

1B

1,301

35.790/0

29.550/o

33.33o/o

32.21o/o

0

419 32.210/o

0

0

0

0

0 0

0

1,301

0

0

71612022 3:13:58 PM



Page: 43 of 53

Supervisor, 3rd District (Vote for r) ***x - Insufficient Turnout to Protect Voter Priuacy

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

108

109

110

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

o
o

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

o|J
(l
E
tr

o
o-
Ctroc:)

oo
o
.9
oro
d,

Fzg
J

o
5
(f

Ju
(9
o
oooF

c,
o
eo
o

0

0

0

U

1

276

647

318

1,241

440

944

ot I

2,261

0

0

2,261

20

5B

a?

161

71

183

19

273

26.790/o

29.37o/o

6.11o/o

22.77o/o

11

23

7

41

0

0

41

0

1

0

1

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

108

109

110

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

7.55o/o

9.31%

26.69%

13.43o/"

0

0

1,241

0

0

161 13.43o/o 273 22.77%



71612022 3:13:58 PM
Page: 44 of 53

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

108

109

110

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

dU(,u

o
oV

z.=
UJ

-LJ
=dUg

o
o

c
oF

D
OJ

Y.=
its

41

76

171

288

15.47o/o

12.20o/o

54.98o/o

24.02%

133

306

3B

477

50.19o/o

49.12o/o

12.220/o

39.78%

265

623

311

1.199

0

0

1,199

0

0

0

0

00

02BB 24.02%

0

0

477 39.780/"



Page: 45 of 53

ASS€SSOf (VOte fOf f) nn** - rnsufficientTut'nout to protect votet. privaw

71612022 3:13:58 PM

:o
C,

O-
ue
53

o

6
oF

Ud

u
J

uL-
?e
Ol^

o
o
ao
o

(u

o
a
qJ
ro
cl

q,

9.gE
crod.>

GU
OJ

E
i:Precinct

€ountywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114 .

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

)51

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,808

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

8

440

944

oaa

617

432

47

1,099

83

412

996

264

266

10,855

150

239

0

2

t)t

130

6B

176

6B

98,

7o

6

135

o

56'

127

43

49,

1,562

0

0

1,562

435

554

0

17

351

319

208

471

250

234

199.

23

435

26

179

364

99

4,246

100.00%

100.00%

435

554

0

17

351

319

208

471

250

234

199

12

435

26

179

364.

99

t5

4,246

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

4,246 100.000/o

100.00%

100.007o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.0070

100.0070

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0:

0

0

0'

0

0

0

0

0

5,808

0

0

10,855

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4,246



Page: 46 of 53

AUditOf (VOtg fOf f) **** - InsufficientTutnout to protectvoter priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

G
L,'
q)
E
i:

E
ci

O-
Ps
5=

cl
o

6
oF

qJ

o

E
(lt

.9
Olot

o
d.u
I
CLU
Io

oto
o

o,
o
aq,
E
c
lPrecinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

1'1 5

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

552

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

4tt

996

264

266

10,855

153

272

0

3

141

137

69

1BB

64

104

76

6

138

10

(a

104

33

47

1,603

0

0

1,603

432

521

0

tb

347

312

207

459

254

228

193

a)

432

24

177

387

109

75

4,205

100.00%

100.00%

'100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

432

521

0

It)

347

312

207

459

254

228

193

a)

432

24

177

387

'109

75

4,205

0

0

4,205

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

,102

,'103

'104

ros

106

107
:

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

'1 15

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

4,205 100.000/0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

10,855

0

0

0

0

0



Page: 47 of 53

COfOnef (VOte fOf f) **** - InsufficientTurnoutto pt.otectvoter priuacy

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

't11

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

o

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

o2

412

996

264

266

10,855

71612022 3:13:58 PM

o
OT
E.!
53

o
o

6
I
F

":*ZZ.)-i60{>

o
-
o
o

o
o
e
qJ
!
l

!o
o

.!:4
o)
a,d

(!
\J

c,
E
F

276

647

318

552

269

29

570

34

23s

491

142

122

5,BOB.

140

253

0

5

133

130

65

410

54

100

7

130

9

54

112

35

46

1,523

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

445

540

0

14

J55

319

211

469

264

232

197

440

25

181

379

107

76

4,285

100.00%

100.00%

445

540

0

14

355

319

211

469

264

232

197

))

440.

25

181

379

107

76

4,285

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

'100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

10,855

0

0

1,523

0:

0

4,285'

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

04,285 100.000/05,BOB.



Page: 48 of 53

County Clerk-Recorder (Vote for r) xx"" - Insufficient Turnout to Protect Voter Priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

!
(IJ

O-
Ee
5=

o
o
(g

o
F

zoFxuv,[,
J
Ju
z
o

(u

oto
o

OJ

o
e
c,.o
c)

E
c,

.b-
.(^h
SEd>

lo
L,,

(u
E
i=Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

sB5

793

n

19

488

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29'

570

34

23s

491

142

122

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012,

8

440

944'

877

617

432

47

1,099

o2

412

996.

264

266

10,855

144

240

0

4

134

:::.

64

178

52

105

64

7

122

7

60

111

34

46

1,501

441

5s3

0

15

354

320

212

469

266

227

205

22

448

27

175

380

108

76

4,307

100.00%

100.00%

441

553

0

15

354

320

212

469

266

227

205

22

448

27

175

380

108

76

4,307

0

0

4,307

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

'103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

4,307 100.00"/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

s,808

0tt

0

0

0

0

0

0

10,8s5

0

0

1.501



Page: 49 of 53

District Attorney (Vote for r) **** - Insufficient rurnout to protect voter priuacy

71612022 3:13:58 PM

!
c)

O-
CI.e
5;

!
E9-gE
ood>

6U
o
E
i=

o
d.

-
-j

o
:EF

a)
o

E
oF

o

t
c,

o

o
ot
a,
!
l

0

0

0'

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269,

29

570

34

235

491'

142

122,

5,808

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

o1a

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

158

tot

0

5

159

143

66

181

94

99

79

7

145

7

66

129

47

50

1,697

427

s32

0

14

329

306

210

466

224

233

190

22

425

27

169

362

95

-l)

4,111

100.00%

100.00%

427

532

0

14

329

306

210

466

224

233

190

22

425

27

169

362

95

72

4,111

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

4,111 100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

1 00 0070

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0

0

s,808

0

0,

10,855 1,697

0

0

0

0,

0:

0

0

0,

0'

0

0

0
:

0:

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4,111



71612022 3:13:58 PM
Page: 50 of 53

Public AdminiStrator (VOte for f) **** - Insufficient rurnout to Protectvoter Priuacy

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

'1 1B

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

Precinct

z
oFe
co

a
d
F
o-

c)
o
a
(L,

o

o

a
AJ
!c

o
9-gE
ood>

o
o

6
oF

oU
o
E
F

0

0

0

0

0

(l,
2c
O-
PE
5=

Countywide

Electionwide

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

5/U

34

23s

491

142

122

5,808

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

o2

412

996

264

266

10,8s5

157'

254

0

4

158

152

75

195

6B

104

75

9

168

9

61

128

41

50

1.709

101

102

103

104

,105

106

107

108

109

110

: 111

112

113

' 114

1'1 5

116

117

'1 18

119

428

539

0

15

330

297

201

452

250

228

194

20

402

25

174

363

101

72

4,099

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

,".11.

100.00%

100.00%

100.007o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

428

s39

0

15

330

:::.

201:

452

250

228

194

20

402

25

174

363

101

72

4,099

0

0

4,099

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5,BOB

0

0

10,855

0

0

1,709

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

4,099 100.00%



Page: 51 of 53

Sheriff (VOte fOr f ) **** - Insuffi.cient Tutnout to prctect votet priuaca

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

o

585

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

532

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

8

440

944

6t I

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

71612022 3:13:58 PM

6U
q,
E
F

u
z<u
!-

"-2FU6t

q,

ot(u
o

o)

a
OJ
Ec
f,

lCo
o
'6)
a)
&.

ot
-Ut
d
d
U
&U

24

a1

0

1

1)

12

4

14

))

7

1

21

1

7

a2

12

13

234

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0

1,919 34.45%

1)O

279

0

3

135

126

B2

240

B6

116

115

12

195

10

6t

114

36

37

1,919

42.420/0

36.19%

16.670/0

29.090/o

29.86o/o

31.06o/"

37.33o/o

28.290/o

37.42o/o'

43.890/0.

42.860/0

35.65%

30.30%

38.160/o

24.36%

27.690/o

33.94o/o'

34.45%

123

173

0

4

tt5

180

B6

146

107

77

67

10

146

11

76

230

61

51

1,722

21.93%

22.44%

22.22o/o

37.28o/o

tu.tl:.

32.58o/o

22.71o/o

35.20o/o

24.84o/o

25.57o/o

35.710/o

26.690/o

3333%

33.33o/o

49.15o/o

46.92o/o

46.790/o

30.91o/o

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

5,BOB

0

0

10,855

0

0

3

0

0

234Countywide - Total 1,722 30.910/o



Page: 52 of 53

Precinct

zoFrhz-o
z
Ju\z

d.u
Fu
lr.Jo

o
o

G
o
F

E
d,

E;
sg
53

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

178

270

0

11

129

96

B1

226

BO

99

6B

3

7

90

21

14

1,602

31.73o/o:

35.02o/o

3.92%;

6.360/o

561

771

0

1B

464

422

264

643

304

310

262

z6

14t

228

468

130

109

5,571

0

0

5,571

22

49

0

0

27

)n

15

31

31

18

12

3

29

5

13

34

12

7

328

0

0

0

0

0

0

61 .11o/o.

27.80o/o

22.75%

30.68o/o

35.15o/o:

26.32%,

31.94o/o

25.95o/o

10.71o/o'

32.360/o

21.21%

22.81o/o

1923%

rc.15%:

12.84o/o'

28.76/o

0.000/o

5.82Vo:

4.740/o

5.680/o

4.82o/o,

10.20o/o

5.81o/o

4.58o/o

10.71%

5.30o/o

15.150/o

5.70o/o

7.26%

9.23o/o

6.424/"

5.89%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

U

0

0

0

71612022 3:13:58 PM

1,602 28.76% 328 5.890/o



Page: 53 of 53

Treasurer-Tax CollgctOr (Vote for f) **x*-rnsufficientTurnouttoprotectvotetpriuaca

716/2022 3:13:58 PM

!q,

c,
.9
Olo
d

a
U
o
E
i:

o
o

6
oF

o
o

U
&
F<<

J=

-U

o
ot
OJ

o

CJ

oto
c
l

o
o
o,

l

s
0,

3Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

'1 10

111

112

113

114

115

llt)

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

58s

793

0

19

4BB

449

9

276

647

318

332

269

29

570

34

235

491

142

122

5,BOB

0

0

5,BOB

999

1,329

0

26

1,004

1,012

B

440

944

877

617

432

47

1,099

B3

412

996

264

266

10,855

154

265

0

6

134

:::.

67

190

59

96

74

7

135

9

56

104

30

46

1,569

0

0

1,569

431

528

0

IJ

354

315

209

457

259

236

19s

z1

435

1E

179

387

112

76

4,239

100.00%

100.007o

431

s28

0

13

354

315

209

457

259

236

195

22

435

25

179

387

112

76

4,239

0

0

0

0

0

0

Precinct

Countywide

Electionwide

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

Electionwide - Total

Cumulative

Cumulative

Cumulative - Total

Countywide - Total

0

0'
4,239 100.000/o

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%,

100"00%,

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

10,855

0,

0,

:

:

0

0:

o

0

0

0

0'

0

4,239





 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Meaghan McCamman 
  
SUBJECT:  SBC CERF Partnership Letter  
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the Collective Partnership Agreement Letter supporting the Community Economic 
Reslience Fund (CERF) proposal for the Eastern Sierra region developed by the Sierra Business Council, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Sierra Business Council (SBC) will apply to represent the Eastern Sierra Region in California’s Community 
Economic Resilience Fund (CERF). SBC is applying to act as the Regional Converner and Fiscal Agent for the 
seven counties included in the CERF’s Eastern Sierra region.  As Regional Convener and Fiscal Agent, SBC will 
convene a "High Road Transition Collaborative" (HRTC) to engage in a data-informed, inclusive, and transparent 
planning process to develop a regional economic recovery plan and a set of economic development projects that 
will encourage the generation of high road jobs. A description of SBC's proposal is attached. 
  
As part of the CERF application process, SBC is required to provide signed letters of support known within the 
application as the Collective Partnership Agreement Letter. Inyo County staff have been active participants in 
SBC's preparations for this application, and hope to serve a key role in the HRTC.   
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Community Economic Resilience Fund (CERF) was created to promote a sustainable and equitable 
recovery from the economic distress of COVID-19 by supporting new plans and strategies to diversify local 
economies and develop sustainable industries that create high-quality, broadly accessible jobs for all 
Californians. 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could decide not to approve this Partnership letter.  This is not advised, as this is an important part of 
SBC's application to serve as the Regional Convener and Fiscal Agent.  To our knowledge, there are no other 
applicants to serve as Convener or Fiscal Agent from the Eastern Sierra Region.   
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
SBC, City of Bishop, Town of Mammoth Lakes, Mono County, Mariposa County, Calaveras County, Tuolumne 
County, Amador County and Alpine County.  

https://www.sierrabusiness.org/archives/cerf/
https://opr.ca.gov/economic-development/just-transition/cerf.html
https://opr.ca.gov/economic-development/just-transition/cerf.html
https://opr.ca.gov/economic-development/just-transition/docs/20211217-CERF_Final_Regions_FAQ.pdf


Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
FINANCING: 
No fiscal impact 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County CERF Partnership Agreement 
2. Sierra Business Council Overview - Eastern Sierra CERF Region - Vision and Goals Proposed 

Governance Model 
  
APPROVALS: 
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 6/29/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/30/2022 
Leslie Chapman Approved - 7/7/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 7/7/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 7/7/2022 



[Insert Logo]

Collective Partnership Agreement Letter
Community Economic Resilience Fund: Eastern Sierra Region

June 29, 2022

Dear HRTC Convener:

The County of Inyo is pleased to inform you that we are in agreement with the goals of the 
Community Economic Resilience Fund (CERF) proposal for the Eastern Sierra region 
developed by the Sierra Business Council, who would act as both the Fiscal Agent and the 
Regional Convener.

We have reviewed the initial governance model for the High Road Transition Collaborative 
(HRTC). We understand that this governance model may change as the process evolves.

We agree to participate in the CERF process, and agree to participate in the development of 
the governance model, the outreach and engagement plan, and the development of a budget 
for the project. We are committed to working collaboratively with a wide range of regional 
stakeholders from a diverse set of interests to participate in the process to create a more 
inclusive, equitable, and competitive regional economy. 

The County of Inyo is a rural County in the Eastern Sierra, flanked to the west by the Sierra 
Nevada and to the east by the White Mountains and the Inyo Mountains. With an area of 10,192 
square miles, Inyo County is the second-largest county by area in California, after San 
Bernardino County. Almost one-half of that area is within Death Valley National Park. 
However, with a population density of 1.8 people per square mile, it also has the second-
lowest population density in California, after Alpine County.  

Inyo County communities serve as the Gateway to Death Valley National Park and to the High 
Sierra.  Travel and recreation sectors are an important part of the local economy, though 
government, utilities and healthcare remain the largest employers.  The County government 
has invested considerably in economic development, most recently by creating a Small 
Business Resource Center to support the development and growth of small, locally owned 
businesses in a variety of sectors.  

Our primary contact for this process will be:

Contact person: Meaghan McCamman
Email Address: Mmccamman@inyocounty.us
Phone: 760-937-1253
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.



[Insert Logo]

Authorized signatory: 

Leslie Chapman
County Administrative Officer

Date: June 29, 2022



EASTERN SIERRA REGION 
COMMUNITY ECONOMIC RESILIENCE FUND (CERF)

 

High Road Transition Collaborative (HRTC)
 

The Vision of the Eastern Sierra Community Economic Resilience Fund HRTC is to engage in a data-
informed, inclusive, and transparent planning process to develop a regional economic recovery plan and
set of projects that will encourage the generation of high road jobs. 

VISION 

The planning process will focus on inclusivity for all regional stakeholders, with special emphasis on 
historically less engaged stakeholders such as disinvested communities, tribal communities, and workers.

The planning process will utilize the skills and knowledge of local entities and organizations and ongoing 
regional processes, including those developed by local governments, workforce training organizations, 
economic development organizations, regional educational institutions, and community-based 
organizations. 

The planning process will be guided by Sierra Business Council as regional fiscal agent and convener but 
will be governed by a diverse and representative HRTC council and a series of topical committees, where 
power is shared and all ideas are welcomed. 

The planning process will include a vigorous, multi-channel, and bilingual public outreach plan specifically 
designed to reach traditionally disinvested workers and communities, and represent the geographic and 
cultural diversity of the region. 

The planning process will result in a regional economic recovery and transition plan that will emphasize 
job quality and access, economic competitiveness and resiliency, regional equity, and the long-term 
sustainability of the region. The planning process will align with state policies across a broad range of 
objectives, including the need to advance a climate-resilient and carbon-neutral economy.

The final adopted plan will include a broad range of data including stakeholder and asset mapping, 
identification of opportunities for alignment with existing regional economic planning processes and 
documents, a regional labor market and economic cluster analysis, and identification of regional climate 
and public health trends. The final adopted plan will also include specific strategies for the growth of
targeted industries, strategies for increasing economic diversification, and strategies for increasing 
economic equity. 

The final adopted plan is likely to be one regional plan with two subcomponents addressing a specific set 
of east side and west side strategies and implementation opportunities. The plan will identify specific 
projects for inclusion in future CERF funding proposals.

GOALS



EQUITY, 
CLIMATE & 

LABOR 
COMMITTEE

BUSINESS & 
WORKFORCE 
COMMITTEE

LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT 

COMMITTEE

DATA, 
PLANNING, & 

DRAFTING 
COMMITTEE

PROJECT 
COMMITTEE

PROPOSED GOVERNANCE MODEL 
Eastern Sierra CERF Region

This draft governance structure is intended to include representation from the large geography of our 
Eastern Sierra region and include representation on the High Road Transition Collaborative (HRTC) Council 
or HRTC Committees of all of the required and suggested stakeholders.  A non-voting participant will chair 
the HRTC Council meetings. 
 
The HRTC is intended to conduct all of its Council and Committee meetings in a public forum, in a 
transparent manner, in a hybrid-meeting format, with each stakeholder enjoying equal status and authority. 

The composition of the HRTC Council and Committees may change over time as additional stakeholders are 
engaged. The governance model also allows for the addition of Committees as circumstances or direction 
changes based on data analysis and dialogue. The name of the HRTC may be changed after the grant is 
awarded. 

HRTC COUNCIL

21 members + Non-voting Chair
3 from each county (or cities within 
counties)
5 are chairs of the Committees
Represents the diversity of required 
stakeholders

HRTC COUNCIL
7 voting members per Committee
Open ex officio membership
1 voting member from each County
Committee chair sits on HRTC board
Committee decisions matriculate to 
board

COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

DECISION MAKING PROCESS
Decision making in committees and board based on modified consensus model (Support, 
Can Live With, Abstain, Oppose) 
1. Straw Poll
2. Discussion 
3. Poll-No consensus triggers vote. 
Operational decisions require a majority vote of committee and board members. 
Project decisions require a ⅔ vote of committee and board members. 



EASTERN SIERRA REGION 
COMMUNITY ECONOMIC RESILIENCE FUND (CERF)

 

High Road Transition Collaborative (HRTC)
 

The HRTC process is required to be highly public, participatory, and transparent in nature. The HRTC will 
welcome all community stakeholders, and fairly and equitably consider all ideas brought forward by 
stakeholders. The CERF program calls for an 18-24 month planning process but we will make our best 
effort at completing the public portion of the effort in 18 months. 

HRTC meetings will be hybrid meetings allowing for both in-person and virtual attendance, and will be 
held alternately (depending upon weather) on the east side and west side of the Sierra crest. In-person 
attendance at a majority of the meetings (depending upon pandemic) is expected. 

Stipends will be available to voting members who are non-elected officials (and allowed to accept 
payment for meetings and committee obligations). Stipends are optional and intended to increase 
participation from stakeholders with lower resources or capacity to engage in the CERF process. Mileage 
and lodging costs will be reimbursed for all participating voting members if approved in advance.

The HRTC structure proposed by Sierra Business Council (SBC) requires 51 individual stakeholders to act as 
voting members, and one non-voting member to act as the HRTC Board Chair. The various roles are 
described in detail below. 

ROLE DESCRIPTIONS & APPROXIMATE TIME COMMITMENTS

Council members will be expected to participate in one 1 ½ hour-long hybrid meeting per month for 18-24 
months, to need approximately 3 hours per month for document review and comment, and to occasionally 
meet with community stakeholders. 

Approximate Time Commitment: 6-8 hours per month or 70-90 hours per year
Proposed Number of Council Members: 21
An SBC project manager will staff the Council.

HRTC COUNCIL, COMMITTEE, AND PUBLIC PARTICIPANTS
High Road Transition Collaborative Council Member

The Council chair will be a non-voting member. The Chair will be expected to attend each 1 ½ hour-long 
monthly Council meeting for 18-24 months, usually but not always, in person, to need approximately 3 
hours per month for document review, and to communicate on a regular basis with Council members to 
ensure all issues are being forwarded to the Council. 

Approximate time commitment: 10 hours per month or 120 hours per year  
An SBC project navigator will staff the Council chair. 

High Road Transition Collaborative Board Chair



EASTERN SIERRA REGION 
COMMUNITY ECONOMIC RESILIENCE FUND (CERF)

 

High Road Transition Collaborative (HRTC)
 

Committee members are expected to participate in one 1 ½ hour-long hybrid meeting per month for 18-24 
months, to need approximately 3 hours per month for document review and comment, and to meet 
occasionally with community stakeholders. 

Approximate Time Commitment: 6-8 hours per month or 70-90 hours per year
Proposed Number of Committee Members: 35 (7 voting members for each of the 5 committees)
An SBC project navigator will staff the Committees. 

High Road Transition Collaborative Committee Member

One member of each committee will also serve on the Council. This position will require participation in 
two 1½ hour per month meetings plus approximately 4 hours per month of document review. 

Approximate Time Commitment: 8-12 hours per month or 96-144 hours per year
Proposed Number of Committee Liaisons: 5 

High Road Transition Collaborative Committee Liaison

Committee membership is open to all public participants, however there are only 7 voting members per 
committee. The public is encouraged to participate in as many meetings as they choose. 

High Road Transition Collaborative Participant

Fiscal Agent: SBC will act as the Fiscal Agent. The Fiscal Agent is responsible for the project application, 
receives the funding, manages contracting, manages the overall finances of the project, makes
disbursements to contractors, and acts as the intermediary in grant management, including grant 
reporting. The Fiscal Agent must have legal authority, history, and capacity to administer state funds. 

Regional Convener: SBC will act as the Regional Convener. SBC is the lead organization tasked with 
organizing an inclusive group of regional stakeholders to form the HRTC and implement the planning grant 
in its region. SBC anticipates the program will be staffed with a project manager, two community project 
navigators (one on the west side and one on the east side), and will issue contracts to other community 
organizations for portions of the public outreach, engagement, and capacity building activities necessary.  

Project Team



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Personnel 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Sue Dishion 
  
SUBJECT:  N/A 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the  AIG Nonstandardized Governmental Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan Adoption Agreement 
#001 and authorize the County Administrator or designee  to sign all future plan documents. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
Approving the plan document will keep the AIG Deferred Compensation Plan in compliance with all the IRS 
requirements for the 401(k) plan.   
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement, however this is not recommended as our 401 (k) plan 
would be out of compliance with IRS regulations.  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  
FINANCING: 
There are no financial impacts with this agreement. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Adoption Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/6/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/6/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/7/2022 
Keri Oney Approved - 7/7/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

John Vallejo Final Approval - 7/7/2022 



© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 1 62568.002

 Inyo County
NONSTANDARDIZED GOVERNMENTAL PROFIT SHARING/401(k) PLAN

ADOPTION AGREEMENT #001
 

By executing this Nonstandardized Governmental Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan Adoption Agreement (the "Adoption Agreement" or “AA”), 
the undersigned Employer agrees to establish or continue a Governmental Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan for its Employees. The 
Governmental Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan adopted by the Employer consists of the Governmental Defined Contribution Pre-Approved 
Plan Basic Plan Document #03 (the "BPD") and the elections made under this Adoption Agreement (collectively referred to as the 
"Plan"). An Employer may jointly co-sponsor the Plan by signing a Participating Employer Adoption Page, which is attached to this 
Adoption Agreement. This Plan is effective as of the Effective Date identified on the Signature Page of this Adoption Agreement.

SECTION 1
EMPLOYER INFORMATION

1-1 EMPLOYER INFORMATION. 

Name: Inyo County

Address: 224 North Edwards    
Independence, California 93526

Telephone: 760-878-0292

1-2 EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN). 95-6005445

1-3 FORM OF BUSINESS.
 State or political subdivision of a State
 State agency or instrumentality
 Indian Tribal Government
 Describe other Employer qualified to adopt a Governmental Plan:  

1-4 EMPLOYER’S TAX YEAR END. The Employer’s tax year ends December 31

1-5 RELATED EMPLOYERS. Is the Employer part of a group of Related Employers (as defined in Section 1.83 of the Plan)? 

 Yes

 No

If yes, Related Employers may be listed below. A Related Employer must execute a Participating Employer Adoption Page for 
Employees of that Related Employer to participate in this Plan. 

[Note: This AA §1-5 is for informational purposes and the Employer need not list Related Employers. The failure to identify all 
Related Employers will not jeopardize the qualified status of the Plan.]

SECTION 2
PLAN INFORMATION

2-1 PLAN NAME. Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan
Original Effective Date: April 1, 2002
Restatement Effective Date: January 1, 2022  

2-2 PLAN NUMBER. 002

2-3 TYPE OF PLAN.

 (a) This Plan is a Profit Sharing Plan. (Note: May also include Matching Contributions under AA §6B.)
 (b) This Plan is a Grandfathered Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan. [Note: To qualify as a Grandfathered Profit Sharing/401(k) 

Plan, the Employer must have maintained a 401(k) plan as of May 6, 1986. A Grandfathered Profit Sharing/401(k) 
Plan may also include a plan of an Indian Tribal Government, as defined in Section 1.58 of the Plan. See Section 1.55 
of the Plan for a more detailed description of a Grandfathered Profit Sharing/401(k) Plan.]



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 2 – Plan Information

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 2 62568.002

 (c) The Plan is intended to be a FICA Replacement Plan (as described under Section 4.03 of the Plan). [Note: If this 
subsection (c) is checked, elections under this AA must be consistent with the requirements of a FICA Replacement Plan 
as described under Section 4.03 of the Plan.]  

2-4 PLAN YEAR. 
 (a) Calendar year.
 (b) The 12-consecutive month period ending on  each year.
 (c) The Plan has a Short Plan Year running from          to         .  

2-5 FROZEN PLAN. Check this AA §2-5 if the Plan is a frozen Plan to which no contributions will be made.
 This Plan is a frozen Plan effective           . (See Section 3.02(a)(2) of the Plan.) 

[Note: As a frozen Plan, the Employer will not make any contributions with respect to Plan Compensation earned after such date 
and no Participant will be permitted to make any contributions to the Plan after such date. In addition, no Employee will become 
a Participant after the date the Plan is frozen.] 

2-6 MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN. Is this Plan a Multiple Employer Plan as defined in Section 16.07 of the Plan? (See Section 
16.07 of the Plan for special rules applicable to Multiple Employer Plans.)
 Yes
 No  

2-7 PLAN ADMINISTRATOR. 
 (a) The Employer identified in AA §1-1.
 (b) Name: 

Address:  

Telephone:   

2-8 DEFINITION OF DISABLED. An individual is considered Disabled for purposes of applying the provisions of this Plan if: 

 (a) The individual is covered by the Employer’s disability insurance plan and is determined to be disabled under such plan.

 (b) The individual is determined to be disabled by the Social Security Administration under Section 223(d) of the Social 
Security Act for purposes of determining eligibility for Social Security benefits.

 (c) The Plan Administrator determines an individual is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of a 
medically determinable physical or mental impairment that can be expected to result in death or which has lasted, or can 
be expected to last, for a continuous period of not less than 12 months. The permanence and degree of such impairment 
shall be supported by medical evidence. The Plan Administrator may establish reasonable procedures for determining 
whether a Participant is Disabled. 

[Note: An Employer may elect any or all of (a), (b) and (c) above. If more than one of (a), (b) and (c) is selected, the 
hierarchy for determining whether an individual is considered Disabled is (a), then (b) and then (c), unless described 
otherwise under separate administrative procedures or under subsection (d) below.]

 (d) Alternative definition of Disabled: 

[Note: Any alternative definition described in this subsection (d) will apply uniformly to all Participants under the Plan 
and will be applied in a nondiscretionary manner. The Employer may describe different definitions of Disabled for 
different purposes under the plan.] 

SECTION 3
ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES

3-1 ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES. In addition to the Employees identified in Section 2.02 of the Plan, the following Employees are 
excluded from participation under the Plan with respect to the contribution source(s) identified in this AA §3-1. See Sections 
2.02(d) and (e) of the Plan for rules regarding the effect on Plan participation if an Employee changes between an eligible and 
ineligible class of employment. 

Deferral Match ER

   (a) No exclusions



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 3 – Eligible Employees

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 3 62568.002

Deferral Match ER

   (b) Collectively Bargained Employees

   (c) Non-resident aliens who receive no compensation from the Employer which 
constitutes U.S. source income

   (d) Leased Employees

   (e) Employees paid on an hourly basis

   (f) Employees paid on a salaried basis

   (g) Employees in an elected or appointed position.

   (h) Part-Time Employees (as defined in Section 1.71 of the Plan) 

   (i) Seasonal Employees (as defined in Section 1.89 of the Plan)

   (j) Temporary Employees (as defined in Section 1.93 of the Plan)

   (k) Employees eligible for another qualified plan sponsored by the Employer or a 
Related Employer
Specify name of other qualified plan (optional): 

   (l) Other: Employees not classified as Deputies
  

[Note: The elections under the ER column apply to any Pick-Up Contributions and any After-Tax Employee Contributions 
authorized under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (l) above. The exclusions inserted may not result in a 
specifically named individual or a finite group (such as employees hired before a certain date) being the only employee or 
employees participating under the plan in violation of the permanency requirements or Treas. Reg. §1.401-1(b)(2). It is 
permissible to limit participation under the plan to an employee or employees of a specifically named position or positions.] 

SECTION 4
MINIMUM AGE AND SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

4-1 ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS – MINIMUM AGE AND SERVICE. An Eligible Employee (as defined in AA §3-1) who 
satisfies the minimum age and service conditions under this AA §4-1 will be eligible to participate under the Plan as of his/her 
Entry Date (as defined in AA §4-2 below). 

(a) Service Requirement. An Eligible Employee must complete the following minimum service requirements to participate 
in the Plan. 

Deferral Match ER

   (1) There is no minimum service requirement for participation in the Plan.

   (2)         Year(s) of Service (as defined in Section 2.03(a)(1) of the Plan and AA 
§4-3).

   (3) The completion of at least         Hours of Service during the first       months of 
employment (or the first       days of employment) or the completion of a Year 
of Service (as defined in AA §4-3), if earlier. 
 (i) An Employee who completes the required Hours of Service satisfies 

eligibility at the end of the designated period, regardless if the 
Employee actually works for the entire period.

 (ii) An Employee who completes the required Hours of Service must 
also be employed continuously during the designated period of 
employment. See Section 2.03(a)(2) of the Plan for rules regarding 
the application of this subsection (ii).

   (4) The completion of        Hours of Service during an Eligibility Computation 
Period. [Note: An Employee satisfies the service requirement immediately 
upon completion of the designated Hours of Service rather than at the end of 
the Eligibility Computation Period.]

   (5) Full-time Employees are eligible to participate as set forth in subsection (i) 
below. Employees who are “part-time” Employees must complete a Year of 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 4 – Minimum Age and Service Requirements

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 4 62568.002

Deferral Match ER
Service (as defined in AA §4-3). For this purpose, a full-time Employee is any 
Employee not defined in subsection (ii) below.

(i) Full-time Employees must complete the following minimum service 
requirements to participate in the Plan:

 (A) There is no minimum service requirement for participation in the 
Plan.

 (B) The completion of at least         Hours of Service during the first 
        months of employment or the completion of a Year of 
Service (as defined in AA §4-3), if earlier.

 (C) Under the Elapsed Time method as defined in AA §4-3(c) below.

 (D) Describe: 

[Note: Any conditions provided under this subsection (D) must 
be definitely determinable.]

(ii) Part-time Employees must complete a Year of Service (as defined in AA 
§4-3). For this purpose, a part-time Employee is any Employee (including 
a temporary or seasonal Employee) whose normal work schedule is less 
than:

 (A) For this purpose, a part-time Employee is any Employee 
(including a temporary or seasonal Employee) whose normal 
work schedule is less than:

 (I)         hours per week.

 (II)         hours per month.

 (III)         hours per year.

 (B) Describe part-time Employees for this purpose:  

[Note:  A part-time employee must be described as an individual 
who works less than a specified number of hours (no greater 
than 40) during a standard work week.]

   (6) Under the Elapsed Time method as described in AA §4-3(c) below. 

   (7) Describe eligibility conditions:  
  

(b) Minimum Age Requirement. An Eligible Employee (as defined in AA §3-1) must have attained the following age with 
respect to the contribution source(s) identified in this AA §4-1(b).

Deferral Match ER

   (1) There is no minimum age for Plan eligibility.

   (2) Age 21.

   (3) Age       .
  

 (c) Special eligibility rules. The following special eligibility rules apply with respect to the Plan: 

[Note: Any elections under the ER column under this AA §4-1 apply to any Pick-Up Contributions authorized under AA §6-1(d) 
and any After-Tax Employee Contributions authorized under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (c) above. 
Subsection (c) above may be used to apply the eligibility conditions selected under this AA §4-1 separately with respect to 
different Employee groups or different contribution formulas under the Plan. Any special rules under subsection (c) above must 
be definitely determinable.]   



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 4 – Minimum Age and Service Requirements

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 5 62568.002

4-2 ENTRY DATE. An Eligible Employee (as defined in AA §3-1) who satisfies the minimum age and service requirements in AA 
§4-1 shall be eligible to participate in the Plan as of his/her Entry Date. For this purpose, the Entry Date is the following date with 
respect to the contribution source(s) identified under this AA §4-2. 

Deferral Match ER

   (a) Immediate. The date the minimum age and service requirements are satisfied (or 
date of hire, if no minimum age and service requirements apply).

   (b) Semi-annual. The first day of the 1st and 7th month of the Plan Year.

   (c) Quarterly. The first day of the 1st, 4th, 7th and 10th month of the Plan Year.

   (d) Monthly. The first day of each calendar month.

   (e) Payroll period. The first day of the payroll period.

   (f) The first day of the Plan Year.

   (g) Describe Entry Date: 
[Note: Entry Date under this subsection (g) must be no later than 3 years after the 
date described under (a).]

An Eligible Employee’s Entry Date (as defined above) is determined based on when the Employee satisfies the minimum age and 
service requirements in AA §4-1. For this purpose, an Employee’s Entry Date is the Entry Date:

Deferral Match ER

   (h) next following satisfaction of the minimum age and service requirements. 

   (i) coinciding with or next following satisfaction of the minimum age and service 
requirements.

N/A   (j) nearest the satisfaction of the minimum age and service requirements. 

N/A   (k) preceding the satisfaction of the minimum age and service requirements. 

This section may be used to describe any special rules for determining Entry Dates under the Plan. For example, if different Entry 
Date provisions apply for the same contribution sources with respect to different groups of Employees, such different Entry Date 
provisions may be described below. 

Deferral Match ER

   (l) Describe any special rules that apply with respect to the Entry Dates under this AA 
§4-2: 

[Note: The elections under the ER column under this AA §4-2 apply to any Pick-Up Contributions selected under AA §6-1(d) and 
any After-Tax Employee Contributions selected under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (l) above. Any special 
rules under subsection (l) above must be definitely determinable.]     

4-3 DEFAULT ELIGIBILITY RULES. In applying the minimum age and service requirements under AA §4-1 above, the 
following default rules apply with respect to all contribution sources under the Plan: 

 Year of Service. An Employee earns a Year of Service for eligibility purposes upon completing 1,000 Hours of Service 
during an Eligibility Computation Period. Hours of Service are calculated based on actual hours worked during the 
Eligibility Computation Period. (See Section 1.57 of the Plan for the definition of Hour of Service.)

 Eligibility Computation Period. If one Year of Service is required for eligibility, the Plan will determine subsequent 
Eligibility Computation Periods on the basis of Plan Years. (See Section 2.03(a)(3)(i) of the Plan). If more than one Year of 
Service is required for eligibility, the Plan will determine subsequent Eligibility Computation Periods on the basis of 
Anniversary Years. (See Section 2.03(a)(3)(ii) of the Plan.) 

To override the default eligibility rules, complete the applicable sections of this AA §4-3. If this AA §4-3 is not completed for a 
particular contribution source, the default eligibility rules apply.  

Deferral Match ER

   (a) Year of Service. Instead of 1,000 Hours of Service, an Employee earns a Year of 
Service upon the completion of         Hours of Service during an Eligibility 
Computation Period.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 4 – Minimum Age and Service Requirements

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 6 62568.002

Deferral Match ER

   (b) Eligibility Computation Period (ECP). The Plan will use Anniversary Years, 
unless more than one Year of Service is required under AA §4-1(a), in which case 
the Plan will shift to Plan Years if the Employee does not earn a Year of Service 
during the first Eligibility Computation Period. (See Section 2.03(a)(3)(ii) of the 
Plan.) 

   (c) Elapsed Time method. Eligibility service will be determined under the Elapsed 
Time method. An Eligible Employee (as defined in AA §3-1) must complete a 
period of service, as designated below, to participate in the Plan. (See Section 
2.03(a)(6) of the Plan.) 
 (1) For Deferral, must complete a          period of service
 (2) For Match, must complete a           period of service
 (3) For ER, must complete a          period of service 
[Note: Under the Elapsed Time method, service will be measured from the 
Employee’s employment commencement date (or reemployment commencement 
date, if applicable) without regard to the Eligibility Computation Period designated 
in Section 2.03(a)(3) of the Plan.]

   (d) Equivalency Method. For purposes of determining an Employee’s Hours of 
Service for eligibility, the Plan will use the Equivalency Method (as defined in 
Section 2.03(a)(5) of the Plan). The Equivalency Method will apply to:
 (1) All Employees.
 (2) Only Employees for whom the Employer does not maintain hourly 

records. For Employees for whom the Employer maintains hourly 
records, eligibility will be determined based on actual hours worked.

Hours of Service for eligibility will be determined under the following Equivalency 
Method. 
 (3) Monthly.  190 Hours of Service for each month worked.
 (4) Weekly. 45 Hours of Service for each week worked.
 (5) Daily. 10 Hours of Service for each day worked.
 (6) Semi-monthly. 95 Hours of Service for each semi-monthly period 

worked. 
 (7) Describe Equivalency Method: 

[Note: Any description of an Equivalency Method under this subsection 
(7) must be definitely determinable.] 

   (e) Special eligibility provisions.  

[Note: The elections under the ER column under this AA §4-3 apply to any Pick-Up Contributions authorized under AA §6-1(d) 
and any After-Tax Employee Contributions selected under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (e) above. Any 
special rules under subsection (e) above must be definitely determinable.]  

4-4 EFFECTIVE DATE OF MINIMUM AGE AND SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. The minimum age and/or service 
requirements under AA §4-1 apply to all Employees under the Plan. An Employee will participate with respect to all contribution 
sources under the Plan as of his/her Entry Date, taking into account all service with the Employer, including service earned prior 
to the Effective Date. 

To allow Employees employed on a specified date to enter the Plan without regard to the minimum age and/or service conditions, 
complete this AA §4-4. 

Deferral Match ER

   An Eligible Employee who is employed by the Employer on the following designated 
date will enter the Plan on the designated date without regard to minimum age and/or 
service requirements (as designated below): 
 (a) the Effective Date of this Plan (as designated in the Employer Signature Page). 
 (b) the date the Plan is executed by the Employer (as indicated on the Employer 

Signature Page).  
 (c)            [insert date no earlier than the Effective Date of this Plan] 

An Eligible Employee who is employed on the designated date will enter the Plan on the 
designated date without regard to the minimum age and service requirements under AA 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 4 – Minimum Age and Service Requirements

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 7 62568.002

§4-1. If both minimum age and service conditions are not waived, select subsection (d) 
or (e) below to designate which condition is waived under this AA §4-4.
 (d) This AA §4-4 only applies to the minimum service condition.  
 (e) This AA §4-4 only applies to the minimum age condition. 
The provisions of this AA §4-4 apply to all Eligible Employees employed on the 
designated date unless designated otherwise under subsection (f) or (g) below.

 (f) The provisions of this AA §4-4 apply to the following group of Employees 
employed on the designated date:   

 (g) Describe special rules:   
[Note: An Employee who is employed as of the designated date described in this AA §4-
4 will enter the Plan as of such date unless a different Entry Date is designated under 
subsection (g) above. The elections under the ER column apply to any Pick-Up 
Contributions authorized under AA §6-1(d) and any After-Tax Employee Contributions 
selected under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (g) above. Any 
special rules under subsection (g) above must be definitely determinable.]

    
4-5 SERVICE WITH PREDECESSOR EMPLOYER. Service with the following Predecessor Employers will be counted for 

purposes of determining eligibility, vesting and allocation conditions under this Plan, unless designated otherwise under 
subsection (a) or (b) below. (See Sections 2.06, 3.07(b) and 6.07 of the Plan.) 

 (a) The Plan will count service with the following Predecessor Employers:  

Name of Predecessor Employer Eligibility   Vesting
Allocation
Conditions

 (1)   

     
 (b) Describe any special provisions applicable to Predecessor Employer service:     

4-6 BREAKS IN SERVICE. Generally, an Employee will be credited with all service earned with the Employer, including service 
earned prior to a Break in Service. To disregard service earned prior to a Break in Service for eligibility purposes, complete this 
AA §4-6. (See Section 2.07 of the Plan.)

 (a) If an Employee incurs at least one Break in Service, the Plan will disregard all service earned prior to such Break in 
Service for purposes of determining eligibility to participate.  

 (b) If an Employee incurs at least            Breaks in Service, the Plan will disregard all service earned prior to such Break in 
Service for purposes of determining eligibility to participate. [Enter “0” if prior service will be disregarded for all 
rehired Employees.] 

 (c) The Nonvested Participant Break in Service rule applies to all Employees, including Employees who have not 
terminated employment.

 (d) Describe:  

SECTION 5
COMPENSATION DEFINITIONS

5-1 TOTAL COMPENSATION. Total Compensation is based on the definition set forth under this AA §5-1. See Section 1.94 of 
the Plan for a specific definition of the various types of Total Compensation. 
 (a) W-2 Wages  
 (b) Code §415 Compensation  
 (c) Wages under Code §3401(a)  

[Note: For purposes of determining Total Compensation, each definition includes Elective Deferrals as defined in Section 1.36 of 
the Plan, pre-tax contributions to a Code §125 cafeteria plan or a Code §457 plan, and qualified transportation fringes under 
Code §132(f)(4).] 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 5 – Compensation Definitions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 8 62568.002

5-2 POST-SEVERANCE COMPENSATION. Total Compensation includes post-severance compensation, to the extent provided in 
Section 1.94(b) of the Plan, unless otherwise elected below. 

 (a) Exclusion of post-severance compensation from Total Compensation. The following amounts paid after a 
Participant’s severance of employment are excluded from Total Compensation. 

 (1) Unused leave payments.  Payment for unused accrued bona fide sick, vacation, or other leave, but only if the 
Employee would have been able to use the leave if employment had continued.

 (2) Deferred compensation.  Payments received by an Employee pursuant to a nonqualified unfunded deferred 
compensation plan, but only if the payment would have been paid to the Employee at the same time if the 
Employee had continued in employment and only to the extent that the payment is includible in the 
Employee’s gross income.  

[Note: Plan Compensation (as defined in Section 1.75 of the Plan) includes any post-severance compensation amounts 
that are includible in Total Compensation. The Employer may elect to exclude all compensation paid after severance of 
employment from the definition of Plan Compensation under AA §5-3(j) below or may elect to exclude specific types of 
post-severance compensation from Plan Compensation under AA §5-3(l) below.]  

 (b) Continuation payments for disabled Participants. If this subsection (b) is not elected, Total Compensation does not 
include continuation payments for disabled Participants. If this subsection (b) is elected, Total Compensation shall 
include post-severance compensation paid to a Participant who is permanently and totally disabled, as provided in 
Section 1.94(c) of the Plan.  

5-3 PLAN COMPENSATION. Plan Compensation is Total Compensation (as defined in AA §5-1 above) with the following 
exclusions described below. 

Deferral Match ER

   (a) No exclusions.

N/A   (b) Elective Deferrals (as defined in Section 1.36 of the Plan), pre-tax contributions to 
a cafeteria plan or a Code §457 plan, and qualified transportation fringes under 
Code §132(f)(4) are excluded.

   (c) All fringe benefits (cash and noncash), reimbursements or other expense 
allowances, moving expenses, deferred compensation, and welfare benefits are 
excluded.

   (d) Compensation above $       is excluded. 

   (e) Amounts received as a bonus are excluded.

   (f) Amounts received as commissions are excluded.

   (g) Overtime payments are excluded.

   (h) Amounts received for services performed for a non-signatory Related Employer are 
excluded. (See Section 2.02(c) of the Plan.)
[Note: If this subsection (h) is not elected, amounts received for services performed 
for a non-signatory Related Employer are INCLUDED in Plan Compensation.]

   (i) “Deemed §125 compensation” as defined in Section 1.94(d) of the Plan.

   (j) Amounts received after termination of employment are excluded. (See Section 
1.94(b) of the Plan.) 

   (k) Differential Pay (as defined in Section 1.94(e) of the Plan).

   (l) Describe adjustments to Plan Compensation: 
  

[Note: Any modification under subsection (l) must be definitely determinable and preclude Employer discretion. The elections 
under the ER column under this AA §5-3 apply to any Pick-Up Contributions authorized under AA §6-1(d) and any After-Tax 
Employee Contributions selected under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under subsection (l).] 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 5 – Compensation Definitions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 9 62568.002

5-4 PERIOD FOR DETERMINING COMPENSATION. 

(a) Compensation Period. Plan Compensation will be determined on the basis of the following period(s) for the 
contribution sources identified in this AA §5-4. [Note: If a period other than the Plan Year applies for any contribution 
source, any reference to the Plan Year as it refers to Plan Compensation for that contribution source will be deemed to 
be a reference to the period designated under this AA §5-4.]

Deferral Match ER

   (1) The Plan Year.

   (2) The calendar year ending in the Plan Year.

   (3) The Employer's fiscal tax year ending in the Plan Year.

   (4) The 12-month period ending on           which ends during the Plan Year.
   

(b) Compensation while a Participant. Unless provided otherwise under this subsection (b), in determining Plan 
Compensation, only compensation earned while an individual is a Participant under the Plan with respect to a particular 
contribution source will be taken into account. 

To count compensation for the entire Plan Year for a particular contribution source, including compensation earned 
while an individual is not a Participant with respect to such contribution source, check below. (See Section 1.75(b) of 
the Plan.)

Deferral Match ER

   All compensation earned during the Plan Year will be taken into account, 
including compensation earned while an individual is not a Participant.

  
(c) Few weeks rule. The few weeks rule (as described in Section 5.02(c)(7)(i) of the Plan) will not apply unless designated 

otherwise under this subsection (c). 

 Amounts earned but not paid during a Limitation Year solely because of the timing of pay periods and pay 
dates shall be included in Total Compensation for the Limitation Year, provided the amounts are paid during 
the first few weeks of the next Limitation Year, the amounts are included on a uniform and consistent basis 
with respect to all similarly situated Employees, and no amounts are included in more than one Limitation 
Year.     

SECTION 6
EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS

6-1 EMPLOYER / EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS. The Employer/Employee may make the following contributions under the 
Plan:  

 (a) Employer Contributions under AA §6-2

 (b) Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions under AA §6-7(a)

 (c) Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions under AA §6-7(b)

 (d) Employer Pick-Up Contributions under AA §6-7(c) 

 (e) N/A. No Employer/Employee Contributions are permitted under the Plan [Skip to Section 6A]  

6-2 EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION FORMULA. For the period designated in AA §6-5(a) below, the Employer will make the 
following Employer Contributions on behalf of Participants who satisfy the allocation conditions designated in AA §6-6 below. 
Any Employer Contribution authorized under this AA §6-2 will be allocated in accordance with the allocation formula selected 
under AA §6-3. 

 (a) Discretionary contribution. The Employer will determine in its sole discretion how much, if any, it will make as an 
Employer Contribution.  

 (b) Fixed contribution. 
 (1) Fixed percentage.  % of each Participant’s Plan Compensation.
 (2) Fixed dollar.  $         for each Participant.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6 – Employer and Employee Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 10 62568.002

 (3) Determined in accordance with the terms of the Employment contract between an Eligible Employee and 
the Employer. [Note: If this subsection (3) is checked, the provisions of an Employment contract addressing 
retirement benefits will override any selection under this AA §6-2.] 

 (c) Contributions under Collective Bargaining Agreement, employment contract or equivalent arrangement. The 
Employer will make an Employer Contribution based on a Collective Bargaining Agreement, employment agreement or 
equivalent arrangement as follows:   
[Note: Insert the appropriate contribution formula (and allocation formula, if applicable) from the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement, employment agreement or equivalent arrangement. The formula must be definitely determinable 
as required under Treas. Reg. §1.401-1.] 

 (d) Service-based contribution. The Employer will make the following contribution:
 (1) Discretionary. A discretionary contribution determined as a uniform percentage of Plan Compensation for 

each period of service designated below.
 (2) Fixed percentage.        % of Plan Compensation paid for each period of service designated below.
 (3) Fixed dollar. $        for each period of service designated below.

The service-based contribution will be based on the following periods of service:
 (4) Each Hour of Service
 (5) Each week of employment
 (6) Describe period: 

The service-based contribution is subject to the following rules.

 (7) Describe any special provisions that apply to service-based contribution:   
 (e) Describe special rules for determining contributions under Plan: 

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (e) may only describe the basis for determining a discretionary service-
based contribution, such as a uniform dollar amount, and must be definitely determinable.]   

6-3 ALLOCATION FORMULA. 
 (a) Pro rata allocation. The discretionary Employer Contribution under AA §6-2(a) will be allocated:

 (1) as a uniform percentage of Plan Compensation. 

 (2) as a uniform dollar amount.  

 (b) Fixed contribution. The fixed Employer Contribution under AA §6-2 will be allocated in accordance with the 
selections made with respect to fixed Employer Contributions under AA §6-2.  

 (c) Permitted disparity allocation. The discretionary Employer Contribution under AA §6-2(a) will be allocated under the 
two-step method (as defined in Section 3.02(a)(1)(i)(B)(I) of the Plan), using the Taxable Wage Base (as defined in 
Section 1.92 of the Plan) as the Integration Level. 

To modify these default rules, complete the appropriate provision(s) below.
 (1) Integration Level. Instead of the Taxable Wage Base, the Integration Level is:

 (i)        % of the Taxable Wage Base, increased (but not above the Taxable Wage Base) to the next 
higher:
 (A) N/A  (B) $1
 (C) $100  (D) $1,000

 (ii) $          (not to exceed the Taxable Wage Base)

 (iii) 20% of the Taxable Wage Base

[Note: See Section 3.02(a)(1)(i)(B)(IV) of the Plan for rules regarding the Maximum Disparity Rate that may 
be used where an Integration Level other than the Taxable Wage Base is selected.]

 (2) Describe special rules for applying permitted disparity allocation formula: 

[Note: Any special rules under subsection (2) must be definitely determinable.]  
 (d) Uniform points allocation. The discretionary Employer Contribution designated in AA §6-2(a) will be allocated to 

each Participant in the ratio that each Participant's total points bears to the total points of all Participants. A Participant 
will receive the following points: 
 (1)         point(s) for each         year(s) of age (attained as of the end of the Plan Year).
 (2)         points for each $        of Plan Compensation.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6 – Employer and Employee Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 11 62568.002

 (3)         point(s) for each         Year(s) of Service. For this purpose, Years of Service are determined: 
 (i) In the same manner as determined for eligibility.
 (ii) In the same manner as determined for vesting.
 (iii) Points will not be provided with respect to Years of Service in excess of        .  

 (e) Employee group allocation. The Employer may make a separate discretionary Employer Contribution to the 
Participants in the following allocation groups. The Employer must notify the Trustee in writing of the amount of the 
contribution to be allocated to each allocation group. 

 (1) A separate discretionary Employer Contribution may be made to each Participant of the Employer (i.e., each 
Participant is in his/her own allocation group).

 (2) A separate discretionary or fixed Employer Contribution may be made to the following allocation groups. If 
no fixed amount is designated for a particular allocation group, the contribution made for such allocation 
group will be allocated as a uniform percentage of Plan Compensation to all Participants within that allocation 
group, unless otherwise designated as a uniform dollar amount below.
 The contribution made for each allocation group will be allocated as a uniform dollar amount to all 

Participants within the allocation group.
 Group 1: 

[Note: The Employee allocation groups designated above must be clearly defined in a manner that will not 
violate the definite allocation formula requirement of Treas. Reg. §1.401-1(b)(1)(ii).] 

(3) Special rules. Unless designated otherwise under this subsection (3), if a Participant is in more than one 
allocation group described in (2) above during the Plan Year, the Participant will receive an Employer 
Contribution based on the Participant’s status on the last day of the Plan Year. (See Section 3.02(a)(1)(i)(D) 
of the Plan.)

 (i) Determined separately for each Employee group. If a Participant is in more than one allocation 
group during the Plan Year, the Participant’s share of the Employer Contribution will be based on 
the Participant’s status for the part of the year the Participant is in each allocation group. 

 (ii) Describe: 

[Note: This subsection (ii) may only describe the amount of the Employer Contribution a 
Participant will receive when such Participant is in more than one allocation group. Any language 
under this subsection (ii) must be definitely determinable.]    

 (f) Age-based allocation. The discretionary Employer Contribution designated in AA §6-2(a) will be allocated under the 
age-based allocation formula so that each Participant receives a pro rata allocation based on adjusted Plan 
Compensation. For this purpose, a Participant’s adjusted Plan Compensation is determined by multiplying the 
Participant’s Plan Compensation by an Actuarial Factor (as described in Section 1.03 of the Plan). 
A Participant’s Actuarial Factor is determined based on a specified interest rate and mortality table. Unless designated 
otherwise under subsection (1) or (2) below, the Plan will use an applicable interest rate of 8.5% and a UP-1984 
mortality table.

  (1) Applicable interest rate. Instead of 8.5%, the Plan will use an interest rate of       % (must be between 7.5% 
and 8.5%) in determining a Participant’s Actuarial Factor. 

  (2) Applicable mortality table. Instead of the UP-1984 mortality table, the Plan will use the following mortality 
table in determining a Participant’s Actuarial Factor: 

  (3) Describe special rules applicable to age-based allocation: 

[Note: See Appendix A of the Plan for sample Actuarial Factors based on an 8.5% applicable interest rate and the 
UP-1984 mortality table. If an interest rate or mortality table other than 8.5% or UP-1984 is selected, appropriate 
Actuarial Factors must be calculated. Subsection (3) must provide for a definitely determinable allocation 
method.]  

 (g) Service-based allocation formula. The service-based Employer Contribution selected in AA §6-2(d) will be allocated 
in accordance with the selections made in AA §6-2(d).  

 (h) Describe special rules for determining allocation formula:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (h) must be described in a manner that precludes Employer discretion.]  



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6 – Employer and Employee Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 12 62568.002

6-4 CONTRIBUTIONS OF ACCRUED SICK, PTO AND/OR VACATION LEAVE. [Note: Do not complete this AA §6-4 and 
instead use AA§6-7(c) if this is an Employer Pick-Up Contribution.]

 (a) The Employer will make and allocate Employer Contributions of amounts of accrued unpaid sick leave, as described 
below: 

 (b) The Employer will make and allocate Employer Contributions of amounts of accrued unpaid vacation leave, as 
described below: 

[Note: The Employer must describe an Employer Contribution of accrued unpaid sick, and/or vacation leave that meets 
the following requirements:

 The leave converted under the arrangement can only be accrued unpaid leave;

 The leave converted can only be sick and/or vacation leave;

 The Employer must designate how often the conversions occur under this AA §6-4;

 The eligibility requirements for participation in the plan cannot be such that an Employee becomes a Participant 
only in the plan year in which the Employee terminates employment;

 The only accrued unpaid leave which can be converted under the arrangement must only be leave for which the 
Employee has no right to request a cash payment;

 The leave conversion formula can only be one which involves multiplying an Employee’s current daily rate of pay 
against the amount of accrued unpaid leave being converted; and 

 The leave conversion formula is definitely determinable.] 

6-5 SPECIAL RULES. No special rules apply with respect to Employer/Employee Contributions under the Plan, except to the extent 
designated under this AA §6-5. Unless designated otherwise, in determining the amount of the Employer/Employee Contributions 
to be allocated under this AA §6, the contribution will be based on Plan Compensation earned during the Plan Year.   

 (a) Period for determining Employer/Employee Contributions. Instead of the Plan Year, Employer/Employee 
Contributions will be determined based on Plan Compensation earned during the following period: [Note: The Plan 
Year must be used if the permitted disparity allocation method is selected under AA §6-3(c) above.]
 (1) Plan Year quarter

 (2) calendar month

 (3) payroll period

 (4) Other: 

[Note: Although Employer Contributions are determined on the basis of Plan Compensation earned during the period 
designated under this subsection (a), this does not require the Employer to actually make contributions or allocate 
contributions on the basis of such period. Employer Contributions may be contributed and allocated to Participants at 
any time within the contribution period permitted under Treas. Reg. §1.415(c)-1(b)(6)(B), regardless of the period 
selected under this subsection (a).]  

 (b) Limit on Employer Contributions. The Employer Contribution elected in AA §6-2 may not exceed:
 (1)       % of Plan Compensation

 (2) $      

 (3) A discretionary amount determined by the Employer applied in a uniform manner for all eligible Participants 
for the Plan Year. 

 (c) Offset of Employer Contribution. 

 (1) A Participant’s allocation of Employer Contributions under AA §6-2 of this Plan is reduced by contributions 
under                                      [insert name of plan(s)]. (See Section 3.02(a)(1) of the Plan.) 

 (2) In applying the offset under this subsection (c), the following rules apply:   
 (d) Special rules:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (d) must be definitely determinable.]   



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6 – Employer and Employee Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 13 62568.002

6-6 ALLOCATION CONDITIONS. A Participant must satisfy any allocation conditions designated under this AA §6-6 to receive 
an allocation of Employer Contributions under the Plan. [Note: No allocation conditions apply to After-Tax Employee 
Contributions or Employer Pick-Up Contributions under AA §6-7.]
 (a) No allocation conditions apply with respect to Employer Contributions under the Plan.  
 (b) Employment condition. An Employee must be employed with the Employer on the last day of the Plan Year.  
 (c) Minimum service condition. An Employee must be credited with at least:

 (1)         Hours of Service during the Plan Year.

 (i) Hours of Service are determined using actual Hours of Service.

 (ii) Hours of Service are determined using the following Equivalency Method (as defined under Section 
2.03(a)(5) of the Plan):

 (A) Monthly  (B) Weekly

 (C) Daily  (D) Semi-monthly

 (E) Describe: 

[Note: Any description under this subsection (E) must be definitely determinable.]
 (2)         consecutive days of employment with the Employer during the Plan Year.   

 (d) Exceptions. 
 (1) The above allocation condition(s) will not apply if the Employee:

 (i) dies.
 (ii) terminates employment due to becoming Disabled.
 (iii) becomes Disabled.
 (iv) terminates employment after attaining Normal Retirement Age.

[Note: This waiver of allocation conditions applies only once during the Participant’s employment 
with the Employer. Thus, if an Employee is rehired after such a waiver was applied to such 
Employee, the waiver of allocation conditions will not apply to a subsequent termination of 
employment. The Employer may modify this rule in subsection (e) below.]  

 (v) terminates employment after attaining Early Retirement Age.
[Note: This waiver of allocation conditions applies only once during the Participant’s employment 
with the Employer. Thus, if an Employee is rehired after such a waiver was applied to such 
Employee, the waiver of allocation conditions will not apply to a subsequent termination of 
employment. The Employer may modify this rule in subsection (e) below.]  

 (vi) is on an authorized leave of absence from the Employer.

 (2) The exceptions selected under subsection (1) above will apply even if an Employee has not terminated 
employment at the time of the selected event(s).

 (3) The exceptions selected under subsection (1) above do not apply to:

 (i) an employment condition under subsection (b) above.
 (ii) a minimum service condition under subsection (c) above.  

 (e) Describe any special rules governing the allocation conditions under the Plan:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (e) must be definitely determinable.]   

6-7 AFTER-TAX EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS AND EMPLOYER PICK-UP CONTRIBUTIONS. 

 (a) Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions. If permitted under this subsection (a), a Participant may contribute 
any amount as Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions up to the Code §415 Limitation (as defined in Section 5.02 
of the Plan), except as limited under this subsection (a).

 (1) Limits on Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions. If this subsection (1) is checked, the following 
limits apply to Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions:

 (i) Maximum limit.  A Participant may make Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions up to: 

 (A)             % of Plan Compensation

 (B) $            

for the following period:



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6 – Employer and Employee Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 14 62568.002

 (C) the entire Plan Year.

 (D) the portion of the Plan Year during which the Employee is eligible to participate.

 (E) each separate payroll period during which the Employee is eligible to participate.

 (ii) Minimum limit.  The amount of Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions a Participant may 
make for any payroll period may not be less than:

 (A)             % of Plan Compensation

 (B) $              

(2) Change or revocation of Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions. In addition to the Participant’s 
Entry Date under the Plan, a Participant’s election to change or resume an after-tax election will be effective 
as set forth under the After-Tax Employee Contributions election form or other written procedures adopted by 
the Plan Administrator. A Participant must be permitted to change or revoke an after-tax election at least once 
per year. Unless the After-Tax Employee Contributions election form or other written procedures adopted by 
the Plan Administrator provide otherwise, a Participant may revoke an after-tax election (on a prospective 
basis) at any time. Unless designated otherwise in a Participant’s after-tax election form, a Participant’s 
affirmative election to make an After-Tax Employee Contribution will cease upon termination of employment 
and the Participant will need to make a new election upon rehire.

 (3) Other limits or special rules relating to Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions: 

[Note: Any limits described under this subsection (3) must be consistent with the provisions of Section 3.04 of 
the Plan.]

 (b) Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions. If this subsection (b) is checked, Employees are required to make 
Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions in order to participate under the Plan. 

 (1) Amount of Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions. Employees are required to contribute the 
following amount in order to participate in the Plan:

 (i)             % of each Employee’s Total Compensation.

 (ii) $             for each Participant.

 (iii) Describe rate or amount: 

 (2) Special rules applicable to Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions: 

 (c) Employer Pick-Up Contributions. Each Participant will be required to make a Pick-up Contribution to the Plan equal 
to the amount specified under this subsection (c). Any amounts contributed pursuant to this subsection (c) will be 
picked up by the Employer pursuant to Code §414(h) and will be treated as Employer Contributions under the Plan. 
Such contributions and earnings thereon will be 100% vested at all times. (See Section 3.03 of the Plan.)

 (1) The following amounts will be contributed to the Plan as an Employer Pick-Up Contribution:

 (i)             % of Plan Compensation.

 (ii) $             per pay period. 

 (iii) Any amount from             % to             % of Plan Compensation, as designated by the Employee.

[Note:  This subsection (iii) may only be selected if the Employee designates the amount as a one-
time irrevocable election.] 

 (2) Elect this subsection (2) if an Employee may make a one-time irrevocable election not to make Employer 
Pick-Up Contributions under the Plan. 

 (3) Special rules applicable to Employer Pick-Up Contributions:  

[Note: Any Employer Pick-Up Contributions made under this subsection (c) must satisfy the requirements of Section 
3.03 of the Plan. See AA §11-4 for an Employee’s ability to elect out of making Employer Pick-Up Contributions.]  

SECTION 6A
SALARY DEFERRALS

6A-1 SALARY DEFERRALS. Are Employees permitted to make Salary Deferrals under the Plan?

 Yes.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 15 62568.002

 No. [If “No” is checked, skip to Section 6B.] 

6A-2 MAXIMUM LIMIT ON SALARY DEFERRALS. Unless designated otherwise under this AA §6A-2, a Participant may defer 
any amount up to the Elective Deferral Dollar Limit and the Code §415 Limitation (as set forth in Sections 5.02 and 5.03 of the 
Plan). 

 (a) Salary Deferral Limit. A Participant may not defer an amount in excess of:

 (1)          % of Plan Compensation.

 (2) $         .

[Note: If both subsection (1) and (2) above are checked, the deferral limit is the lesser of the amounts selected.]

Any limit described in subsection (1) or (2) above applies with respect to the following period:

 (3) Plan Year.  

 (4) the portion of the Plan Year during which the individual is eligible to participate.

 (5) each separate payroll period during which the individual is eligible to participate.

 (b) Limits on deferrals on bonus payments. [Note: This §6A-2(b) only may be selected, if bonus payments are not 
excluded under AA §5-3.] 

 (1) The same limits specified in (a)(1) and (a)(2) above apply to bonus and non-bonus Plan Compensation, 
Employees may defer any amounts out of bonus payments, subject to the Elective Deferral Dollar Limit and the 
Code §415 Limitation (as defined in Sections 5.02 and 5.03 of the Plan) and any other limit on Salary Deferrals 
under this AA 6A-2. The Employer may impose special limits on bonus payments or may impose special limits 
on bonus payments under the Salary Deferral Election. (See Section 3.02(c)(2) of the Plan.) 

 (2) A Participant may defer up to        % (not to exceed 100%) of any bonus payment (subject to the Elective 
Deferral Dollar Limit and the Code §415 Limitation), without regard to any other limits described under this AA 
§6A-2. The Employer may impose special limits on bonus payments under the Salary Deferral Election. (See 
Section 3.02(c)(2) of the Plan.)

 (3) Describe special rules applicable to deferrals on bonus payments: 

[Note: If this subsection (b) is checked, bonus payments may not be excluded from Plan Compensation in the 
Deferral column under AA §5-3(e).]

 (c) Describe any other limits that apply with respect to Salary Deferrals under the Plan:  

6A-3 MINIMUM DEFERRAL RATE. Unless designated otherwise under this AA §6A-3, no minimum deferral requirement applies 
under the Plan. Alternatively, a Participant must defer at least the following amount in order to make Salary Deferrals under the 
Plan.

 (a)        % of Plan Compensation for a payroll period.

 (b) $        for a payroll period.

 (c) Describe:  

[Note: If more than one limit applies under this AA §6A-3, the minimum deferral rate is the lesser of the amounts designated 
under this AA §6A-3.] 

6A-4 CATCH-UP CONTRIBUTIONS. Catch-Up Contributions (as defined in Section 3.02(c)(2)(iv) of the Plan) are permitted under 
the Plan, unless designated otherwise under this AA §6A-4.

 Catch-Up Contributions are not permitted under the Plan. 

6A-5 ROTH DEFERRALS. Roth Deferrals (as defined in Section 3.02(c)(2)(v) of the Plan) are not permitted under the Plan, unless 
designated otherwise under this AA §6A-5.

 (a) Availability of Roth Deferrals. Roth Deferrals are permitted under the Plan. [Note: If Roth Deferrals are effective as 
of a date later than the Effective Date of the Plan, designate such special Effective Date in AA §6A-8(b) below. Roth 
Deferrals may not be made prior to January 1, 2006.]

(b) Distribution of Roth Deferrals.  Unless designated otherwise under this subsection (b), to the extent a Participant 
takes a distribution or withdrawal from his/her Salary Deferral Account(s), the Participant may designate the extent to 
which such distribution is taken from the Pre-Tax Deferral Account or from the Roth Deferral Account. (As described 
under Section 7.11(b)(2) of the Plan for default distribution rules if a Participant fails to designate the appropriate 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 16 62568.002

Account for corrective distributions from the Plan, such distribution may be withdrawn equally from both the Pre-Tax 
Salary Deferral Account and the Roth Deferral Account or the Employer may withdraw such amounts first from either 
the Pre-Tax Salary Deferral Account or the Roth Deferral Account.)

Alternatively, the Employer may designate the order of distributions as listed below:

 (1) Any distribution will be taken on a pro rata basis from the Participant’s Pre-Tax Deferral Account and Roth 
Deferral Account.

 (2) Any distribution will be taken first from the Participant’s Roth Deferral Account and then from the 
Participant’s Pre-Tax Deferral Account.

 (3) Any distribution will be taken first from the Participant’s Pre-Tax Deferral Account and then from the 
Participant’s Roth Deferral Account.

(c) In-Plan Roth Conversions.  Unless elected under this AA §6A-5(c), the Plan does not permit a Participant to make an 
In-Plan Roth Conversion under the Plan. To override this provision to allow Participants to make an In-Plan Roth 
Conversion, subsection (1) below must be checked.

 (1) Effective date. Effective                            [not earlier than 1/1/2013], a Participant may elect to convert all or 
any portion of his/her non-Roth vested Account Balance to an In-Plan Roth Conversion Account.  

[Note: The Plan must provide for Roth Deferrals under AA §6A-5(a) above as of the effective date designated 
in this subsection (1). An election under this subsection (1) does not affect an In-Plan Roth Conversion that 
was allowed under prior Plan provisions.] 

(2) In-Service Distribution. 

 (i) For a Participant to convert his/her eligible contributions to Roth Deferrals through an In-Plan Roth 
Conversion, the Participant need not be eligible to take a distribution from the Plan. [Note: If this 
subsection (i) is checked, a Participant may convert any or all of the eligible contribution sources 
to Roth Deferrals through an In-Plan Roth Conversion.]

 (ii) For a Participant to convert his/her eligible contributions to Roth Deferrals through an In-Plan Roth 
Conversion, a Participant must be eligible for a distribution of any amounts converted to Roth 
Deferrals through an In-Plan Roth Conversion. Thus, only amounts that are eligible for distribution 
under AA §9 or AA §10 are eligible for In-Plan Roth Conversion.

(3) Contribution sources. An Employee may elect to make an In-Plan Roth Conversion from all available 
contribution sources under the Plan. 

To override this default provision to limit the contributions sources available for In-Plan Roth Conversion, 
select the applicable contribution sources from which an In-Plan Roth Conversion is available:

 (i) Pre-tax Salary Deferrals

 (ii) Employer Contributions

 (iii) Matching Contributions

 (iv) After-Tax Contributions 

 (v) Rollover Contributions 

 (vi) Employer Pick-Up Contributions

 (vii) Describe:  

[Note: Any contribution sources described in this subsection (vii) must be definitely determinable 
and not subject to Employer discretion.]



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 17 62568.002

(4) Limits applicable to In-Plan Roth Conversions. No limits apply with respect to In-Plan Roth Conversions, 
unless designated otherwise under this subsection (4).

 (i) Roth conversions may only be made from contribution sources that are fully vested (i.e., 100% 
vested). 

[Note: If an In-Plan Roth Conversion is permitted from partially-vested sources, special rules apply 
for determining the vested percentage of such amounts after conversion. See Section 6.09 of the 
Plan.]

 (ii) A Participant may not make an In-Plan Roth Conversion of less than $       (may not exceed $1,000).

 (iii) A Participant may not make an In-Plan Roth Conversion of any outstanding loan amount. 

[Note: If this subsection (iii) is not checked, a Participant may convert amounts that are 
attributable to an outstanding loan, to the extent the loan relates to a contribution source that is 
eligible for conversion under subsection (3) above.]

 (iv) Describe: 

[Note: Any selection in this subsection (iv) must be definitely determinable and not subject to 
Employer discretion.]

(5) Amounts available to pay federal and state taxes generated from an In-Plan Roth Conversion. No 
special provisions apply to allow Participants to withdraw funds to pay federal or state taxes generated from 
an In-Plan Roth Conversion, except as provided otherwise under this subsection (5).

 (i) In-service distribution. If the Plan does not otherwise permit an in-service distribution at the time 
of the In-Plan Roth Conversion and this subsection (i) is checked, a Participant may elect to take an 
in-service distribution solely to pay taxes generated from the In-Plan Roth Conversion to the extent 
such in-service distribution would otherwise be permitted under Section 7.10 of the Plan.

[Note: If this subsection (i) is checked, a Participant may take an in-service distribution only to the 
extent such distribution would otherwise be permitted under the provisions of Section 7.10 of the 
Plan. Thus, for example, a Participant may not take an in-service distribution of amounts 
attributable to Salary Deferrals prior to age 59½.]

 (ii) Participant loan. Generally, a Participant may request a loan from the Plan to the extent permitted 
under Section 13 of the Plan and AA §B. However, to the extent a Participant loan is not otherwise 
allowed and this subsection (ii) is selected, a Participant may receive a Participant loan solely to pay 
taxes generated from an In-Plan Roth Conversion. 

[Note: If this subsection (ii) is selected and Participant loans are not otherwise authorized under 
the Plan, any Participant loan made pursuant to this subsection (ii) will be made in accordance 
with the default loan policy described in Section 13 of the Plan.]

(6) Distribution from In-Plan Roth Conversion Account. Distributions from the In-Plan Roth Conversion 
Account will be permitted at the same time as permitted for Roth Deferrals, as set forth under AA §10-1, 
unless designated otherwise under this subsection (6). 

 (i) In-service distributions will not be permitted from an In-Plan Roth Conversion Account. 

 (ii) An in-service distribution may be made from the In-Plan Roth Conversion Account at any time.

 (iii) Describe distribution options: 

 (d) Describe any special rules that apply to Roth Deferrals under the Plan:  

6A-6 SALARY DEFERRAL ELECTIONS. 

(a) Change or revocation of deferral election: In addition to the Participant’s Entry Date under the Plan, a Participant’s 
election to change or resume a deferral election will be effective as set forth under the Salary Reduction Agreement or 
other written procedures adopted by the Plan Administrator. A Participant must be permitted to change or revoke a 
deferral election at least once per year. Unless the Salary Reduction Agreement or other written procedures adopted by 
the Plan Administrator provide otherwise, a Participant may revoke a deferral election (on a prospective basis) at any 
time.

(b) Salary deferral elections of rehired participants: Unless designated otherwise below, a Participant’s affirmative 
election to defer (or to not defer) will cease upon termination of employment and the Participant will need to make a 
new election upon rehire.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 18 62568.002

 Participant’s affirmative election does not cease upon termination of employment. If this subsection (b) is 
selected, a terminated Participant’s affirmative election to defer (or to not defer) will not cease upon termination 
of employment and the Participant’s affirmative election to defer (or to not defer) in effect at the time of 
employment termination will apply upon rehire.

[Note: The Employer may modify the rules applicable to rehired employees under the Salary Reduction 
Agreement or other administrative procedures.]  

6A-7 AUTOMATIC CONTRIBUTION ARRANGEMENT. No automatic contribution provisions apply under Section 
3.02(c)(2)(iii) of the Plan, unless provided otherwise under this AA §6A-7.

 (a) Automatic deferral election. Upon becoming eligible to make Salary Deferrals under the Plan (pursuant to AA §3 and 
AA §4), a Participant will be deemed to have entered into a Salary Deferral Election for each payroll period, unless the 
Participant completes a Salary Deferral Election (subject to the limitations under AA §6A-2 and AA §6A-3) in 
accordance with procedures adopted by the Plan Administrator. 

 (1) Effective date of Automatic Contribution Arrangement. The automatic deferral provisions under this AA 
§6A-7 are effective as of:

 (i) The Effective Date of this Plan as set forth under the Employer Signature Page.

 (ii)                   [insert date no earlier than the Effective Date of the Plan]

 (iii) As set forth under a prior Plan document. [Note: If this subsection (iii) is checked, the automatic 
deferral provisions under this AA §6A-7 will apply as of the original Effective Date of the automatic 
contribution arrangement. Unless provided otherwise under this AA §6A-7, an Employee who is 
automatically enrolled under a prior Plan document will continue to be automatically enrolled 
under the current Plan document.] 

 (2) Automatic Contribution Arrangement. Check this subsection (2) if the Plan is designated as an Automatic 
Contribution Arrangement, as described under Section 3.02(c)(2)(iii) of the Plan. [Note: Unless an election is 
made under this AA §6A-7 that is inconsistent with the requirements of an Eligible Automatic Contribution 
Arrangement (EACA), the Automatic Contribution Arrangement will qualify as an EACA, as described in 
Code §414(w).]

 (i) Automatic deferral amount. 

 (A)        % of Plan Compensation.

 (B) $       .

 (ii) Automatic increase. If elected under this subsection (ii), the automatic deferral amount will 
increase each Plan Year by the following amount.  

 (A)        % of Plan Compensation. 

 (B) $         .

 (C) If this (C) and subsection (3)(iii) below (relating to the expiration of affirmative deferral 
elections) are both elected, the automatic increase will apply to all Participants, including 
those Participants whose affirmative deferral elections have expired and no subsequent 
affirmative election is made.

Any automatic increase elected under this subsection (ii) will not cause the automatic deferral 
amount to exceed: 

 (D)        % of Plan Compensation. 

 (E) $          . 

 (F) Describe: 

[Note: Any special application of the automatic increase provisions must be definitely 
determinable and must provide for Employer discretion.]

(3) Application of automatic deferral provisions. The automatic deferral election under subsection (2) will 
apply to new Participants and existing Participants as set forth under this subsection (3):

(i) New Participants. The automatic deferral provisions apply to all Participants who become eligible 
on or after the effective date.

(ii) Current Participants. The automatic deferral provisions apply to all other eligible Participants as 
follows:



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 19 62568.002

 (A) Automatic deferral provisions apply to all current Participants who have not entered into a 
Salary Deferral Election (including an election not to defer under the Plan). 

 (B) Automatic deferral provisions apply to all current Participants who have not entered into a 
Salary Deferral Election that is at least equal to the automatic deferral amount under 
subsection (2)(i) above. Current Participants who have made a Salary Deferral Election 
that is less than the automatic deferral amount or who have not made a Salary Deferral 
Election will automatically be increased to the automatic deferral amount unless the 
Participant enters into a new Salary Deferral election on or after the effective date of the 
automatic deferral provisions. 

 (C) Automatic deferral provisions do not apply to current Participants. Only new Participants 
described in subsection (i) above are subject to the automatic deferral provisions. 

 (D) Describe:   

 (iii) Expiration of affirmative deferral elections. Unless this subsection (iii) is elected, for purposes of 
the automatic deferral provisions of the Plan, a Participant’s affirmative elective deferral election 
will not expire. If this subsection (iii) is elected, a Participant’s affirmative deferral election will 
expire:

 (A) at the end of each Plan Year. 

 (B) Describe date that the affirmative election will expire:  

[Note:  The date must be definite and not discriminate in favor of Highly Compensated 
Employees.]

If a Participant fails to complete a new affirmative deferral election subsequent to the prior election 
expiring, the Participant becomes subject to the automatic deferral percentage as specified in the 
Plan pursuant to the automatic contribution arrangement provisions. Each year, the Participant can 
always complete a new affirmative election and designate a new deferral percentage.

(iv) Treatment of automatic deferrals. Any Salary Deferrals made pursuant to an automatic deferral 
election will be treated as Pre-Tax Salary Deferrals, unless designated otherwise under this 
subsection (iv). 

 Any Salary Deferrals made pursuant to an automatic deferral election will be treated as Roth 
Deferrals. [Note: This subsection (iv) may only be checked if Roth Deferrals are permitted 
under AA §6A-5.]

 (v) Special rules:  

[Note: Any Salary Deferral Election (including an election not to defer under the Plan) made after the 
effective date of the automatic deferral provisions will override such automatic deferral provisions.] 

(4) Application of automatic increase. Unless designated otherwise under this subsection (4), if an automatic 
increase is selected under subsection (2)(ii) above, the automatic increase will take effect as of the first day of 
the second Plan Year following the Plan Year in which the automatic deferral election first becomes effective 
with respect to a Participant. 

 (i) First Plan Year. Instead of applying as of the second Plan Year, the automatic increase described 
in subsection (2)(ii) above takes effect as of the appropriate date within the first Plan Year 
following the date automatic contributions begin.

 (ii) Designated Plan Year. Instead of applying as of the second Plan Year, the automatic increase 
described in subsection (2)(ii) above takes effect as of the appropriate date within the           Plan 
Year following the Plan Year in which the automatic deferral election first becomes effective with 
respect to a Participant.

 (iii) Effective date.  The automatic increase described under subsection (2)(ii) above is generally 
effective as of the first day of the Plan Year. If this subsection (iii) is checked, instead of becoming 
effective on the first day of the Plan Year, the automatic increase will be effective on:

 (A) The anniversary of the Participant's date of hire.

 (B) The anniversary of the Participant's first automatic deferral contribution.

 (C) The first day of each calendar year.

 (D) Other date:  



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6A – Salary Deferrals

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 20 62568.002

 (iv) Special rules: 

(5) Treatment of terminated Employees who are rehired. Unless designated otherwise below, in applying the 
automatic deferral provisions under this AA§6A-7, including the automatic increase provisions, a rehired 
Participant is treated as a new Employee (regardless of the amount of time since the rehired Employee 
terminated employment). 

 (i) Rehired Employees not treated as new Employee. In applying the automatic deferral provisions 
under this AA§6A-7, including the automatic increase provisions, a rehired Participant is not treated 
as a new Employee. Thus, for example, a rehired Participant’s deferral percentage will be calculated 
based on the date the individual first began making automatic deferrals under the Plan. 

 (ii) Describe special rules applicable to rehired employees:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (ii) must satisfy the rules applicable to automatic 
enrollment under Treas. Reg. §1.401(k)-1, if applicable.] 

(b) Permissible Withdrawals under Automatic Contribution Arrangement. 

 (1) Permissible withdrawals allowed. An Employee who has Salary Deferrals contributed to the Plan pursuant 
to an automatic deferral election under this AA §6A-7 may elect to withdraw such contributions (and earnings 
attributable thereto) within 90 days after the date such Salary Deferrals would otherwise have been included 
in gross income, unless designated otherwise under subsection (3) below. Unless elected otherwise below, if 
an Employee does not make automatic deferrals to the Plan for an entire Plan Year (e.g., due to termination of 
employment), the Plan may allow such Employee to take a permissive withdrawal, but only with respect to 
default contributions made after the Employee’s return to employment.). 

 The ability to take permissible withdrawals does not apply to rehired Employees, even if such 
Employees have not made automatic deferrals to the Plan for an entire Plan Year due to termination of 
employment. 

 (2) No permissible withdrawals. The permissible withdrawal provisions under this subsection (b) are not 
available. 

 (3) Time period for electing a permissible withdrawal. Instead of a 90-day election period, a Participant must 
request a permissible withdrawal no later than           days after the date the Plan Compensation from which 
such Salary Deferrals are withheld would otherwise have been included in gross income.

 (c) Other automatic deferral provisions:  

6A-8 SPECIAL DEFERRAL EFFECTIVE DATES. Unless designated otherwise under this AA §6A-8, a Participant is eligible to 
make Salary Deferrals under the Plan as of the Effective Date of the Plan (as designated in the Employer Signature Page). 
However, in no case may a Participant begin making Salary Deferrals prior to the later of the date the Employee becomes a 
Participant, the date the Participant executes a Salary Reduction Agreement or the date the Plan is adopted or effective. (See 
Section 3.02(c)(2)(i) of the Plan.)

To designate a later Effective Date for Salary Deferrals or Roth Deferrals, complete this AA §6A-8.

 (a) Salary Deferrals. A Participant is eligible to make Salary Deferrals under the Plan as of:

 (1) the date the Plan is executed by the Employer (as indicated on the Employer Signature Page).

 (2)            (insert date no earlier than the date the Plan is executed by the Employer). 

 (b) Roth Deferrals. The Roth Deferral provisions under AA §6A-5 are effective as of              . [If Roth Deferrals are 
permitted under AA §6A-5 above, Roth Deferrals are effective as of the Effective Date applicable to Salary Deferrals 
under this AA §6A-8, unless a later date is designated under this subsection.] 

SECTION 6B
MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS

6B-1 MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS. Is the Employer authorized to make Matching Contributions under the Plan? 
 Yes.   
 No.  [If “No” is checked, skip to Section 7.]     



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6B – Matching Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 21 62568.002

6B-2 MATCHING CONTRIBUTION FORMULA: For the period designated in AA §6B-5 below, the Employer will make the 
following Matching Contribution on behalf of Participants who satisfy the allocation conditions under AA §6B-6 below. [See AA 
§6B-3 for the definition of Eligible Contributions for purposes of the Matching Contributions under the Plan.] 

 (a) Discretionary match. The Employer will determine in its sole discretion how much, if any, it will make as a Matching 
Contribution. Such amount will be allocated as a uniform percentage of Eligible Contributions, unless designated 
otherwise below. (See AA §6B-5 relating to period for determining Matching Contributions and true-up requirements.)

 (1) Discretionary matching contributions will be allocated as a flat dollar amount.

 (2) Allocation of discretionary Matching Contribution determined by written instructions to Plan Administrator 
(or Trustee). If a discretionary Matching Contribution formula applies (i.e., a formula that provides an 
Employer with discretion regarding how to allocate a Matching Contribution to Participants) and the 
Employer makes a discretionary Matching Contribution to the Plan, the Employer must provide the Plan 
Administrator (or Trustee, if applicable), written instructions describing: (1) how the discretionary Matching 
Contribution formula will be allocated to Participants (e.g., a uniform percentage of Eligible Contributions or 
a flat dollar amount), (2) the computation period(s) to which the discretionary Matching Contribution formula 
applies (unless otherwise designated under AA §6B-5), and (3) if applicable, a description of each business 
location or business classification subject to separate discretionary Matching Contribution allocation 
formulas. 

Such instructions must be provided no later than the date on which the discretionary Matching Contribution is 
made to the Plan. A summary of these instructions must be communicated to Participants who receive 
discretionary Matching Contributions no later than 60 days following the last date on which the discretionary 
Matching Contribution is made to the Plan for the Plan Year. If this AA §6B-2(a)(2) is elected, the written 
instruction requirement does not take effect until the first day of the Plan Year following the Plan Year in 
which this Plan’s Cycle 3 restatement is executed.

 (b) Fixed match. The Employer will make a Matching Contribution for each Participant equal to:
 (1)         % of Eligible Contributions made for each period designated in AA §6B-5 below.
 (2) $         for each period designated in AA §6B-5 below.   

 (c) Matching Contributions under Collective Bargaining Agreement, employment contract or equivalent 
arrangement. The Employer will make a Matching Contribution based on a Collective Bargaining Agreement, 
employment agreement or equivalent arrangement as follows:  

[Note: Insert the appropriate Matching Contribution formula from the Collective Bargaining Agreement, employment 
agreement or equivalent arrangement. The formula must be definitely determinable as required under Treas. Reg. 
§1.401-1.]

 (d) Tiered match. The Employer may make a Matching Contribution to all Participants based on the following tiers of 
Eligible Contributions as a percentage of Plan Compensation. If discretionary Match is elected, the discretionary 
Matching Contribution will be allocated as a uniform percentage of Eligible Contributions within each tier.

Eligible Contributions Fixed
Match

Discretionary 
Match

 (1) Up to        % of Plan Compensation % 

 (2) From     % up to     % of Plan Compensation % 

 (3) From     % up to     % of Plan Compensation % 

 (4) From     % up to     % of Plan Compensation % 

 (e) Year of Service match. The Employer will make a Matching Contribution as a uniform percentage of Eligible 
Contributions to all Participants based on Years of Service with the Employer. If discretionary Match is elected, the 
discretionary Matching Contribution will be allocated as a uniform percentage of Eligible Contributions within each 
Year of Service level.

Years of Service Fixed
Match

Discretionary 
Match

 (1) From         up to  Years of Service % 

 (2) From         up to  Years of Service % 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6B – Matching Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 22 62568.002

Years of Service Fixed
Match

Discretionary 
Match

 (3) From         up to  Years of Service % 

 (4) From         up to  Years of Service % 

 (5) Years of Service equal to and above % 

For this purpose, a Year of Service is each Plan Year during which an Employee completes at least 1,000 Hours of 
Service. Alternatively, a Year of Service is: 

[Note: Any alternative definition of a Year of Service must meet the requirements of a Year of Service as defined in 
Section 2.03(a)(1) of the Plan.]  

 (f) Different Employee groups. The Employer may make a different Matching Contribution to the Employee groups 
designated under subsection (1) below. The Matching Contribution will be allocated separately to each designated 
Employee group in accordance with the formula designated under subsection (2) below.

(1) Designated Employee groups.

[Note: Each group designation must describe a group of Employees which is definitely determinable with no 
Employer discretion.]

(2) Matching Contribution formulas. 

 (i) Discretionary Matching Contribution. The Employer may make a different discretionary Matching 
Contribution for each Employee group designated under subsection (1) above. The discretionary 
Matching Contribution will be allocated as a uniform percentage of Eligible Contributions within each 
Employee group. (See AA §6B-5 relating to period for determining Matching Contributions and true-
up requirements.)

 (ii) Different Matching Contribution formula. The following Matching Contribution will apply for 
each Employee group designated under subsection (1) above.
[Note: Each separate rate of Matching Contribution must be definitely determinable and will be 
allocated uniformly to the members of the group.]

 (g) Describe special rules for determining Matching Contribution formula:  

[Note: Any special rules may not provide for a discretionary Matching Contribution allocation formula, must be 
described in a manner that precludes Employer discretion and must satisfy the definitely determinable requirements of 
Treas. Reg. §1.401-1.]  

6B-3 ELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS.  Unless designated otherwise under this AA §6B-3, the Matching Contribution described in 
AA §6B-2 will apply to all Eligible Contributions authorized under AA §6-7 and/or AA §6A.  

 (a) Designated Eligible Contributions. If this subsection (a) is checked, the Matching Contribution described in AA §6B-
2 will apply only to the Eligible Contributions selected below:

 (1) Pre-tax Salary Deferrals under AA §6A.

 (2) Roth Deferrals under AA §6A-5.

 (3) Catch-Up Contributions under AA §6A-4.

 (4) Voluntary After-Tax Employee Contributions under AA §6-7(a).

 (5) Mandatory After-Tax Employee Contributions under AA §6-7(b).

 (6) Employer Pick-Up Contributions under AA §6-7(c).   

 (b) Elective deferrals under another plan. If this subsection (b) is checked, the Matching Contributions described in AA 
§6B-2 will apply to elective deferrals made under another plan maintained by the Employer. 

 (1) The Matching Contribution designated in AA §6B-2 above will apply to elective deferrals under the following 
plan maintained by the Employer: 

 (2) The following special rules apply in determining the amount of Matching Contributions under this Plan with 
respect to elective deferrals under the plan described in subsection (1) above: 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6B – Matching Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 23 62568.002

[Note: This subsection (b) may be used to describe special provisions applicable to Matching Contributions provided 
with respect to elective deferrals under another plan maintained by the Employer, including another qualified plan or 
Code §403(b) or Code §457(b) plan.]

(c) Calculation of Matching Contributions if Plan uses dual eligibility and/or multiple entry dates. Unless designated 
otherwise below, if the Plan has dual eligibility and/or multiple entry dates (or the Employer choses to use the Plan’s 
optional true-up provisions), the Matching Contribution formula(s) will be based on Eligible Contributions and Plan 
Compensation for the period designated under AA §6B-5.

 The Plan will make Matching Contributions only on Salary Deferrals and After-Tax Employee Contributions 
(if applicable) made after the Participant becomes eligible for Matching Contributions, regardless of the 
period designated under AA §6B-5. 

 (d) Special rules. The following special rules apply for purposes of determining the Matching Contribution under this AA 
§6B-3: 

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (d) must be definitely determinable.]  

6B-4 LIMITS ON MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS. In applying the Matching Contribution formula(s) selected under AA §6B-2 
above, all Eligible Contributions designated under AA §6B-3 are eligible for Matching Contributions, unless elected otherwise 
under this AA §6B-4.  

 (a) Limit on amount of Eligible Contributions. The Matching Contribution formula(s) selected in AA §6B-2 above apply 
only to Eligible Contributions under AA §6B-3 that do not exceed:
 (1) % of Plan Compensation. 
 (2) $ .
 (3) A discretionary amount determined by the Employer that will be applied in a uniform manner for all eligible 

Participants for the Plan Year.

[Note: If both subsections (1) and (2) above are selected, the limit under this subsection (a) is the lesser of the 
percentage selected in subsection (1) or the dollar amount selected in subsection (2).]  

 (b) Limit on Matching Contributions. The total Matching Contribution provided under the formula(s) selected in AA 
§6B-2 above will not exceed:
 (1)      % of Plan Compensation.
 (2) $ .  

 (c) Special limits applicable to Matching Contributions:    

6B-5 PERIOD FOR DETERMINING MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS. The Matching Contribution formula(s) selected in AA 
§6B-2 above (including any limitations on such amounts under AA §6B-4) are based on Eligible Contributions under AA §6B-3 
and Plan Compensation for the Plan Year. To apply a different period for determining the Matching Contributions and limits 
under AA §6B-2 and AA §6B-4, complete this AA §6B-5.  
 (a) payroll period  
 (b) Plan Year quarter  
 (c) calendar month  
 (d) Other:   

[Note: Although Matching Contributions (and any limits on those Matching Contributions) will be determined on the basis of the 
period designated under this AA §6B-5, this does not require the Employer to actually make contributions or allocate 
contributions on the basis of such period. Matching Contributions may be contributed and allocated to Participants at any time 
within the contribution period permitted under Treas. Reg. §1.415(c)-1(b)(6)(B), regardless of the period selected under this AA 
§6B-5.]

[Note: In determining the amount of Matching Contributions for a particular period, if the Employer actually makes Matching 
Contributions to the Plan on a more frequent basis than the period selected in this AA §6B-5, a Participant will be entitled to a 
true-up contribution to the extent he/she does not receive a Matching Contribution based on the Eligible Contributions and/or 
Plan Compensation for the entire period selected in this AA §6B-5. If a period other than the Plan Year is selected under this AA 
§6B-5, the Employer may make an additional discretionary Matching Contribution equal to the true-up contribution that would 
otherwise be required if Plan Year was selected under this AA §6B-5. See Section 3.02(c)(3)(iii) of the Plan.] 

6B-6 ALLOCATION CONDITIONS. A Participant must satisfy any allocation conditions designated under this AA §6B-6 to receive 
an allocation of Matching Contributions under the Plan.  

 (a) Application of allocation conditions.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 6B – Matching Contributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 24 62568.002

 (1) No allocation conditions apply with respect to Matching Contributions under the Plan.  

 (2) Allocation conditions only apply to discretionary Matching Contributions under the Plan.

 (3) Allocation conditions only apply to fixed Matching Contributions under the Plan.

[Note: (2) or (3) above should be selected only if the Plan provides for both Fixed and Discretionary Matching 
Contributions.]

 (b) Employment condition. An Employee must be employed with the Employer on the last day of the Plan Year.  

 (c) Minimum service condition. An Employee must be credited with at least:
 (1)         Hours of Service during the Plan Year.

 (i) Hours of Service are determined using actual Hours of Service.

 (ii) Hours of Service are determined using the following Equivalency Method (as defined under AA §4-
3):

 (A) Monthly  (B) Weekly

 (C) Daily  (D) Semi-monthly

 (E) Describe: 

[Note: Any description under subsection (E) above must be definitely determinable.]

 (2)         consecutive days of employment with the Employer during the Plan Year.   

 (d) Exceptions. 

 (1) The above allocation condition(s) will not apply if the Employee, during the Plan Year:
 (i) dies.
 (ii) terminates employment due to becoming Disabled.
 (iii) becomes Disabled.
 (iv) terminates employment after attaining Normal Retirement Age.

[Note: This waiver of allocation conditions applies only once during the Participant’s employment 
with the Employer. Thus, if an Employee is rehired after such a waiver was applied to such 
Employee, the waiver of allocation conditions will not apply to a subsequent termination of 
employment. The Employer may modify this rule in (e) below.]  

 (v) terminates employment after attaining Early Retirement Age.

[Note: This waiver of allocation conditions applies only once during the Participant’s employment 
with the Employer. Thus, if an Employee is rehired after such a waiver was applied to such 
Employee, the waiver of allocation conditions will not apply to a subsequent termination of 
employment. The Employer may modify this rule in (e) below.]  

 (vi) is on an authorized leave of absence from the Employer.

 (2) The exceptions selected under subsection (1) above will apply even if an Employee has not terminated 
employment at the time of the selected event(s).

 (3) The exceptions selected under subsection (1) above do not apply to:
 (i) an employment condition designated under subsection (b) above.
 (ii) a minimum service condition designated under subsection (c) above.  

 (e) Describe any special rules governing the allocation conditions under the Plan:     



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 7 – Retirement Ages

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 25 62568.002

SECTION 7
RETIREMENT AGES

7-1 NORMAL RETIREMENT AGE. Normal Retirement Age under the Plan is: 
 (a) Age 60        (not to exceed 65).  
 (b) The later of age         (not to exceed 65) or the  (not to exceed 5th) anniversary of:

 (1) the Employee’s participation commencement date (as defined in Section 1.68 of the Plan).

 (2) the Employee’s employment commencement date.  
 (c) Describe Normal Retirement Age:  

[Note: The Normal Retirement Age must be reasonably representative of the typical retirement age for the industry in which the 
Plan Participants work. A Normal Retirement Age of at least age 62 is deemed to be reasonable while a Normal Retirement Age 
under age 55 is presumed not to satisfy this requirement unless facts and circumstances show otherwise. Whether a Normal 
Retirement Age between 55 and 62 satisfies this requirement depends on the facts and circumstances. A Governmental Plan must 
comply with the final Normal Retirement Age regulations under Treas. Reg. §1.401(a)-1, as amended, effective for Annuity 
Starting Dates occurring in Plan Years beginning on or after the later of the two dates described in IRS Notice 2012-29. The 
Employer may use AA §7-1(c), for example, to describe a reasonable Normal Retirement Age that is between age 55 and 62 that 
takes into account service as well as age.]

7-2 EARLY RETIREMENT AGE.  Unless designated otherwise under this AA §7-2, there is no Early Retirement Age under the 
Plan.  
 (a) A Participant reaches Early Retirement Age if he/she is still employed after attainment of each of the following:

 (1) Attainment of age 55       
 (2) The         anniversary of the date the Employee commenced participation in the Plan, and/or
 (3) The completion of         Years of Service, determined as follows:

 (i) Same as for eligibility. 
 (ii) Same as for vesting  

 (b) Describe.     

SECTION 8
VESTING AND FORFEITURES

8-1 CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO VESTING. Does the Plan provide for any Employer and/or Matching Contributions that 
are subject to a vesting schedule under AA §8-2?

 Yes 
 No [If “No” is checked, skip to Section 9.]

[Note: “Yes” should be checked under this AA §8-1 if the Plan provides for Employer Contributions and/or Matching 
Contributions that are subject to a vesting schedule, even if such contributions are always 100% vested under AA §8-2. “No” 
should be checked if the only contributions under the Plan are Salary Deferrals, After-Tax Employee Contributions and/or 
Employer Pick-Up Contributions. If the Plan holds Employer Contributions and/or Matching Contributions that are subject to 
vesting but the Plan no longer provides for such contributions, see Sections 6.03(d) and 6.11(e) of the Plan for default rules for 
applying the vesting and forfeiture rules to such contributions.]  

8-2 VESTING SCHEDULE. The vesting schedule under the Plan is as follows for both Employer Contributions and Matching 
Contributions, to the extent authorized under the Plan. See Section 6.02 of the Plan for a description of the various vesting 
schedules under this AA §8-2. 

 (a) Vesting schedule for Employer Contributions and Matching Contributions:

ER Match
  (1)  Full and immediate vesting.
  (2)  Three-year cliff vesting schedule
  (3)  Six-year graded vesting schedule



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 8 – Vesting and Forfeitures

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 26 62568.002

ER Match
  (4)  Modified vesting schedule

        %  immediately on Plan participation
        %  after 1 Year of Service 
        %  after 2 Years of Service
        %  after 3 Years of Service
        %  after 4 Years of Service
        %  after 5 Years of Service
        %  after 6 Years of Service
        %  after 7 Years of Service
        %  after 8 Years of Service
        %  after 9 Years of Service
100%  after 10 Years of Service

  (5)  Other: vesting schedule: 
[Note: If a modified vesting schedule is selected under this subsection (a), the 
vested schedule must satisfy the pre-ERISA Code vesting requirements.]

 (b) Special provisions applicable to vesting schedule: 

[Note: This subsection (b) may be used to apply a different vesting schedule for different contribution formulas or 
different Employee groups under the Plan. Any special provision must satisfy the pre-ERISA Code vesting 
requirements.]  

8-3 VESTING SERVICE. In applying the vesting schedules under this AA §8, all service with the Employer counts for vesting 
purposes, unless designated otherwise under this AA §8-3. 
 (a) Service before the original Effective Date of this Plan (or a Predecessor Plan) is excluded.  
 (b) Service completed before the Employee's         birthday is excluded. 

 (c) Describe vesting service exclusions: 

[Note: See Section 6.07 of the Plan and AA §4-5 for rules regarding the crediting of service with Predecessor Employers for 
purposes of vesting under the Plan.]   

8-4 VESTING UPON DEATH, DISABILITY OR EARLY RETIREMENT AGE. An Employee's vesting percentage increases to 
100% if, while employed with the Employer, the Employee  
 (a) dies  
 (b) terminates employment due to becoming Disabled 
 (c) becomes Disabled  
 (d) reaches Early Retirement Age  
 (e) Not applicable. No increase in vesting applies.  

8-5 DEFAULT VESTING RULES. In applying the vesting requirements under this AA §8, the following default rules apply. [Note: 
No election should be made under this AA §8-5 if all contributions are 100% vested.]

 Year of Service. An Employee earns a Year of Service for vesting purposes upon completing 1,000 Hours of Service during 
a Vesting Computation Period. Hours of Service are calculated based on actual hours worked during the Vesting 
Computation Period. (See Section 1.57 of the Plan for the definition of Hour of Service.)

 Vesting Computation Period. The Vesting Computation Period is the Plan Year.  

To override the default vesting rules, complete the applicable sections of this AA §8-5. If this AA §8-5 is not completed, the 
default vesting rules apply. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 8 – Vesting and Forfeitures

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 27 62568.002

ER Match

  (a) Year of Service. Instead of 1,000 Hours of Service, an Employee earns a Year of 
Service upon the completion of         Hours of Service during a Vesting Computation 
Period. 

  (b) Vesting Computation Period. Instead of the Plan Year, the Vesting Computation 
Period is:
 (1) The 12-month period beginning with the Employee’s Employment 

Commencement Date and, for subsequent Vesting Computation Periods, the 
12-month period beginning with the anniversary of the Employee’s 
Employment Commencement Date.

 (2) Describe:  
[Note: Any Vesting Computation Period described in this subsection (2) must be a 12-
consecutive month period and must apply uniformly to all Participants.] 

  (c) Elapsed Time Method. Instead of determining vesting service based on actual Hours 
of Service, vesting service will be determined under the Elapsed Time Method. If this 
subsection (c) is checked, service will be measured from the Employee’s Employment 
Commencement Date (or Reemployment Commencement Date, if applicable) without 
regard to the Vesting Computation Period designated in Section 6.05 of the Plan. (See 
Section 6.04(b) of the Plan.)

  (d) Equivalency Method. For purposes of determining an Employee’s Hours of Service 
for vesting, the Plan will use the Equivalency Method (as defined in Section 6.04(a)(2) 
of the Plan). The Equivalency Method will apply to:
 (1) All Employees.
 (2) Only to Employees for whom the Employer does not maintain hourly 

records. For Employees for whom the Employer maintains hourly records, 
vesting will be determined based on actual hours worked.

Hours of Service for vesting will be determined under the following Equivalency 
Method. 
 (3) Monthly. 190 Hours of Service for each month worked.
 (4) Weekly. 45 Hours of Service for each week worked.
 (5) Daily. 10 Hours of Service for each day worked.
 (6) Semi-monthly. 95 Hours of Service for each semi-monthly period. 
 (7) Describe Equivalency Method: 
[Note: Any description of an Equivalency Method must be definitely determinable.]

  (e) Special rules: 
[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (e) must be definitely determinable.] 

   
8-6 BREAKS IN SERVICE. Generally, an Employee will be credited with all service earned with the Employer, including service 

earned prior to a Break in Service. To disregard service earned prior to a Break in Service for vesting purposes, complete this AA 
§8-6. (See Section 6.08 of the Plan.) 

 (a) If an Employee incurs at least one Break in Service, the Plan will disregard all service earned prior to such Break in 
Service for purposes of determining vesting under the Plan. 

 (b) If an Employee incurs at least              consecutive Breaks in Service, the Plan will disregard all service earned prior to 
such consecutive Breaks in Service for purposes of determining vesting under the Plan. [Enter “0” if prior service will 
be disregarded for all rehired Employees.]

 (c) The Nonvested Participant Break in Service rule applies to all Employees, including Employees who have not 
terminated employment.

 (d) Describe any special rules for applying the vesting Break in Service rules: 

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (d) must be definitely determinable.] 

8-7 ALLOCATION OF FORFEITURES. 

The Employer may decide in its discretion how to treat forfeitures under the Plan. Alternatively, the Employer may designate 
under this AA §8-7 how forfeitures occurring during a Plan Year will be treated. (See Section 6.11 of the Plan.) 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 8 – Vesting and Forfeitures

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 28 62568.002

ER Match

  (a) N/A. All contributions are 100% vested. [Do not complete the rest of this AA §8-
7.]

  (b) Reallocated as additional Employer Contributions or as additional Matching 
Contributions.

  (c) Used to reduce Employer and/or Matching Contributions.

For purposes of subsection (b) or (c) above, forfeitures will be applied:

  (d) for the Plan Year in which the forfeiture occurs.

  (e) for the Plan Year following the Plan Year in which the forfeitures occur.

Prior to applying forfeitures under subsection (b) or (c):

  (f) Forfeitures may be used to pay Plan expenses. (See Section 6.11(d) of the Plan.)

  (g) Forfeitures may not be used to pay Plan expenses.

In determining the amount of forfeitures to be allocated under subsection (b) above, the same allocation conditions 
apply as for the source for which the forfeiture is being allocated, unless designated otherwise below.

  (h) Forfeitures are not subject to any allocation conditions.

  (i) Forfeitures are subject to a last day of employment allocation condition.

  (j) Forfeitures are subject to a          Hours of Service minimum service requirement.

In determining the treatment of forfeitures under this AA §8-7, the following special rules apply:

  (k) Describe: 
   
8-8 SPECIAL RULES REGARDING CASH-OUT DISTRIBUTIONS. 

(a) Additional allocations.  If a terminated Participant receives a complete distribution of his/her vested Account Balance 
while still entitled to an additional allocation, the Cash-Out Distribution forfeiture provisions do not apply until the 
Participant receives a distribution of the additional amounts to be allocated. (See Section 6.10(a)(1) of the Plan.)  

To modify the default Cash-Out Distribution forfeiture rules, complete this AA §8-8(a).

 The Cash-Out Distribution forfeiture provisions will apply if a terminated Participant takes a complete distribution, 
regardless of any additional allocations during the Plan Year.  

(b) Timing of forfeitures. A Participant who receives a Cash-Out Distribution (as defined in Section 6.10(a) of the Plan) is 
treated as having an immediate forfeiture of his/her nonvested Account Balance. 

To modify the forfeiture timing rules to delay the occurrence of a forfeiture upon a Cash-Out Distribution, complete this 
AA §8-8(b).

 A forfeiture will occur upon the completion of          consecutive Breaks in Service (as defined in Section 6.08 of 
the Plan).    

(c) Repayment of Cash-Out Distribution. Unless elected otherwise under this AA §8-8(c), if a Participant receives a Cash-
Out Distribution that results in a forfeiture, and the Participant resumes employment covered under the Plan, such 
Participant may repay to the Plan the amount received as a Cash-Out Distribution.

 If a Participant receives a Cash-Out Distribution that results in a forfeiture, and the Participant resumes 
employment covered under the Plan, such Participant may NOT repay to the Plan the amount received as a Cash-
Out Distribution and the provisions of Section 6.10(a)(2) do not apply.  

8-9 SPECIAL RULE FOR FORFEITURE UPON DEATH OF A PARTICIPANT. Unless elected below, no vested benefits are 
forfeited upon the death of a Participant.

To modify this default forfeiture rule, check to box below.

 The Plan will forfeit benefits (including vested benefits) upon the death of a Participant, if not precluded by law. In no 
event may the Plan forfeit any amounts attributable to a Participant’s Salary Deferrals or After-Tax Employee 
Contributions under the Plan or if the Plan has commenced distributions prior to the Participant’s death. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 9 – Distribution Provisions – Termination of Employment

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 29 62568.002

SECTION 9
DISTRIBUTION PROVISIONS – TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

9-1 AVAILABLE FORMS OF DISTRIBUTION. 

Lump sum distribution. A Participant may take a distribution of his/her entire vested Account Balance in a single lump sum 
upon termination of employment. In addition, the Plan Administrator may permit a Participant to take partial distributions or 
installment distributions solely to the extent necessary to satisfy the required minimum distribution rules under Section 8 of the 
Plan. 

Additional distribution options. To provide for additional distribution options, check the applicable distribution forms under 
this AA §9-1.   
 (a) Installment distributions. A Participant may take a distribution over a specified period not to exceed the life or life 

expectancy of the Participant (and a designated beneficiary).   

 (b) Partial lump sum. A Participant may take a distribution of less than the entire vested Account Balance upon 
termination of employment. 

 Minimum distribution amount. A Participant may not take a partial lump sum distribution of less than $        .
 (c) Annuity distributions. A Participant may elect to have the Plan Administrator use the Participant’s vested Account 

Balance to purchase an annuity as described in Section 7.01 of the Plan.   
 (d) Describe distribution options: 

[Note: Any distribution option described in this subsection (d) may not be subject to the discretion of the Employer or 
Plan Administrator.] 

9-2 PARTICIPANT AND SPOUSAL CONSENT.

 (a) Involuntary Cash-Out Distribution. A Participant who terminates employment with a vested Account Balance of 
$5,000 or less will receive an Involuntary Cash-Out Distribution, unless elected otherwise under this AA §9-2. If a 
Participant’s vested Account Balance exceeds $5,000, the Participant generally must consent to a distribution from the 
Plan, except to the extent provided otherwise under this AA §9-2. See Section 7.03 of the Plan for additional rules 
regarding the Participant consent requirements under the Plan.

 (1) No Involuntary Cash-Out Distributions. The Plan does not provide for Involuntary Cash-Out Distributions. 
A terminated Participant must consent to any distribution from the Plan. (See Section 14.02(b) of the Plan for 
special rules upon Plan termination.) 

 (2) Involuntary Cash-Out Distribution threshold. A terminated Participant will receive an Involuntary Cash-
Out Distribution only if the Participant’s vested Account Balance is less than or equal to $1,000            .

 (3) Application of Automatic Rollover rules. The Automatic Rollover rules described in Section 7.05 of the 
Plan do not apply to any Involuntary Cash-Out Distribution below $1,000, unless elected otherwise under this 
subsection (3). If this subsection (3) is checked, the Automatic Rollover provisions apply to all Involuntary 
Cash-Out Distributions (including those below $1,000).

 (4) Distribution upon attainment of stated age. Participant consent will not be required with respect to 
distributions made upon attainment of Normal Retirement Age (or age 62, if later), regardless of the value of 
the Participant’s vested Account Balance.

 (5) Treatment of Rollover Contributions. Unless elected otherwise under this subsection (5), Rollover 
Contributions will be excluded in determining whether a Participant’s vested Account Balance exceeds the 
Involuntary Cash-Out threshold for purposes of applying the distribution rules under this AA §9 and the 
Automatic Rollover provisions under Section 7.05 of the Plan. To include Rollover Contributions in 
determining whether a Participant’s vested Account Balance exceeds the Involuntary Cash-Out threshold, 
check this subsection (5).

 (b) Spousal consent. Spousal consent is not required for a Participant to receive a distribution or name an alternate 
beneficiary, unless designated otherwise under this subsection (b). See Section 9.02 of the Plan for rules regarding 
Spousal consent under the Plan.

 (1) Distribution consent.  A Participant’s Spouse must consent to any distribution or loan, provided the 
Participant’s vested Account Balance exceeds $            . 

 (2) Beneficiary consent. A Participant’s Spouse must consent to naming someone other than the Spouse as 
beneficiary under the Plan.

 (c) Describe any special rules affecting Participant or Spousal consent: 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 9 – Distribution Provisions – Termination of Employment

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 30 62568.002

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (c) must be definitely determinable.] 

9-3 TIMING OF DISTRIBUTIONS UPON TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

(a) Distribution of vested Account Balances exceeding $5,000.  A Participant who terminates employment with a vested 
Account Balance exceeding $5,000 may receive a distribution of his/her vested Account Balance in any form permitted 
under AA §9-1 within a reasonable period following: 
 (1) the date the Participant terminates employment.  
 (2) the last day of the Plan Year during which the Participant terminates employment.    
 (3) the first Valuation Date following the Participant's termination of employment.    
 (4) the end of the calendar quarter following the date the Participant terminates employment.    
 (5) attainment of Normal Retirement Age, death or becoming Disabled.    
 (6) Describe:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (6) must be definitely determinable.]

(b) Distribution of vested Account Balances not exceeding $5,000. A Participant who terminates employment with a 
vested Account Balance that does not exceed $5,000 will receive a lump sum distribution of his/her vested Account 
Balance within a reasonable period following: 
 (1) the date the Participant terminates employment.  
 (2) the last day of the Plan Year during which the Participant terminates employment.     
 (3) the first Valuation Date following the Participant's termination of employment.    
 (4) the end of the calendar quarter following the date the Participant terminates employment.  
 (5) Describe:  
[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (5) must be definitely determinable.]

 (c) Alternate Cash-Out distribution threshold. Instead of a vested Account Balance Cash-Out threshold of $5,000, for 
purposes of applying the Cash-Out distribution provisions under this AA §9-3, the threshold for distributions upon 
termination of employment will be based on a vested Account Balance of $            . 

 (d) Describe additional distribution options: 

[Note: Any additional distribution option described in this subsection (d) may not be subject to the discretion of the 
Employer or Plan Administrator.] 

9-4 DISTRIBUTION UPON DISABILITY. Unless designated otherwise under this AA §9-4, a Participant who terminates 
employment on account of becoming Disabled may receive a distribution of his/her vested Account Balance in the same manner 
as a regular distribution upon termination. 

 (a) Immediate distribution upon termination of employment. Distribution will be made as soon as reasonable following 
the date the Participant terminates employment on account of becoming Disabled.

 (b) Following year distribution upon termination of employment. Distribution will be made as soon as reasonable 
following the last day of the Plan Year during which the Participant terminates employment on account of becoming 
Disabled.

 (c) Describe: 

[Note: Any distribution event described in this subsection (c) will apply uniformly to all Participants under the Plan 
and may not be subject to the discretion of the Employer or Plan Administrator.] 

9-5 DETERMINATION OF BENEFICIARY. 

(a) Default beneficiaries. Under Section 7.07(c) of the Plan, to the extent a Beneficiary has not been named by the 
Participant (subject to the spousal consent rules) and is not designated under the terms of the Investment 
Arrangement(s) to receive all or any portion of the deceased Participant’s death benefit, such amount shall be 
distributed to the Participant’s surviving Spouse (if the Participant was married at the time of death) who shall be 
considered the designated Beneficiary. If the Participant does not have a surviving Spouse at the time of death, 
distribution will be made to the Participant’s surviving children (including legally adopted children, but not including 
step-children), as designated Beneficiaries, in equal shares. If the Participant has no surviving children, distribution will 
be made to the Participant’s estate. 

 If this subsection (a) is checked, the default beneficiaries under Section 7.07(c)of the Plan are modified as 
follows:



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 9 – Distribution Provisions – Termination of Employment

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 31 62568.002

 (1) The Plan adopts the default beneficiary rules under Section 7.07(c) of the Plan, except, if the 
Participant does not have a surviving Spouse at the time of death, distribution will be made to the 
Participant’s children (including legally adopted children, but not including step-children), as 
designated Beneficiaries, per stirpes.

 (2) Describe other modifications to the default beneficiaries under Section 7.07(c) of the Plan: 

[Note: The description of the modifications to the default beneficiaries must be sufficiently clear for 
the Plan Administrator to determine the beneficiaries and the method of distribution of the 
Participant’s death benefit.]

(b) One-year marriage rule. For purposes of determining whether an individual is considered the surviving Spouse of the 
Participant, the determination is based on the marital status as of the date of the Participant’s death, unless designated 
otherwise under this subsection (b).  

 If this subsection (b) is checked, in order to be considered the surviving Spouse, the Participant and surviving 
Spouse must have been married for the entire one-year period ending on the date of the Participant’s death. If 
the Participant and surviving Spouse are not married for at least one year as of the date of the Participant’s 
death, the Spouse will not be treated as the surviving Spouse for purposes of applying the distribution 
provisions of the Plan. (See Section 9.03 of the Plan.)  

(c) Divorce of Spouse. Unless elected otherwise under this subsection (c), if a Participant designates his/her Spouse as 
Beneficiary and subsequent to such Beneficiary designation, the Participant and Spouse are divorced, the designation of 
the Spouse as Beneficiary under the Plan is automatically rescinded as set forth under Section 7.07(c)(6) of the Plan. 

 If this subsection (c) is checked, a Beneficiary designation will not be rescinded upon divorce of the 
Participant and Spouse. 

[Note: Section 7.07(c)(6) of the Plan and this subsection (c) will be subject to the provisions of a Beneficiary 
designation entered into by the Participant. Thus, if a Beneficiary designation specifically overrides the election under 
this subsection (c), the provisions of the Beneficiary designation will control. See Section 7.07(c)(6) of the Plan.]  

SECTION 10
IN-SERVICE DISTRIBUTIONS AND REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS

10-1 AVAILABILITY OF IN-SERVICE DISTRIBUTIONS. A Participant may withdraw all or any portion of his/her vested 
Account Balance, to the extent designated, upon the occurrence of any of the event(s) selected under this AA §10-1. If more than 
one option is selected for a particular contribution source under this AA §10-1, a Participant may take an in-service distribution 
upon the occurrence of any of the selected events, unless designated otherwise under this AA §10-1. 

Deferral Match ER

   (a) No in-service distributions are permitted.

   (b) Attainment of age 59½.

   (c) Attainment of age       . (Not greater than age 70 1/2)

   (d) A Hardship that satisfies the safe harbor rules under Section 7.10(e)(1) of the Plan. 

   (e) A non-safe harbor Hardship described in Section 7.10(e)(2) of the Plan. 

   (f) Attainment of Normal Retirement Age. 

   (g) Attainment of Early Retirement Age.

N/A   (h) The Participant has participated in the Plan for at least         (cannot be less than 60) 
months.

N/A   (i) The amounts being withdrawn have been held in the Trust for at least two years. 

   (j) Upon a Participant becoming Disabled (as defined in AA §9-4(b)).

 N/A N/A (k) As a Qualified Reservist Distribution.

 N/A N/A (l) Upon a deemed separation of employment when an individual is on active duty for 
a period of at least 30 days while performing service in the Uniformed Services.



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 10 – In-Service Distribution Provisions and Required Minimum Distributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 32 62568.002

Deferral Match ER

   (m) Describe: 

[Note: No in-service distribution of Salary Deferrals is permitted prior to age 59½, except for Hardship, or Disability. If Normal 
Retirement Age or Early Retirement Age is earlier than age 59½, such age is deemed to be age 59½ for purposes of determining 
eligibility to distribute Salary Deferrals (if subsection (f) or (g) above is checked under the Deferral column). If this Plan has 
accepted a transfer of assets from a pension plan (e.g., a money purchase plan), no in-service distribution from amounts 
attributable to such transferred assets is permitted prior to age 62, except for Disability.] 

10-2 APPLICATION TO OTHER CONTRIBUTION SOURCES. If the Plan allows for Rollover Contributions under AA §C-2 or 
After-Tax Employee Contributions under AA §6-7, unless elected otherwise under this AA §10-2, a Participant may take an in-
service distribution from his/her Rollover Account and After-Tax Employee Contribution Account at any time. Employer Pick-
Up Contributions will not be eligible for in-service distribution. 

Alternatively, if this AA §10-2 is completed, the following in-service distribution provisions apply for Rollover Contributions, 
After-Tax Employee Contributions and/or Employer Pick-Up Contributions: 

Rollover After-Tax Pick-Up

   (a) No in-service distributions are permitted.

   (b) Attainment of age 59½.

   (c) Attainment of age        . (Not greater than age 70 1/2)

   (d) A Hardship (that satisfies the safe harbor rules under Section 
7.10(e)(1) of the Plan). 

   (e) A non-safe harbor Hardship described in Section 7.10(e)(2) of the 
Plan.

   (f) Attainment of Normal Retirement Age. 

   (g) Attainment of Early Retirement Age.

   (h) Upon a Participant becoming Disabled (as defined in AA §9-4(b)).

   (i) Describe:                                 
  

10-3 SPECIAL DISTRIBUTION RULES. No special distribution rules apply, unless specifically provided under this AA §10-3. 
 (a) In-service distributions will only be permitted if the Participant is 100% vested in the source from which the withdrawal 

is taken.   
 (b) A Participant may take no more than         in-service distribution(s) in a Plan Year.    
 (c) A Participant may not take an in-service distribution of less than $       .    
 (d) A Participant may not take an in-service distribution of more than $       .    
 (e) Unless elected otherwise under this subsection (e), the hardship distribution provisions of the Plan are not expanded to 

cover primary beneficiaries as set forth in Section 7.10(e)(5) of the Plan. If this subsection (e) is checked, the hardship 
provisions of the Plan will apply with respect to individuals named as primary beneficiaries under the Plan.  

 (f) In determining whether a Participant has an immediate and heavy financial need for purposes of applying the non-safe 
harbor Hardship provisions under Section 7.10(e)(2) of the Plan, the following modifications are made to the 
permissible events listed under Section 7.10(e)(1) of the Plan: 

[Note: This subsection (f) may only be used to the extent a non-safe harbor Hardship distribution is authorized under 
AA §10-1 or AA §10-2.]  

 (g) If the Plan includes Accounts that hold inactive sources of contributions, the Employer may designate under this AA 
§10-3(g) the in-service distribution options available to such Accounts: 

 (h) Other distribution rules: 

10-4 REQUIRED MINIMUM DISTRIBUTIONS.

(a) Required distributions after death. If a Participant dies before distributions begin and there is a Designated 
Beneficiary, the Participant or Beneficiary may elect on an individual basis whether the 5-year rule (as described in 
Section 8.06(a) of the Plan) or the life expectancy method described under Sections 8.02 of the Plan applies. See 
Section 8.06(b) of the Plan for rules regarding the timing of an election authorized under this AA §10-4. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 10 – In-Service Distribution Provisions and Required Minimum Distributions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 33 62568.002

Alternatively, if selected under this subsection (a), any death distributions to a Designated Beneficiary will be made 
only under either the 5-year rule or the life expectancy method, as elected below:

 (1) The five-year rule under Section 8.06(a) of the Plan applies (instead of the life expectancy method). Thus, the 
entire death benefit must be distributed by the end of the fifth year following the year of the Participant’s 
death. Death distributions to a Designated Beneficiary may not be made under the life expectancy method.  

 (2) The life expectancy method under Sections 8.02 and 8.04 of the Plan (and not the 5-year rule).

 (b) Describe any special rules applicable to required minimum distributions: 

[Note: Any special rule under this subsection (b) must satisfy the requirements of Code §401(a)(9). This subsection (b) 
may be used to override the default provision under Section 8.06(b) of the Plan. For example, the Employer may 
designate the life expectancy rules as the default rather than the five-year rule when a Participant or Beneficiary fails 
to make an election.]  

SECTION 11
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11-1 PLAN VALUATION. The Plan is valued annually, as of the last day of the Plan Year. 

 (a) Additional valuation dates. In addition, the Plan will be valued on the following dates: 

Deferral Match ER

   (1) Daily. The Plan is valued at the end of each business day during which the 
New York Stock Exchange is open. 

   (2) Monthly. The Plan is valued at the end of each month of the Plan Year.

   (3) Quarterly. The Plan is valued at the end of each Plan Year quarter. 

   (4) Describe:                                 

[Note: The Employer may elect operationally to perform interim valuations, regardless of any selection in this 
subsection (a).]  

 (b) Special rules. The following special rules apply in determining the amount of income or loss allocated to Participants’ 
Accounts:       

11-2 SPECIAL RULES FOR APPLYING THE CODE §415 LIMITATION. The provisions under Section 5.02 of the Plan apply 
for purposes of determining the Code §415 Limitation.  
Complete this AA §11-2 to override the default provisions that apply in determining the Code §415 Limitation under Section 5.02 
of the Plan.  
 (a) Limitation Year. Instead of the Plan Year, the Limitation Year is the 12-month period ending .

[Note: If the Plan has a short Plan Year for the first year of establishment, the Limitation Year is deemed to be the 12-
month period ending on the last day of the short Plan Year.]  

 (b) Imputed compensation. For purposes of applying the Code §415 Limitation, Total Compensation includes imputed 
compensation for a Participant who terminates employment on account of becoming disabled. (See Section 
5.02(c)(7)(ii) of the Plan.)  

 (c) Special rules:  

[Note: Any special rules under this subsection (c) must be consistent with the requirements of Code §415.]   

11-3 MILITARY SERVICE PROVISIONS -- BENEFIT ACCRUALS. The benefit accrual provisions under Section 15.04 of the 
Plan do not apply. To apply the benefit accrual provisions under Section 15.04 of the Plan, check the box below. 

 (a) Eligibility for Plan benefits. Check this box if the Plan will provide the benefits described in Section 15.04 of the Plan. 
If this box is checked, an individual who dies or becomes disabled in qualified military service will be treated as 
reemployed for purposes of determining entitlement to benefits under the Plan. 

(b) Deemed separation from service. Unless otherwise elected under AA§10-1(l), an individual shall not be treated as 
having been severed from employment during any period the individual is performing service in the Uniformed 
Services for purposes of receiving a Plan distribution under Code §401(k)(2)(B)(i)(I). 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Section 11 – Miscellaneous Provisions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page 34 62568.002

11-4 ELECTION NOT TO PARTICIPATE (see Section 2.08 of the Plan). All Participants share in any allocation under this Plan 
and no Employee may waive out of Plan participation. 

To allow Employees to make a one-time irrevocable waiver, check below.

 An Employee may make a one-time irrevocable election not to participate under the Plan.  

11-5 TREATMENT OF CERTAIN BENEFITS. The protected benefits rules under Code §411(d)(6)) do not apply to the Plan. 
However, the Employer may describe below (or in a separate addendum attached to this Adoption Agreement) the treatment of 
certain benefits following events such as plan merger or consolidation, transfer of assets or similar events.

Describe treatment of benefits: 

[Note: If the benefit described here in the Plan or a plan being merged into the Plan is not either (i) available as a provision 
through the Pre-Approved Plan or (ii) the subject of a prior determination, advisory, or opinion letter, the Employer cannot rely 
on the Pre-Approved Plan Provider’s opinion letter for qualification with respect to such benefit. If the benefit described here in 
the Plan or a plan being merged into the Plan is not permitted in a pre-approved plan, as described in Section 6.03 of Revenue 
Procedure 2017-41, such provision must be discontinued no later than the date the Employer adopts this Pre-Approved Plan or, 
in the case of a merger, the merger date.] 

11-6 SPECIAL RULES FOR MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLANS.  If the Plan is a Multiple Employer Plan (as designated under AA 
§2-6), the rules applicable to Multiple Employer Plans under Section 16.07 of the Plan apply. 

 The following special rules apply with respect to Multiple Employer Plans: 

[Note: Any special rules under this AA §11-6 must satisfy the nondiscrimination requirements under Code §401(a)(4) 
and must satisfy the rules applicable to Multiple Employer Plans under Code §413(c).]  



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Appendix A – Special Effective Dates

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page A - 1 62568.002

APPENDIX A
SPECIAL EFFECTIVE DATES

[Note: This Appendix A may be used to memorialize prior Plan provisions that pertain to sources that no longer accept new 
contributions under the Plan.]

 A-1 Eligible Employees. The definition of Eligible Employee under AA §3 is effective as follows: 

 A-2 Minimum age and service conditions. The minimum age and service conditions and Entry Date provisions specified in AA 
§4 are effective as follows: 

 A-3 Compensation definitions. The compensation definitions under AA §5 are effective as follows: 

 A-4 Employer Contributions. The Employer Contribution provisions under the Plan are effective as follows: 

 A-5 After-Tax Employee and Pick-Up Contributions. The provisions of the Plan addressing Employee After-Tax 
Contributions and Pick-Up Contribution provisions under the Plan are effective as follows: 

 A-6 Salary Deferrals. The Salary Deferral provisions under AA §6A are effective as follows: 
 

 A-7 Matching Contributions. The Matching Contribution provisions under AA §6B are effective as follows: 

 A-8 Retirement ages. The retirement age provisions under AA §7 are effective as follows: 

 A-9 Vesting and forfeiture rules. The rules regarding vesting and forfeitures under AA §8 are effective as follows: 

 A-10 Distribution provisions. The distribution provisions under AA §9 are effective as follows: 

 A-11 In-service distributions and Required Minimum Distributions.  The provisions regarding in-service distribution and 
Required Minimum Distributions under AA §10 are effective as follows: 

 A-12 Miscellaneous provisions. The provisions under AA §11 are effective as follows: 

 A-13 Special effective date provisions for merged plans. If any qualified retirement plans have been merged into this Plan, the 
provisions of Section 14.03 of the Plan apply, as follows: 

 A-14 Other special effective dates: 

 A-15 Special effective dates for restated pre-approved plans: Use this A-15 to memorialize plan operational changes that have 
occurred after the general effective date of the plan and the actual plan restatement adoption date. Adopting employers may 
use the above Special Effective Date options (A-1 through A-14) to memorialize these changes or they may use this A-15. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Appendix B – Loan Policy

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page B - 1 62568.002

APPENDIX B
LOAN POLICY

Use this Appendix B to identify elections dealing with the administration of Participant loans. These elections may be changed without 
amending this Adoption Agreement by substituting an updated Appendix B with new elections. Any modifications to this Appendix B, or 
any modifications to a separate loan policy describing the loan provisions selected under the Plan, will not affect an Employer's reliance 
on the IRS Favorable Letter. Loans are subject to any internal limitations or rules imposed by the Investment Arrangement or the service 
provider or platform.

B-1 Are PARTICIPANT LOANS permitted? (See Section 13 of the Plan.)
 (a) Yes 
 (b) No     

B-2 LOAN PROCEDURES.  
 (a) Loans will be provided under the default loan procedures set forth in Section 13 of the Plan, unless modified under this 

Appendix B.     
 (b) Loans will be provided under a separate written loan policy. [Note: If this subsection (b) is checked, do not complete the 

rest of this Appendix B.] 

B-3 AVAILABILITY OF LOANS. Participant loans are available to all active Participants and Beneficiaries. Participant loans are 
not available to a former Employee or Beneficiary (including an Alternate Payee under a QDRO). To override this default 
provision, complete this AA §B-3: 
 (a) A former Employee or Beneficiary (including an Alternate Payee) who has a vested Account Balance may request a 

loan from the Plan.  
 (b) A “limited participant” as defined in Section 3.05 of the Plan may not request a loan from the Plan.  
 (c) An officer or director of the Employer, as defined for purposes of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, may not request a loan from 

the Plan.
 (d) Describe limitations on receiving loans under the Plan: 

[Note: Any limitation under subsection (d) must be definitely determinable and not provide any Employer discretion.] 

B-4 LOAN LIMITS. The default loan policy under Section 13.03 of the Plan allows Participants to take a loan provided all 
outstanding loans do not exceed 50% of the Participant’s vested Account Balance. To override the default loan policy to allow 
loans up to $10,000, even if greater than 50% of the Participant’s vested Account Balance, check this AA §B-4. 
 A Participant may take a loan equal to the greater of $10,000 or 50% of the Participant's vested Account Balance. 

[Note: If this AA §B-4 is checked, the Participant may be required to provide adequate security as required under 
Section 13.06 of the Plan.]   

B-5 NUMBER OF LOANS. The default loan policy under Section 13.04 of the Plan restricts Participants to one loan outstanding at 
any time. To override the default loan policy and permit Participants to have more than one loan outstanding at any time, 
complete subsection (a) or (b) below.  
 (a) A Participant may have         loans outstanding at any time.  
 (b) There are no restrictions on the number of loans a Participant may have outstanding at any time.    

B-6 LOAN AMOUNT. The default loan policy under Section 13.04 of the Plan provides that a Participant may not receive a loan of 
less than $1,000. To modify the minimum loan amount or to add a maximum loan amount, complete this AA §B-6. 
 (a) There is no minimum loan amount.  
 (b) The minimum loan amount is $                       .  
 (c) The maximum loan amount is $                       .   

B-7 INTEREST RATE. The default loan policy under Section 13.05 of the Plan provides for an interest rate commensurate with the 
interest rates charged by local commercial banks for similar loans. To override the default loan policy and provide a specific 
interest rate to be charged on Participant loans, complete this AA §B-7.  
 (a) The prime interest rate plus         percentage point(s).  

 (b) The interest rate is determined in accordance with the terms of the Investment Arrangement, service provider 
procedures, or other loan policy document adopted by the Plan Administrator.

 (c) Describe:   



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Appendix B – Loan Policy

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page B - 2 62568.002

[Note: Any interest rate described in this AA §B-7 must be reasonable and must apply uniformly to all Participants.]  

B-8 PURPOSE OF LOAN. The default loan policy under Section 13.02 of the Plan provides that a Participant may receive a 
Participant loan for any purpose. To modify the default loan policy to restrict the availability of Participant loans to hardship 
events, check this AA §B-8. 
 (a) A Participant may only receive a Participant loan upon the demonstration of a hardship event, as described in Section 

7.10(e)(1)(i) of the Plan.  
 (b) A Participant may only receive a Participant loan under the following circumstances:    

B-9 APPLICATION OF LOAN LIMITS. If Participant loans are not available from all contribution sources, the limitations under 
Code §72(p) and the adequate security requirements of the Department of Labor regulations will be applied by taking into account 
the Participant’s entire Account Balance. To override this provision, complete this AA §B-9.  
 The loan limits and adequate security requirements will be applied by taking into account only those contribution 

Accounts which are available for Participant loans.  

B-10 CURE PERIOD. The Plan provides that a Participant incurs a loan default if a Participant does not repay a missed payment by 
the end of the calendar quarter following the calendar quarter in which the missed payment was due. To override this default 
provision to apply a shorter cure period, complete this AA §B-10. 
 The cure period for determining when a Participant loan is treated as in default will be              days (cannot exceed 90) 

following the end of the month in which the loan payment is missed. 

 (b) The cure period for determining when a Participant loan is treated as in default will be the greater of              days 
(cannot exceed 90) following the end of the month in which the loan payment is missed or the last day of the second 
calendar quarter following the calendar quarter in which the missed payment was due. 

 (c) The cure period for determining when a loan is treated as in default will be              days (cannot exceed 90) following 
the first missed loan payment. 

B-11 PERIODIC REPAYMENT – PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE. If a Participant loan is for the purchase of a Participant’s primary 
residence, the loan repayment period for the purchase of a principal residence may not exceed ten (10) years. To override this 
default provision, complete this AA §B-11.
 (a) The Plan does not permit loan payments to exceed five (5) years, even for the purchase of a principal residence.  
 (b) The loan repayment period for the purchase of a principal residence may not exceed           years (may not exceed 30).  
 (c) Loans for the purchase of a Participant’s primary residence may be payable over any reasonable period commensurate 

with the period permitted by commercial lenders for similar loans.   

B-12 TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT. Section 13.10(a) of the Plan provides that a Participant loan becomes due and payable 
in full upon the Participant’s termination of employment. To override this default provision, complete this AA §B-12.  
 A Participant loan will not become due and payable in full upon the Participant’s termination of employment.   

B-13 DIRECT ROLLOVER OF A LOAN NOTE. Section 13.10(b) of the Plan provides that upon termination of employment a 
Participant may request the Direct Rollover of a loan note. To override this default provision, complete this AA §B-13.  
 A Participant may not request the Direct Rollover of the loan note upon termination of employment.  

B-14 LOAN RENEGOTIATION. The default loan policy provides that a Participant may renegotiate a loan, provided the 
renegotiated loan separately satisfies the reasonable interest rate requirement, the adequate security requirement, the periodic 
repayment requirement and the loan limitations under the Plan. The Employer may restrict the availability of renegotiations to 
prescribed purposes provided the ability to renegotiate a Participant loan is available on a non-discriminatory basis. To override 
the default loan policy and restrict the ability of a Participant to renegotiate a loan, complete this AA §B-14. 
 (a) A Participant may not renegotiate the terms of a loan.  
 (b) The following special provisions apply with respect to renegotiated loans:    

B-15 SOURCE OF LOAN. Participant loans may be made from all available contribution sources, to the extent vested, unless 
designated otherwise under this AA §B-15. 
 Participant loans will not be available from the following contribution sources: 

 Participant loans will only be available from the following contribution sources: 

B-16 SPOUSAL CONSENT. Spousal consent is not required for a Participant to receive a loan, unless required by State law. To 
override this provision, complete this AA §B-16.

 Spousal consent is required to receive a Participant loan. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Appendix B – Loan Policy

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page B - 3 62568.002

B-17 MODIFICATIONS TO DEFAULT LOAN PROVISIONS. 
 The following special rules will apply with respect to Participant loans under the Plan: 

[Note: Any provision under this AA §B-17 must satisfy the requirements under Code §72(p) and the regulations thereunder and 
will control over any inconsistent provisions of the Plan dealing with the administration of Participant loans.]        



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Appendix C – Administrative Elections

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page C - 1 62568.002

APPENDIX C
ADMINISTRATIVE ELECTIONS

Use this Appendix C to identify certain elections dealing with the administration of the Plan. These elections may be changed without 
amending this Adoption Agreement by substituting an updated Appendix C with new elections. The provisions selected under this 
Appendix C do not create qualification issues and any changes to the provisions under this Appendix C will not affect the Employer's 
reliance on the IRS Favorable Letter.

C-1 DIRECTION OF INVESTMENTS. Are Participants permitted to direct investments? (See Section 10.07 of the Plan.)
 (a) No  
 (b) Yes, but subject to the following restrictions: 

 (1) No restrictions apply

 (2) Only for Accounts that are 100% vested 

 (3) Specify Accounts: 

 (4) Describe any special rules that apply for purposes of direction of investments: 

[Note: This subsection (4) may be used to describe special investment provisions for specific types of 
investments.] 

C-2 ROLLOVER CONTRIBUTIONS. Does the Plan accept Rollover Contributions? (See Section 3.05 of the Plan.)
 (a) No 
 (b) Yes

 (1) If this subsection (1) is checked, an Employee may make a Rollover Contribution to the Plan prior to 
becoming a Participant in the Plan. 

 (2) Check this subsection (2) if the Plan will accept Rollover Contributions from former Employees with an 
Account Balance under the Plan.

 (3) Describe any special rules for accepting Rollover Contributions: 

[Note: The Employer may designate in this subsection (3), or in separate written procedures, the extent to which it will accept 
rollovers from designated plan types. For example, the Employer may decide not to accept rollovers from certain designated 
plans (e.g., 403(b) plans, §457 plans or IRAs). Any special rollover procedures will apply uniformly to all Participants under the 
Plan.]

C-3 LIFE INSURANCE. Are life insurance investments permitted? (See Section 10.08 of the Plan.) 
 (a) No 
 (b) Yes   

C-4 QDRO PROCEDURES. Although the requirements of Code §414(p) do not apply to the Plan, the Employer may elect to apply 
the procedures set forth under Section 11.05 of the Plan (which are patterned after the rules under Code §414(p)) by electing 
subsection (a) below or may elect not to apply the procedures set forth under Section 11.05 of the Plan and instead, describe the 
Plan’s procedures for addressing domestic relations orders below or in separate administrative procedures.

 (a) The Employer elects to have the requirements of Section 11.05 of the Plan apply to its Plan.

 (b) The requirements of Section 11.05 of the Plan do not apply to the Plan. The procedures for addressing the receipt of 
domestic relations orders are either set forth below or in separate administrative procedures.

Describe domestic relations procedures:   



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Employer Signature Page

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page ER - 1 62568.002

EMPLOYER SIGNATURE PAGE

PURPOSE OF EXECUTION. This Signature Page is being executed for Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan to effect: 
 (a) The adoption of a new plan, effective  [insert Effective Date of Plan]. [Note: Date can be no earlier than the first day of the 

Plan Year in which the Plan is adopted.]
 (b) The restatement of an existing plan in order to comply with the requirements for Cycle 3 Pre-Approved Plans, pursuant to 

Rev. Proc. 2017-41. 
(1) Effective date of restatement: 1-1-2022 . [Note: Date can be no earlier than the first day of the Plan Year in which the 

restatement is adopted.]
(2) Name of plan(s) being restated: Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan
(3) The original effective date of the plan(s) being restated: 4-1-2002

 (c) An amendment or restatement of the Plan (other than to comply with the requirements for Cycle 3 Pre-Approved Plans under 
Rev. Proc. 2017-41). If this Plan is being amended, a snap-on amendment may be used to designate the modifications to the 
Plan or the updated pages of the Adoption Agreement may be substituted for the original pages in the Adoption Agreement. All 
prior Employer Signature Pages should be retained as part of this Adoption Agreement.
(1) Effective Date(s) of amendment/restatement: 
(2) Name of plan being amended/restated: 
(3) The original effective date of the plan being amended/restated: 
(4) If Plan is being amended, identify the Adoption Agreement section(s) being amended: 

PRE-APPROVED PLAN PROVIDER INFORMATION. The Pre-Approved Plan Provider (or authorized representative) will inform 
the Employer of any amendments made to the Plan and will notify the Employer if it discontinues or abandons the Plan. To be eligible to 
receive such notification, the Employer agrees to notify the Pre-Approved Plan Provider (or authorized representative) of any change in 
address. The Employer may direct inquiries regarding the Plan or the effect of the IRS Opinion Letter to the Pre-Approved Plan Provider 
(or authorized representative) at the following location: 

Name of Pre-Approved Plan Provider (or authorized representative): VALIC Retirement Services Company
Address: 2929 Allen Parkway L-10 Houston, TX 77019
Telephone number: 888-478-7020  

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THIS PRE-APPROVED PLAN. A failure to properly complete the elections in this 
Adoption Agreement or to operate the Plan in accordance with applicable law may result in disqualification of the Plan. The Employer 
may rely on the Favorable IRS Letter issued by the Internal Revenue Service to the Pre-Approved Plan Provider as evidence that the Plan 
is qualified under Code §401(a), to the extent provided in Rev. Proc. 2017-41. The Employer may not rely on the Favorable IRS Letter in 
certain circumstances or with respect to certain qualification requirements, which are specified in the Favorable IRS Letter issued with 
respect to the Plan and in Rev. Proc. 2017-41. In order to obtain reliance in such circumstances or with respect to such qualification 
requirements, the Employer may need to apply to the Internal Revenue Service for a determination letter. 

By executing this Adoption Agreement, the Employer intends to adopt the provisions as set forth in this Adoption Agreement and the 
related Plan document. By signing this Adoption Agreement, the individual below represents that he/she has the authority to execute this 
Plan document on behalf of the Employer. This Adoption Agreement may only be used in conjunction with Basic Plan Document #03. 
The Employer understands that the Pre-Approved Plan Provider has no responsibility or liability regarding the suitability of the Plan for 
the Employer’s needs, or the options elected under this Adoption Agreement. It is recommended that the Employer consult with legal 
counsel before executing this Adoption Agreement. 

Inyo County
(Name of Employer)

(Name of authorized representative) (Title) 

(Signature) (Date)



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Trust Declaration

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page TD - 1 62568.002

TRUST DECLARATION

This Trust Declaration may be used to identify and adopt the Trust associated with the Plan. 
[Note:  The Internal Revenue Service does not review the Trust Declaration, or the trust provisions associated with Pre-Approved Plans. 
Therefore, the provisions of the Trust Declaration, ASC Trust Agreement or any separate Trust agreement have not been approved by the 
IRS and the IRS opinion letter does not cover such Trust Agreement.  The Provider, the Trustee and the adopting Employer should review 
the applicable Trust provisions, and any modifications thereto, with legal counsel to ensure the provisions are appropriate for the Plan 
and consistent with Employer elections.]

Name of Plan. Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

Name of Employer. Inyo County

Effective date of Trust Agreement: 1-1-2022

(a) The Trust terms are: 

 (1) Determined under the Trust provisions contained in the ASC Trust Agreement - Standard.  
[Note: Trustee must complete the Trustee Signature section under Section (b) below.]

 (i) Directed Trustee. The Trustee may only invest Plan assets as directed by the Plan Administrator, the 
Employer, an Investment Manager or other Named Fiduciary or, to the extent authorized under the Plan, a 
Plan Participant.

 (ii) Discretionary Trustee. The Trustee has discretion to invest Plan assets, unless specifically directed otherwise 
by the Plan Administrator, the Employer, an Investment Manager or other Named Fiduciary or, to the extent 
authorized under the Plan, a Plan Participant.

[Modification of ASC Trust Agreement Provisions. The Employer may amend the Trust provisions as provided 
under Section 1.18 of the ASC Trust Agreement. Plan provisions will override any conflicting provisions in the Trust 
Agreement, including any modification thereto. The Provider and the adopting Employer should review any 
modifications of the ASC Trust Agreement with legal counsel to ensure the provisions are appropriate for the Plan and 
consistent with Employer elections.]

 (2) Determined under a separate Trust agreement(s). The Trust provisions are contained in a separate Trust Agreement 
that has been furnished to the Employer. Notwithstanding the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Trust Agreement shall 
control the rights and responsibilities of the Trustee with respect to the Trust and the assets held in such Trust. 

Name of Trustee. 

Title of Trust Agreement. 

Address of Trustee. 
[Note: In using a separate Trust Agreement, the Trustee may adopt such Trust Agreement by either completing the 
Trustee Signature section under Section (b) below or may execute the separate Trust Agreement. In either case, the 
information above – Name of Trustee, Title of Trust Agreement and Address of Trustee – must be completed.]

 (3) Plan is funded with custodial accounts, annuity contracts and/or insurance contracts. There is no Trust associated 
with the Plan because the Plan is funded exclusively with custodial accounts, annuity contracts and/or insurance 
contracts. 
[Note: No signature is required under this Trust Declaration if the Plan is funded exclusively with custodial accounts, 
annuity contracts and/or insurance contracts. The Employer or Plan Administrator may enter into a separate 
agreement with the custodian or insurance company. Such separate agreement must be consistent with the terms of the 
Plan.]    

(b) Trustee/Employer Signatures.

(1) Trustee Signature. By signing below, the designated Trustee(s) accept the responsibilities and obligations set forth 
under the Trust Agreement specified in this Trust Declaration. By signing this Trust Declaration Page, the individual(s) 
below represent that they have the authority to sign on behalf of the Trustee.  

AIG Federal Savings Bank
(Print name of Trustee)

(Signature of Trustee or authorized representative) (Date)
 

(2) Employer Signature. By signing below, the Employer accepts the terms of the Trust Agreement, as specified in this 
Trust Declaration.  By signing this Trust Declaration, the individual below represents that he/she has the authority to 
adopt the Trust Agreement and sign on behalf of the Employer as sponsor of the Plan.  



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Trust Declaration

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page TD - 2 62568.002

(Signature of Employer’s authorized representative) (Date)

(Print name of Employer’s authorized representative)

(Title of Employer’s authorized representative)        



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Interim Amendment – Hardship Distribution Elective Provisions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page HD - 1 62568.002

   

INTERIM AMENDMENT - HARDSHIP DISTRIBUTIONS
ELECTIVE PROVISIONS

These Elective Provisions provide for elections as allowed by the Final Regulations and the Hardship Distribution Interim Amendment, 
attached  to the Basic Plan Document. In some cases, the Pre-Approved Plan Provider has Defaults as indicated by the items marked as 
Default under these Elective Provisions.  If the adopting Employer approves of the Defaults of the Pre-Approved Plan Provider, the 
adopting Employer does not need to execute this Hardship Distribution Interim Amendment. If the adopting Employer wishes to override 
any of the Defaults of the Pre-Approved Plan Provider, the adopting Employer should make the appropriate election(s) in the Elective 
Provisions below and sign this Hardship Distribution Interim Amendment. If the Plan does not permit Hardship distributions, no 
elections should be made below.

HD-1 SOURCES FOR HARDSHIP DISTRIBUTIONS 

(a) Source accounts (not including earnings). For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2018 (or such later date specified 
under HD-1(a)(8) or HD-1(a)(9) below or the effective date of a new Plan), a Participant may take an in-service distribution 
upon the occurrence of a Hardship that satisfies the Hardship distribution rules under Section 8.10(e) of the Plan, as amended 
by this interim amendment, with respect to the following sources: 

 (1) No change to current Plan sources available for Hardship distributions under AA §§10-1 and 10-2.
 (2) Qualified Nonelective Contribution (QNEC) Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (3) Qualified Matching Contribution (QMAC) Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (4) Safe Harbor Employer Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (5) Safe Harbor Matching Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (6) QACA Safe Harbor Employer Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (7) QACA Safe Harbor Matching Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (8) Effective date is January 1, 2020, whether Plan has a calendar or fiscal Plan Year.
 (9) Describe effective date (if later than the beginning of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018) for 

which the election(s) above apply: 

(b) Earnings on source accounts. For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2018 (or such later date specified under HD-
1(b)(11) or HD-1(b)(12) below or the effective date of a new Plan), amounts available for Hardship distributions include 
earnings on the following available sources:  

 (1) Amounts available for Hardship include earnings on all available sources.
 (2) No change to current Plan rule (i.e., earnings are not available on Salary Deferrals, except for those on 

grandfathered (pre-1989) earnings, if applicable).   
 (3) Pre-Tax Salary Deferral Account
 (4) Roth Deferral Account
 (5) Qualified Nonelective Contribution (QNEC) Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (6) Qualified Matching Contribution (QMAC) Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (7) Safe Harbor Employer Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (8) Safe Harbor Matching Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (9) QACA Safe Harbor Employer Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (10) QACA Safe Harbor Matching Contribution Account (Not applicable to 401(a) Governmental Plans)
 (11) Effective date is January 1, 2020, whether Plan has a calendar or fiscal Plan Year.
 (12) Describe effective date (if later than the beginning of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018) for 

which the election(s) above apply:   

HD-2 NEED TO OBTAIN ALL AVAILABLE LOANS (Complete only if Employer maintains any qualified plan(s) that permits 
Participant loans.)

 (a) For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2018 (or such later date specified in HD-2(d) or HD-2(e) below or 
the effective date of a new Plan), if a Participant requests a Hardship distribution from any of the Accounts 
specified in HD-1 above and AA §§10-1 and 10-2, the Participant is NO LONGER required to obtain all 
nontaxable loans available under the Plan and all other plans maintained by the Employer.

 (b) No change to current Plan provisions. Participants are required to obtain all nontaxable loans available under the 
Plan and all plans maintained by the Employer.

 (c) Describe any special requirements with respect to the need to first obtain all available loans: 
 (d) Effective date is January 1, 2020, whether Plan has a calendar or fiscal Plan Year.
 (e) Describe other effective date (if later than the beginning of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018) for 

which the election(s) above apply. 



Inyo County Defined Contribution Retirement Plan 
Interim Amendment – Hardship Distribution Elective Provisions

© Copyright 2020
Cycle 3 Nonstandardized Governmental Plan #03-001 Page HD - 2 62568.002

HD-3 SUSPENSION OF ABILITY TO MAKE SALARY DEFERRALS AND AFTER-TAX EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 
DURING 2019. (Applicable only to Plans that were using the safe harbor Hardship distribution suspension rule.)  

[Note: Under the Final Regulations, adopting Employers may continue to apply the suspension of Salary Deferrals and After-Tax 
Employee Contributions rules for the 2019 Plan Year. However, in no event, may the Plan provide for a suspension of an 
Employee’s Salary Deferrals or After-Tax Employee Contributions as a condition of obtaining a Hardship distribution for 
Hardship distributions made on or after January 1, 2020.]

 (a) For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2018 (or such later date specified in HD-3(d) below) and 
applicable to Hardship distributions made before January 1, 2020, if a Participant takes a Hardship distribution as 
permitted under the Plan, the Participant was NOT suspended from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax 
Employee Contributions, if applicable) for any period of time after the receipt of the Hardship distribution.

 (b) No change to current Plan provisions. For Hardship distributions made before January 1, 2020, the Participant 
continued to be suspended from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax Employee Contributions, if applicable) 
for a period of 6 months after the receipt of the Hardship distribution.
 Suspensions on Hardship distributions made after July 1, 2019 will cease effective January 1, 2020.

 (c) Describe any special requirements with respect to the suspension from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax 
Employee Contributions, if applicable): 

 (d) Describe the effective date (if later than the beginning of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018) for 
which the election(s) above apply: 

HD-4 APPLICATION OF SUSPENSION REQUIREMENT FOR PRE-2019 PLAN YEAR HARDSHIP DISTRIBUTIONS. 
(Applicable only to Plans that were using the Hardship distribution suspension rule as of the last day of the 2018 Plan Year.)

 (a) No change to current Plan provisions. A Participant who received a Hardship distribution prior to the beginning 
of the 2019 Plan Year continued to be suspended from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax Employee 
Contributions, if applicable) for a period of 6 months after the receipt of the Hardship distribution.

 (b) Effective on the first day of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018 (or such later date specified in 
HD-4(d) below), a Participant who received a Hardship distribution prior to the beginning of the 2019 Plan Year 
was no longer suspended from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax Employee Contributions, if applicable).

 (c) Describe any special rules with respect to the suspension from making Salary Deferrals (and After-Tax 
Employee Contributions, if applicable) for Participants who have received pre-2019 Hardship distributions: 

 (d) Describe the effective date (if later than the beginning of the Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2018) for 
which the election(s) above apply: 

HD-5 OTHER APPLICABLE RULES. Describe any other rules, such as conditions for receiving a Hardship distribution, not 
otherwise reflected in the Plan or Hardship Distribution Interim Amendment: 

HD-6 MEMORIALIZATION OF PRIOR OPERATION. The elections in this Hardship Distribution Interim Amendment should 
reflect current Plan operations. The Employer may memorialize prior plan operations relevant to the implementation of the Final 
Regulations by describing such operations below:  

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENT

Pursuant to Revenue Procedure 2015-36 and Revenue Procedure 2017-41 (as applicable), these Hardship Distribution Interim 
Amendment Elective Provisions have been adopted by the Pre-Approved Plan Provider on behalf of all adopting Employers. This 
amendment supersedes any contrary provisions under the Plan. If the Employer wishes to override the Default elections of the Pre-
Approved Plan Provider, the Employer (or the authorized representative of the Employer) must execute this Hardship Distribution 
Interim Amendment by signing below. This amendment applies to the signatory Employer and all Participating Employers under the 
Plan.  

Inyo County
(Name of Employer) 

(Name of Authorized Representative, if applicable) (Title) 

(Signature) (Date)       



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Counsel 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  John Vallejo 
  
SUBJECT:  Legal Services Agreement assignment and amendment. 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) approve Assignment of the Agreement between the County of Inyo and Wendel Rosen LLP to 
Fennemore Wendel LLP, and authorize the Chairperson to sign the transition letter; and B) approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the agreement to extend the term to cover future litigation of the same nature. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The assignment is needed due to a merger of the law firm providing legal services with another law firm.  The 
amendment to the Agreement's term is warranted given the premature ending of our initial litigation attempt.  
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not assign this agreement or to extend the term to cover future anticipated litigation 
of the same nature.  This is not recommended given the important nature of the professional relationship 
between the County and the attorneys providing the County with legal services. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING: 
There will be no change to pre-existing funding provisions.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County - Transition Letter 
2. Amendment Number 1  
3. Wendel Rosen LLC Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Mallory Watterson Created/Initiated - 7/5/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 7/5/2022 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/6/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 7/7/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 7/7/2022 



  

024585.0001\6736359.1  

 

   
1111 Broadway, 24th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94607-4036 

T:  510.834.6600 
F:  510.834.1928 

www.wendel.com 
rthornton@wendel.com 

   
 

June 28, 2022 

NOTICE TO CLIENT OF CHANGE IN RELATIONSHIP 
AND REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONTRACT ASSIGNMENT 

 
VIA EMAIL 
 
John Carl Vallejo, Esq. 
County Counsel 
County of Inyo 
PO Box M 
Independence, CA 93526-0612 
 
jcvallejo@inyocounty.us  

 

 
Re:  Legal Representation; Wendel Client No. 024585 

Agreement Between County of Inyo and Wendel Rosen LLP for the Provision of 
Legal Services, for the term beginning December 1, 2020 ("Agreement") 

 
Dear Client: 

Wendel Rosen has been honored to serve its clients’ legal needs since 1909.  We are 
delighted to announce that, to serve those needs more fully and expand the range of legal services we 
offer, Wendel Rosen will combine with the law firm of Fennemore Craig (“Fennemore” / 
www.fennemorelaw.com) as of July 1, 2022, and the former Wendel Rosen attorneys and offices will 
be known as Fennemore Wendel.  In virtually every instance, the same Wendel attorneys who have 
served you previously will continue to work with you as members of Fennemore Wendel.  There will 
be no changes to our billing rates or the other economic terms of our engagement. 

Like Wendel Rosen, Fennemore has a distinguished history of providing the highest quality 
legal services to its clients for more than 100 years.  Fennemore currently has over 170 attorneys in 
11 offices in the Western United States.  As members of Fennemore Wendel, we will be able to offer 
a broader platform and range of legal services from our current Oakland, Walnut Creek and Modesto 
locations, as well as our new offices in California, Arizona, Colorado, and Nevada.  

Effective July 1, all of Wendel Rosen’s lawyers will join Fennemore.  As members of 
Fennemore Wendel, my colleagues and I would be honored to continue as your lawyers, both for 
existing matters and for any future matters that may arise.   

  



WENDEL ROSEN LLP 

 

John Carl Vallejo, Esq. 
June 28, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

024585.0001\6736359.1  

As of July 1, my formal contact information will be: 

Robin L. Thornton, Esq. 
Fennemore Wendel 
1111 Broadway, 24th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94607 
510-834-6600 
<RThornton@fennemorelaw.com> 

My direct dial phone number will remain the same, and emails sent to my current 
wendel.com email address will be forwarded to my new email address.  The same will apply to all of 
the other Wendel Rosen attorneys, if any, who currently perform services for Inyo County. 

Under the ethical rules governing lawyers’ conduct, you have the absolute right to choose 
who will be responsible for your continuing legal representation.  I am writing to you today 
requesting that Inyo County provide written consent to the assignment of our contract from Wendel 
Rosen LLP to Fennemore LLP as provided at Section 15 of the Agreement. 

For your convenience, we have included a form of assignment below to satisfy the written 
authorization requirement under the contract.  It is very important that you respond to this letter as 
soon as possible by countersigning, dating, and returning the attached page or by providing a form 
of assignment acceptable to you.  We hope that you can respond before June 30, so that we have your 
consent for the assignment prior to the July 1 transition date.  If you are unable to respond to this 
letter by June 30, we will move your file to Fennemore.Wendel and will continue to work on the 
County's matters to protect its legal interests and so that we can continue to respond to matters and 
questions as they arise, and we will follow-up to ensure that we obtain the required consent.  If you 
believe that you are unable to consent to this assignment for any reason, please contact me as soon as 
possible so I may address any concerns you may have, or make arrangements for the transfer of our 
files to another firm of your choice. 

We intend to make this transition with as little disruption to you as possible.  Please feel free 
to contact me directly at any time if you have any questions or concerns.  

 Sincerely, 
 
WENDEL ROSEN LLP 
 
 
 
Robin L. Thornton

 
 



WENDEL ROSEN LLP 

 

John Carl Vallejo, Esq. 
June 28, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

024585.0001\6736359.1  

Consent to Assignment of Contract  
 
On behalf of Inyo County, I consent to the assignment of the Agreement Between County 

of Inyo and Wendel Rosen LLP for the Provision of Legal Services, for the term beginning 
December 1, 2020 , from Wendel Rosen LLP to Fennemore LLP, a California limited liability 
partnership, DBA Fennemore Wendel (“Fennemore Wendel”).  From and after July 1, 2022, all 
references in said contract to Wendel Rosen LLP shall mean and refer to Fennemore Wendel. 

 
 
Date:_________________________  Signed: ______________________________ 

       Name: ______________________________ 
       Title: ______________________________  

Please return the signed form via PDF and email to rthornton@wendel.com, or by U.S. Mail or 
overnight delivery to:  
 
Robin L. Thornton 
Wendel Rosen LLP 
1111 Broadway, 24th Floor 
Oakland, CA  94607 







In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supenrisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the I't dayof December2020 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

County Counsel
- WendelRosen
LLP Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the agreement
between the County of lnyo and Wendel Rosen LLP of Oakland, CA, for the provision of legal
services in an amount not to exceed $190,000 for the period of December 1,2020, until
completion of litigation unless sooner terminated, and authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 4-0, with Supervisor
Tillemans absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this l"t
Day of December, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
C lerk of the Board of Supervisors

Routing

ccx
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAQ:

Other:

DATE: December 10,2020

By.

/ .. 1

/t,t cl(-, t(F"..4 f/uL^ -



*2y,

County of Inyo

County Counsel

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: December 1, 2020

FROM: Marshall Rudolph

SUBJECT: Approve agreement between the County of lnyo and Wendel Rosen LLP

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve the agreement between the County of lnyo and Wendel Rosen LLP of Oakland, CA, for
the provision of legal services in an amount not to exceed $190,000 forthe period of December 1, 2020, until
completion of litigation unless sooner terminated, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUM MARY/JUSTIFICATION :

The proposed agreement would retain the legal services of Wendel Rosen LLP, who would act as outside
counsel for the County in its pending eminent domain litigation to acquire certain landfill properties currently
leased from the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP). The County's previous outside counsel
for that litigation was the firm of Greenan Peffer Salander and Lally LLP. The lead attorney on that case (Kevin
Lally) has retired and the firm has decided to phase out of eminent domain as a practice area. The other attorney
on that case (Robin Thornton) has moved to the Wendel Rosen firm, where she can continue to work on the case
if the proposed agreement is approved, as is recommended. Wendel Rosen is a well-respected firm with practice
areas that include eminent domain and prominent attorneys with expertise in that area who would also work on
the case, including Les Hausrath. The contracted hourly rates are comparable to those of the Greenan firm and
consistent with the market place for such a firm's expertise and also with the rates charged by other outside
counsel that the County has retained recently.

Because of the unique circumstances giving rise to the need for this substitute counsel, which will curtail the
need for any further services from the Greenan Peffer firm, it is possible to disencumber the bulk of the amount of
budgeted funds that are remaining within the contract limit of that contract and re-encumber them for the Wendel
Rosen contract. The County budget team has been consulted regarding this approach and concurs.

Note: the eminent domain litigation is presently stayed while the County's appeal of a related CEQA case is
pending.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
You could decline to approve the proposed agreement. This is not recommended because the County needs



Agenda Request
Page 2

outside counsel for this litigation and is not currently represented (due to the disassociation of the Greenan firm
from the case). The eminent domain litigation is a specialized area beyond the expertise of the county counsel's
office and, in addition, the office does not have the time available to handle the litigation.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT
None

FINANCING:
Once the encumbrance is relieved from the prior contractor, funding is available in the County Counsel Budget
#010700, in the Professional Services object code 5265.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. lnyo County - Wendel Rosen Contract

APPROVALS:
Marshall Rudolph
Denelle Carrington
Darcy Ellis
Sue Dishion
Amy Shepherd

Greated/lnitiated - 1 1 I 1912020
Approved - 1111912020
Approved - 1112312020
Approved - 1112312020
Final Approval - 1 1 12312020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND WENDEL ROSEN LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the
legal services of Wendel Rosen LLP, of Oakland, California, (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in

consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND GONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in

Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by County Counsel or his designee. Requests to
the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's
need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level
or amount of services or work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.
County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of
any services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term
of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from December 1,2020, until completion of litigation unless
sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the office of County
Counsel. Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the
Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement
to Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to
under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval
of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 1 1 0061 5



C. lncidental Expenses. County shall reimburse Contractor in accordance with the Schedule
of Fees (Attachment B) for those lncidental Expenses which are specifically identified in the Schedule of
Fees and which are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the services and work requested by
County under this Agreement. Reimbursement by County for such lncidental Expenses will be limited to
Contractor's actual cost without regard to any administrative or overhead expenses incurred by Contractor in

obtaining or utilizing such incidental services or supplies. Reimbursement for actual costs will not exceed the
amounts set forth in the Schedule of Fees.

D. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

E. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem
expenses, if any, shall not exceed $190,000 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit'). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or
work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

F. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Contractor in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the last day
of the month following the month in which services were rendered. The statement to be submitted will cover
the period from the first (1st)day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding
month. This statement will identify the date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the
work which was performed on each day. Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization
of any incidental expenses, or travel or per diem expenses which have been approved in advance by County,
incurred by Contractor during that period. The itemized statement for incidental expenses, travel expenses
and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental expenses in accordance with the
County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the statement by the last day of the month,
County shall make payment to Contractor within 30 days after receipt of the statement.

G. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that
total annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four
hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no
responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page2

(2)

1 0061 5



(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the
California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete
and submit to the County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A, Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement. Further, during the term of this
Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and etfect.
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses
or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and
maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County, upon
execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in

Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. Except for those incidental expenses specifically identified in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment
B), County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in
procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor in
providing and maintaining items not specifically set forth in the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B), is the sole
responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 3 1 0061 5



Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in

Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

10. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 4 1 0061 5



litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contractor's obligation to
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, otficers, and employees harmless applies to any actualor
alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including the loss
of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense, or
other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its agents,
employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts or
omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees
harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement in this
Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the indemnification and other obligations described in this Section 11

shall not apply to any claim, action or proceeding adsing out of or resulting from any negligent or willful act
constituting or which could be brought as a claim for legal malpractice against Contractor, its officers,
employees, agents, or subconsultants. ln the event of any such claim, County shall make such claim as a
claim resulting from legal malpractice and not under the general indemnity provision of this section.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its

agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

'13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 5 1 0061 5



14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-four (24) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 6 1 0061 5



20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
four (24) (Amendment).

23. ATTORNEY'S FEES

lf either of the parties hereto brings an action or proceeding against the other, including, but not
limited to, an action to enforce or declare the cancellation, termination, or revision of the Agreement, the
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to receive from the other pafi all reasonable
attorney's fees and costs incurred in connection therewith.

24. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

25. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

COUNTY OF INYO:
County Counsel
P.O. Box M
224 North Edwards Street
lndependence, CA 93526

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
PageT 1 0061 5



GONTRACTOR:
WENDEL ROSEN LLP
1111 Broadway, 24h Floor
Oakland, CA 94607
Attn: Robin Thornton

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

27. COUNTERPARTS.

This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and all parts together shall be considered one agreement.
The parties agree that this Agreement may be deemed executed by the delivery of signatures of the Parties
by DocuSign or electronic transmission.

ilil ilil

[Signatures on following page]

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 8 1 0061 5





ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND WENDEL ROSEN LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM

FROM: December 1,2020, untilcompletion of litigation

SCOPE OF WORK:

1. Contractor shall provide legal services including advice and also representation of the County and
such of its agents, officers and employees as the County may designate, in applicable litigation before state
and federal courts, and county, state and federal administrative agencies. Contractor shall receive direction
from the lnyo County Board of Supervisors, County Counsel and/or County Administrator or designees.
Contractor shall also provide all secretarial and clerical support reasonably and customarily necessary to
perform such services under this Agreement.

2. Contractor shall maintain and retain files and materials on cases and other matters upon which
Contractor is working. Electronic copies of documents received and created by Contractor shall be delivered
to the County Counsel's office to be stored.

3. Contractor shall file and serve required pleadings, notices, discovery documents and materials on
behalf of the County, its officers, or employees. The Office of County Counsel will cooperate with Contractor
with regard to filing and service in lnyo County.

4. Contractor may send to the Office of County Counsel, one copy of those pleadings, notices,
discovery, documents and materials to be appropriately delivered to County officers and employees. The
Office of County Counsel will then make necessary copies and deliver the pleadings, notices, discovery,
documents and materials to the County officers and employees.

5. Contractor shall take the actions necessary to have all pleadings, notices, discovery, documents and
materials, which are to be served upon the County or its officers and employees after their first general
appearance, served upon both Contractor at his offices and the County Counsel at the lndependence office.
Contractor shall also provide to the County Counsel at the lndependence office, one copy of all pleadings,
notices, discovery and other documents served and or filed by Contractor on behalf of the County, its officers
or employees in electronic format.

6. Contractor, shall not bill for attorney's time in performing work or services which would ordinarily and
customarily be performed by a legal secretary or clerical support.

7. Contractor shall not accept other employment which will interfere or cause a conflict of interest with
representation of the County of lnyo and its agents, officers and employees without prior written approval
from County Counsel.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 10 1 0061 5



County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 1 1 1 0061 5



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND WENDEL ROSEN LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: December 1,2020, untilcompletion of litigation.

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

1. COMPENSATION:

Robin Thornton: $350.00/hour
Other Partners: $375.00/hour
Associates: $325. 00/hou r

Paralegal $ 1 45. 00/hour
Travel: Same as Above

2. INCIDENTAL EXPENSES

Contractor shall not be obligated to advance costs on behalf of County; however, for the purposes of
convenience and in order to expedite matters, Contractor reserves the right to advance costs on behalf of the
Client with Client's prior approval in the event a particular cost item exceeds $2,000.00 in amount and without
the prior approval of Client in the event a particular cost item totals $2,000.00 or less. Typical cost items
include, by way of example and not limitation, document preparation and word processing, long distance
telephone charges, farltelecopy charges (at $0.10 per page), appearance fees, messenger fees, travel
costs, bonds, witness fees, deposition and court reporter fees, transcript costs, expert witness fees,
investigative fees, etc.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 12 1 0061 5



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND WENDEL ROSEN LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM

FROM: December 1,2020, until completion of litigation.

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT

Travel shall be at the County's request and will be billed at cost.
Per diem travel from portal to portal will be at the current IRS rate

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 13 1 0061 5



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND WENDEL ROSEN LLP

FOR THE PROVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: December 1,2020, until completion of litigation.

lnsurance Requirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the
work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Gommercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage, including products-completed
operations, personal injury and advertising injury, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to this projecVlocation or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less
than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employe/s Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease.

(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no employees)

1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) lnsurance appropriate to the Consultant's
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.

lf the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the County requires and
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant. Any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be
available to the County.

Other lnsurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Add iti o n al I ns u red Sfafus

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 14 1 0061 5



1. The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in

connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an
endorsement to the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 201011 85 or both
CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used).

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance
or self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be
excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to the County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance.
Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation,
but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the County has received a waiver of subrogation
endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-lnsured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County. The
County may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acc epta b i I ity of I ns u re rs
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll,
unless othenryise acceptable to the County.

Claims Made Policies
lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning
of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5)
years after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Consultant must purchase
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimu m of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verificati on of Coverage
Consultant shallfurnish the County with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or
copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates
and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work commences.
However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the
Consultant's obligation to provide them. The County reserves the right to require complete,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 15 1 0061 5



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these
specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting allthe requirements
stated herein.

Special Risks or Circumstances
County reseryes the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of
the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 123
(lndependent Contractor - Schedule of Fees lncluding lncidental

Expenses/Schedule of Per Diem)
Page 16 100615







 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Counsel 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  County Counsel 
  
SUBJECT:  Findings Pursuant to AB 361 Authorizing Remote Board of Supervisors Meeting 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of the 
existing State of Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local 
officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of emergency continues 
to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued a Proclamation of State of Emergency in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic. That Proclamation remains in effect. Subsequently, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-29-20, which modified the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, 
Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the “Brown Act”), in order to allow legislative bodies to meet from 
remote locations without opening those locations to the public or complying with certain agenda requirements. 
Those modifications remained in effect through September 30, 2021. 
 
In anticipation of the expiration of the applicable provisions of Executive Order N-29-20, the California legislature 
adopted, and Governor Newsom signed, AB 361. AB 361 amended the Brown Act to allow local legislative 
bodies to continue to meet under the modified teleconferencing rules until January 1, 2024, if the meeting occurs 
during a proclaimed state of emergency and the legislative body finds that it has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the state of emergency and either: measures to promote social distancing have been imposed or 
recommended by local health officials; and/or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of 
the members to meet safely in person. 
 
The Inyo County Health Officer currently recommends that measures be implemented to promote social 
distancing, including the holding of virtual meetings. A copy of the memo memorializing that recommendation is 
included in your agenda materials. Adopting the recommended action would therefore make the required findings 
that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the emergency and that local health officials have 
recommended measures to promote social distancing or the state of emergency continues to directly impact the 
ability of the members to meet safely in person. In order to continue to meet under those modified rules, the 
Board will again need to reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency and again make at least one of 
the additional findings required by AB 361. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If your Board chooses to not make the required findings, the Board must meet in person as required by the 
Brown Act, and any Board Member participating via teleconference must make their location open and available 
to the public during the meeting.  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:  
  
FINANCING:  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/24/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 6/25/2022 



Strengthening Resilience & Well-Being in Our Community 

Date: September 23, 2021 

To: Inyo County Local Agency Governing Bodies 

From: Dr. James Richardson, Inyo County Public Health Officer 

Re: Continued Recommendation Re Social Distancing and Remote Meetings 

In order to help minimize the spread of COVID-19, I recommend that physical/social distancing measures continue to be 
practiced throughout our Inyo County communities, including at public meetings of the Board of Supervisors and other 
public agencies.   Individuals continue to contract COVID-19 and spread the infection throughout our communities. Social 
distancing, masking, and vaccination are crucial mitigation measures to prevent the disease’s spread. Remote public agency 
meetings allow for the participation of the community, agency staff, presenters, and board members in a safe environment, 
with no risk of contagion. As such, and since this disease negatively and directly impacts the ability of public agencies to 
conduct public meetings safely in person, it is my recommendation that local public agencies conduct their public meetings 
remotely. 

This recommendation will remain in place until further notice. 

Dr. James A. Richardson 
Inyo County Health Officer 

County of Inyo 

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Public Health, Suite 203-C 

1360 N. Main Street, Bishop CA 93514 
TEL: (760) 873-7868 FAX: (760) 873-7800 

Marilyn Mann, Director 
mmann@inyocounty.us  



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

District Attorney 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Tom Hardy 
  
SUBJECT:  Victim/Witness Assistance Program Grant Authorization 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board authorize the District Attorney to sign any documentation to accept and utilize the Inyo County 
Victim/Witness Assistance Program Grant (VW21 30 0140) on behalf of the County, including any extensions or 
amendments thereto. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
This year, the District Attorney's Inyo County Victim/Witness Program Grant had a virtual site visit from CalOES. 
 CalOES is requiring clarification to the authorization given to the District Attorney at the October 26, 2021 Board 
meeting, when this Grant was accepted and authorization given. CalOES requires a Board Minute Order 
authorizing the District Attorney to sign any documentation to accept and utilize the Grant, including any 
Extension or Amendments thereto. This Grant period is October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022,   
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
This Inyo County Victim/Witness Assistance Program Grant (VW21 30 0140) was accepted and authorization 
given to the District Attorney at the October 26, 2021 Board meeting. 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Without your Board's acceptance of this additional authority to the District Attorney, the project funding could be 
terminated. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
FINANCING: 
Grant amount is $273,322.  Budget number 620421.  The County expends funds and then a claim is made to the 
State for reimbursement quarterly. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CalOES Letter 
2. Section 1.055 of Grant Subaward Terminology and General Requirements 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

3. Relevant Minutes of 10.26.21 Board of Supervisor Meeting 
  
APPROVALS: 
Maureen McVicker Created/Initiated - 6/20/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/21/2022 
Maureen McVicker Approved - 6/21/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/21/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/21/2022 
Tom Hardy Final Approval - 6/21/2022 



















 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Anna Scott 
  
SUBJECT:  Agreement between Inyo County and CMSP for LICN Implementation Grant 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and the County Medical Services 
Program (CMSP) Governing Board for the provision of the Local Indigent Care Needs Implementation Grant 
Program (LICN), in an amount not to exceed $649,538.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
In 2020, HHS applied for and received a $50,000 Local Indigent Care Needs Program (LICN Program) planning 
grant from the County Medical Services Program (CMSP).  The grant was used to develop a plan to implement a 
mobile healthcare unit in partnership with Toiyabe, NIHD, and SIHD to provide primary care, specialty care, 
behavioral health or follow-up care after inpatient hospitalization to low income adults with transportation 
challenges who do not live near Hwy 395 and experience drive times of up to 4 hours to access health care. 
 HHS engaged a consultant to complete a detailed financial pro forma to determine the fiscal feasibility for 
Northern Inyo Health Care District (NIHD), Southern Inyo Healthcare District (SIHD), and Toiyabe Indian Health 
Project ("Toiyabe") to deliver services from the mobile clinic. Following that analysis, SIHD and Toiyabe agreed to 
partner with HHS Public Health and Prevention to pursue the purchase of a mobile health clinic. 
 
In February 2022, the County Medical Services Program (CMSP) released a Local Indigent Care Needs Program 
(LICN Program) Request for Proposals (RFP) for an implementation grant that would span a three-year period.  HHS 
applied for the LICN Implementation grant with the goal of executing a formal agreement between the 
participating agencies, and to purchase, equip, and operationalize a mobile clinic. In May 2022, the CMSP 
Governing Board announced that Inyo County HHS was one of 9 successful LICN applicants.  HHS received the 
LICN Implementation Grant agreement in June 2022 and is now requesting your Board's approval of the 
agreement. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement for the LICN Implementation Grant, which would mean 
that HHS would not be able to access funding to purchase a mobile health clinic, in partnership with SIHD and 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Toiyabe. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Southern Inyo Healthcare District, Toiyabe Indian Health Project 
  
FINANCING: 
These funds will be deposited into a new interest bearing trust and transferred to the Health budget (045100) to 
cover expenses.  No County General funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Implementation Grant Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 6/18/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/20/2022 
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 6/20/2022 
Genoa Meneses Approved - 6/20/2022 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/20/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/21/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/21/2022 
Anna Scott Final Approval - 6/23/2022 





































































































































































 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Health & Human Services - Social Services 
  

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Anna Scott 
  
SUBJECT:  Sole-source contract betweeen County of Inyo and Symmetric Solutions, Inc. 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) declare Symmetric Solutions, Inc. of Redding, CA a sole-source provider of Homeless 
Information Management System (HMIS) and Coordinated Entry (CE) consultation services; B) approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Symmetric Solutions, Inc. of Redding, CA for the provision of HMIS and 
CE consulting services in an amount not to exceed $33,600.00 for the period of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget; and C) authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Health and Human Services Department has been working with State and Federal housing authorities, 
including Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the California Interagency Council on Homelessness (Cal 
ICH), to transition the responsibility of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care Collaborative Applicant and 
Coordinated Entry system roles from Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) to HHS. This process 
was initiated on an emergency basis due to significant fiscal challenges faced by IMACA, and required HHS to 
quickly become familiar with the requirements of several grants and systems in order to maintain compliance, 
and to ensure minimal disruption to clients who are receiving services to prevent or mitigate homelessness. 
 
The Department has engaged a consultant who had begun to work with IMACA earlier in the 2021-2022 fiscal 
year regarding the HMIS and Coordinated Entry systems. The Department will be expected to meet reporting 
requirements for the HMIS and requires immediate assistance in order to meet the first deadline in July 2022. 
 HHS staff have had minimal access to HMIS in the past and are on a sharp learning curve. Therefore, the 
Department is requesting your Board's approval to enter into a sole-source contract with Symmetric Solutions 
Inc. in order to immediately begin working on reporting, and to develop compliant procedures for operating the 
HMIS and Coordinated Entry systems over the coming months.  
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could chose not to approve this sole-source contract. Doing so would mean that HHS would need to 
initiate a competitive process to identify an appropriate contractor and would likely miss state and federal 
reporting requirements, potentially putting regional Continuum of Care funding at risk.  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, including Mono County, Apline County, Mammoth Lakes Housing, California 
Indian Legal Services, Wild Iris, IMACA 
  
FINANCING: 
This contract is budgeted in CoC (055900) in Professional Services.  No County General funds. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Symmetric Solutions, Inc. Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 6/18/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/20/2022 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/20/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2022 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2022 
Anna Scott Final Approval - 6/21/2022 













691 Meraglia St., Ste. B
Redding, CA 96002 

















 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
  
SUBJECT:  Mendenhall Park Expansion 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board discuss and consider directing staff to: 
A)   Obtain a letter of permission from LADWP to maintain property adjacent to Mendenhall Park in Big Pine that 
was leased and maintained by the Big Pine School until recently; and/or 
B)   Work with LADWP to secure a long-term right to operate and maintain the park area, including the currently 
leased area known as Mendenhall Park and the property historically leased by Big Pine School; or 
C)  Notify LADWP that the County desires to continue to operate and maintain Mendenhall Park, which is 
currently in a hold-over lease status, without assuming responsibility for the additional property. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
For many years, and up until very recently, the property on the corner of N. Main St. and Baker Creek Road that 
surrounds Mendenhall Park has been leased by Big Pine School. It has two baseball diamonds, the skeleton of a 
batting cage, and restrooms; none of the facilities have been used for many years, yet pursuant to lease terms 
the school is required to maintain them by watering the grounds, mowing weeds, cleaning up trash and managing 
unauthorized campers in the dugouts and in the parking areas. Many people park there and walk across the 
highway to frequent the businesses on the east side of Main Street, which can be dangerous due to the road 
curvature and fast speeds of vehicles traveling past. Most importantly, emergency crews use that property to 
stage emergency response operations for incidents ranging from Bishop to Lone Pine. A map of the property is 
attached showing both the County's and the school's leases outlined in yellow. 
 
A few years ago, Big Pine School District discontinued use of the ball fields yet maintained the lease and its 
related responsibilities. Subsequent discussions between the School, the County and DWP generated some 
ideas, including the County assuming the school’s responsibilities under the school’s lease using County staff 
and resources. 
 
This arrangement between the three parties would have required a letter of permission from DWP and a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the school district spelling out the terms and responsibilities. However, the 
School Board has decided to abandon the lease completely, giving a 30-day notice to vacate and rendering any 
MOU discussions moot.   
 
A provision in LADWP leases requires that infrastructure be removed when a lease is abandoned, and as of now, 
the school intends to remove the structures and return the property to its original state -- bare land. 



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Consequently, the County has at least three options to pursue.  
 
One option is to seek a letter of permission directly from LADWP, ultimately replacing the school as the party 
primarily responsible for the park lands in question – including mowing the weeds, cleaning trash, mitigating 
illegal parking, and managing the needs of emergency response teams when needed. While there is no 
guarantee at this time, there may be the opportunity to save the infrastructure under this option in hopes that it 
can once again be utilized by the community. The benefit of this option is that the County could assume 
responsibility quickly and consider improvements such as installation of a disk golf course, which is very popular 
with the community. The downside is that there will be no change in the lease status of the property. 
 
Another option would be for the County to rely on the landowner, LADWP, to maintain the property while the 
County seeks LADWP approval of a long-term land tenure agreement for both Mendenhall Park and the 
additional property. The benefit here is that a long-term agreement would give the County more options to obtain 
financing for improvements that would add value to the community and its citizens. However, the timeline to 
achieve this is uncertain considering the strained landlord/tenant relationship the County currently has with 
LADWP. 
 
The third option is to do nothing and let the lease revert to LADWP who would then be responsible for 
maintaining the property as the landowner.   
 
Today, your Board is asked to consider the pros and cons of these options and provide staff direction based on 
those discussions. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:  
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
LADWP 
  
FINANCING: 
Cost estimates have not been calculated; however, additional staff time and resources will need to be allocated 
to Parks and Recreation to provide the additional maintenance.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. School Lease Map 
  
APPROVALS: 
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 7/6/2022 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 7/6/2022 
John Vallejo Final Approval - 7/6/2022 





 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

County Administrator - Advertising County 
Resources 

  

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
  
SUBJECT:  Request for Proposals for Film Commissioner Services 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board review and provide input on a proposed Request for Proposals for Inyo County Film 
Commissioner services, and direct staff to release the RFP. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
As a result of sentiment expressed by the Board in May 2021 and in keeping with past practice to review Film 
Commissioner services every 4-6 years, staff prepared the attached Request for Proposals for your review and 
input. While RFPs normally don't come to the Board for review, staff felt it prudent to allow the Board to continue 
conversations begun in May 2021 and to provide feedback as to what Inyo County is looking for in a Film 
Commissioner and what tasks it expects to be completed. 
 
The RFP presents a detailed scope of work in addition to expectations and goals. It was based on the last RFP 
issued for Film Commissioner services in 2013, with edits and additions made by the County Administrator and 
staff. 
 
Film Commissioner Chris Langley was the sole respondent to the 2013 RFP. He has served as Inyo County's 
Film Commissioner since 2007, most often as a sole-source provider. It has become practice to revisit every 4-6 
years whether to issue RFPs or continue sole-source contracting. The Board declined to have staff prepare and 
issue an RFP for Film Commissioner services in 2018, and instead approved a three-year sole-source contract 
with Mr. Langley. 
 
Mr. Langley's latest contract expired June 30. It was approved on May 25, 2021 after discussion among the 
Board about reexamining the Film Commissioner position - a discussion prompted by members of the Board 
expressing interest in a one-year contract for FY 21-22 instead of a new three-year contract. 
 
The timeline included in the RFP has proposals due in mid-August, with the new contract (also attached) to take 
effect October 1. To ensure continuity in service until a proposal is selected and a new contract awarded, staff 
prepared and your Board approved an amendment to extend the term of Mr. Langley's contract through 
September 30. 
  



Agenda Request  
Page 2 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:  
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board may choose not to direct staff to issue an RFP. 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Clerk of the Board, County Counsel 
  
FINANCING: 
Funding for a FY 22-23 Film Commissioner Contract is available in the Advertising County Resources budget 
(011400), Object Code 5535. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Film Commissioner RFP for FY 22-23 
2. Film Commissioner Contract for FY 22-23 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/6/2022 
Leslie Chapman Approved - 7/6/2022 
John Vallejo Approved - 7/6/2022 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 7/7/2022 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

1

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
The County of Inyo, through the Office of the County Administrator, seeks to obtain the services of an 
individual, organization, or firm with demonstrated experience to effectively serve as the County's Film 
Commissioner. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION/BACKGROUND

Encompassing more than 10,000 square miles, Inyo County features an epic landscape of unparalleled variety, 
natural wonders and stunning vistas, recreational opportunities, cultural amenities, and rich indigenous, 
pioneer, mining, water, and movie-making histories.
 
Located fewer than three hours from Los Angeles, the epicenter of the entertainment universe, Inyo County 
has for decades provided the ideal locations for hundreds of motion pictures, television shows, commercials, 
music videos, and print advertisements, as well as countless amateur endeavors similar in nature. The County's 
film-friendly legacy – dating back to the 1920s – and popularity with the film industry long ago earned it the 
nickname “Hollywood’s backlot.”  Often synonymous with Westerns, Inyo County has been the home away 
from home for some of the genre's biggest names, including Gene Autry, Hopalong Cassidy, John Ford, Clint 
Eastwood, Jack Palance, Randolph Scott, Sam Peckinpah, and John Wayne. Gregory Peck, Cary Grant, Spencer 
Tracy, Ida Lupino, Alan Ladd, Tony Curtis, Jack Lemon, and Natalie Wood have also graced the camera-ready 
landscape of Inyo County, including the Alabama Hills, Owens Valley, the Sierra Nevada, and Death Valley. 

The county has also served as the setting for non-Western blockbusters including Gunga Din, High Sierra, 
Tremors, Star Trek V and Star Trek Generations, Gladiator, Iron Man, and Django Unchained, and welcomed 
such stars as Brad Pitt, Kevin Bacon, Robert Downey Jr., Russell Crowe, and Jamie Foxx ... to name a few. 

Since at least the 1990s, the County of Inyo has formally relied on individuals and organizations to promote the 
county as a location for commercial filming, through a combination of sole-source contracts and contracts 
resulting from Requests for Proposal. Having utilized sole-source contracts since 2013, the County seeks once 
more to solicit proposals from prospective contractors. 

As part of its annual budget process, and as its fiscal circumstances permit, the County endeavors to provide 
funding for marketing of lnyo County and the region as a whole, as a supplement to the ongoing marketing 
activities of individual business enterprises, the chambers of commerce, other public agencies, non-profit 
organizations, and regional collaborators. In recent County Budgets, including the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
County Budget, the Board of Supervisors has appropriated up to $38,000.00 for Film Commissioner services. 

In soliciting proposals for the provision of Film Commissioner services, the County seeks to get the highest level 
of professional service possible for the lowest possible cost. The County recognizes that the amount of funding 
it has available for the project may govern the scope and nature of the Film Commissioner services and 
additional marketing activities that are proposed. However, while the Minimum Scope of Work required by 
this RFP is significant, prospective respondents are informed that the Minimum Scope of Work identified below 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

2

is representative of the Scope of Work for which the County has successfully entered into professional services 
contracts during the past 10 years. 

It is the intent of the County to evaluate all proposals received in response to this RFP from responsible 
applicants. To be considered, one (1) Printed Original and three (3) Printed Copies of the Proposal must be 
received prior to the close of business on August 12, 2022 at 

County of Inyo
Office of the Inyo County Administrator - Film Commissioner RFP

P.O. Drawer N / 224 N. Edwards Street
Independence, CA 93526

Note: The U.S. Post Office will only deliver mail addressed to the P.O. Drawer, not the street address. 
Postmarks will not be accepted. Facsimile and electronic copies will not be accepted. 

All proposals received by the submittal deadline will be reviewed by a committee of County staff to evaluate 
each respondent's proposal relative to completeness, experience, scope of work, budget, value, and ability to 
contract. 

Inyo County reserves the right to reject all proposals received in response to this RFP. The County is also 
reserving the right to negotiate with multiple respondents and, possibly, recommend the Board of Supervisors 
award multiple contracts for Film Commissioner services.
 
The term of the contract will be for a minimum of 8 months (October 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023), 
contingent on the Board’s approval of the FY 2022-2023 budget. The contract will include three, one-year 
extension options. 

II. MINIMUM SCOPE OF WORK

In requesting and evaluating proposals for Film Commissioner services, the County of Inyo intends to rely on 
the expertise of the respondents – as experienced professionals familiar with Inyo County’s geography and 
relationship with local land owners – to recommend and demonstrate the most advantageous and cost-
effective means of attracting and supporting commercial filming in the county, including all of its many sub-
regions. In preparing their proposals, respondents are encouraged to recognize the financial resources the 
County has appropriated for the project, and demonstrate how these resources will be leveraged for maximum 
results. 

At a minimum, the Contractor selected to provide Film Commissioner services will be expected to agree to, 
and successfully implement, the following Scope of Work. In preparing proposals, respondents are encouraged 
to identify efforts and activities they will agree to undertake in addition to this minimum Scope of Work: 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

3

General Duties & Responsibilities 

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of Inyo County Film Commissioner. As the Inyo County Film 
Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a formal relationship 
with the California Film Commission, and ensure the County's continued participation in the California Film 
Commission's Film Liaisons In California, Statewide (FLICS) Program. These duties include, but are not limited 
to:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of Inyo County;

B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner, not to exceed one week from the date of initial 
inquiry; 

C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the County and the community, including public and 
private landowners and other public agencies in the region; and

D. Maintaining an active online presence for the Inyo County Film Commission through specified social 
media platforms and web content hosted on the County website, or a new, separate website (with a 
link on the County website).

In carrying out these duties, the Contractor shall regularly and routinely publicize contact information for the 
Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry and the community can 
register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner services. At a minimum, this 
information shall be included in the local crew lists, production guide, and resources database that the 
Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute, and publish on the website/webpage the 
Contractor develops, maintains, or operates in conjunction. 

In performance of these duties, the Contractor shall:
 Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government practices;

 Maintain a working knowledge of local commercial and non-profit resources available to provide 
services to film productions; 

 Stay informed on production issues in Inyo County communities and convey this information to 
producers;

 Serve as an experienced troubleshooter for producers and the communities in which they work;

 Know how to secure permission to film on a variety of properties within the county;

 Be familiar with potential filming locations within the county and associated land tenure and 
ownership;



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

4

 Remain sensitive to the needs of all communities within the county;

 Develop and maintain relationships with Inyo County’s five sovereign Native American tribes, as well 
as an understanding of the indigenous history of the area; 

 Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the provision of Film 
Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so authorized pursuant to and 
in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements;

 Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of interest 
between the official duties and services provided and private financial interests, as well as the 
provision of:

 location scouting assistance;
 referral and liaison services with industry facilities and services;
 liaison services to and among communities, production companies, government agencies, 

and Tribal governments;
 augmented outreach; and,
 timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, 

governmental entities, and the California Film Commission;

 Provide film liaison and location services, including photography of locations;

 Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the close of the 
production, including problem solving on film related matters;

 Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including the facilitation 
of permitting;

 Network with regional and state organizations related to filming;

 Only use the title of Inyo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity pursuant to this 
agreement, and never for personal gain; and,

 Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to the 
established polices of the County of Inyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to the County.

In addition, the Contractor shall:
1. Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic form;
2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography of locations 

throughout all regions of the County*, in written and electronic form;
3. Develop, maintain, and distribute a current local production guide in written and electronic form; 

and,



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

5

4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national and/or 
international media.

*Photographs can be provided by the County at Contractor’s request.

With regard to the crew lists, resources database, and production guide noted above, the Contractor will be 
required to provide it in written and electronic format acceptable to the County, and thereafter upload it to 
the Film Commission website/webpage.

Online Marketing

The Contractor shall develop and maintain interactive web content hosted on www.inyocounty.us, or using 
software approved by the Inyo County Information Services Director. The Contractor shall also create and 
maintain Inyo County Film Commission profiles and accounts on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram.

With regard to the content posted online, the Contractor must:
 Adhere to the terms of use and codes of conduct established and published by the social media 

platforms.
 Ensure content is not in conflict with County values and policies.
 Not engage in any argumentative or controversial behavior online while identified as the Inyo Film 

Commissioner.

In particular, if the web content is not hosted on the County website, the Contractor must:
 Register Inyo County as the owner of the domain name for the website, and provide the County’s 

Information Services Director with the information necessary to maintain the registration;
 Develop the website using software specified by the County’s Information Services Director;
 Host the website on a server specified or approved by the County’s Information Services Director and 

to which the County’s Information Services staff has access;
 Provide backup electronic copies of all website contest to the Information Services Director.

The total contract amount will vary depending on whether the Contractor develops a new website, or creates 
content for the County website. Payment for website services performed by the Contractor is dependent on 
the Contractor’s adherence to these requirements.

*Art work for online use, such as photographs, can be provided by the County at Contractor’s request.

Administrative Services 

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support the Inyo 
County Film Commission, including:

1. Maintaining physical office space, including a telephone line and payment of all utility costs;
2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing:

http://www.inyocounty.us/


Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

6

a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box;
b. a cellular telephone with voicemail;
c. an email account; 
d. an Internet-based photo hosting service; 
e. the Film Commission website; and 
f. social media accounts on the following platforms: Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram.

3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services that may be necessary to 
support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner

4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal services.

In addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between two (2) and four 
(4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. The Contractor is responsible for preparing, 
maintaining, and administering all notifications and paperwork to the California Film Commission necessary to 
designate the Contractor as the Inyo Film Commissioner.

Furthermore, it is desirable during the course of this contract that the Contractor research and work with 
County staff, including Public Works, to evaluate the current County permitting system and recommend a more 
collaborative and streamlined process – possibly with the levying of fees to support the Inyo County Film 
Commission.  

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the Agreement. At a minimum, the 
Contractor shall:

1. Within 30 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the 
Contractor shall prepare all notifications and paperwork required by the California Film Commission 
necessary to designate the Contractor as the Inyo Film Commissioner. These documents shall be 
transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator for review and approval in advance of their 
submittal to the California Film Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film 
Commission by the County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation 
will be processed in the same manner.

2. As soon as practicable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall transmit to the 
Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the Contractor receives from 
the California Film Commission.

3. Within 60 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the 
Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper and electronic form, the 
local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of 
locations throughout all regions of the County, that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain, 
and distribute under the terms of this agreement. These products will become property of the County, 
and must be submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction, 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

7

and posting to a County website. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical 
and electronic locations where these resources are available.

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month prior to the expiration of the 
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall update the local crew 
lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations 
throughout all regions of the County, and transmit this information to the County as required in item 
3 above.

5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national and/or 
international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with the Contractor's 
next monthly invoice for services.

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the Board of 
Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to make additional Verbal 
Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on filming activity in the County. The 
Contractor will be responsible for contacting the Assistant Board Clerk to make arrangements to be 
placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.

7. In addition to the two (2) Verbal Reports required in item 5 above, the Contractor shall prepare and 
present, in person, two (2) Written Reports a year to the Board of Supervisors. The Written Reports 
shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized for an upcoming Board of Supervisors' 
meeting, no later than July 31st and January 31st of each year during the term of the Agreement for 
the provision of Film Commissioner Services. During the last year of the Agreement, a Final Written 
Report shall be prepared and submitted no later than December 1st in lieu of the January 31st 
deadline. At a minimum, the Written Reports must include:

a. A summary of the Contractor's activities and accomplishments relative to carrying out the 
duties and responsibilities of Inyo County Film Commissioner;

b. A tally, by type of production (e.g., major motion picture, minor film, commercial, still 
photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the Film Commissioner), since 
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report of:

i. production requests received by the Contractor;
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and,
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the Contractor.

c. Identification and itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in Inyo County since 
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report. For each 
production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best estimate as to:

i. number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production;
ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the production, and 

the estimated value;



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

8

iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, and the 
estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; and,

iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or services to the 
production, and the estimated aggregate value of the goods or services.

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies of 
webpages, identification of events attended, and, photos of any Contractor exhibits or 
displays at attended events;

e. Copies of the current local crew list, current local production guide, and current local 
resources database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the 
County; and,

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written report.

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of actual 
damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the parties agree that, in 
the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements and associated deadlines, 
Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of Contractor's monthly fee, as established in 
the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to comply, 
which amount will be deducted from amounts due the Contractor. 

Additional Marketing Activities 

In addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and its California 
Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, and/or international media, the 
Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional marketing activities. Any specific, 
supplemental marketing activities must be identified in the Contractor's proposal and associated budget, and 
agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services. 

Separately compensated marketing activities may include but are not limited to:

 Attending appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive presence at 
industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material (e.g., artwork, 
hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of Film 
Commissions International (AFCI) Locations Show.

 Developing and maintaining an interactive Inyo Film Commission website, separate from and not 
hosted on www.inyocounty.us.

*Art work such as photographs can be provided by the County at Contractor’s request.

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of Work, including 
but not limited to the Inyo County Film Commission website, domain name, artwork and hand-outs distributed 

http://www.inyocounty.us/


Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

9

at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and local resources database (including photography 
of locations throughout all regions of the County), in written and electronic form, shall:

A. Identify the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry and 
the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner 
services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail address for the Office of the County 
Administrator for this purpose.

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo.

III. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The response to this RFP must contain the following sections:

I. Introduction. The introduction should be a description, not to exceed three (3) single-sided pages 
that introduces the respondent and: 

i. Demonstrates the respondent's overall experience providing Film Commissioner-related, 
or film liaison-related services to the commercial filming industry; and 

ii. Indicates the respondent's likely ability to successfully perform the Scope of Work 
described in Section II of this RFP.

II. Respondent's Scope of Work. The Scope of Work section of the proposal should describe the 
specific approaches and mechanics of how the respondent intends to fulfill the Scope of Work 
described in Section II of this RFP. The Scope of Work is not to exceed seven (7) pages and, at a 
minimum, the respondent's Scope of Work should be organized to address each of the sub-
sections identified in the Scope of Work (Section II) described below: General Duties & 
Responsibilities; Administrative Services; Reporting; and, Additional Marketing Activities (if any).

i. General Duties & Responsibilities. Describe how the respondent will provide the General 
Duties & Responsibilities described in the Scope of Work (Section II). Note any exceptions 
to the General Duties & Responsibilities described in the Scope of Work (Section II). 
Additionally, note any additional services the respondent proposes to perform as General 
Duties & Responsibilities.

ii. Administrative Services. Acknowledge and describe, generally, how the respondent 
intends to provide the Administrative Services (office space, clerical support, etc.) 
described in the Scope of Work (Section II, page 8).

iii. Reporting. Acknowledge the Reporting requirements in the Scope of Work (Section II) and 
note any exceptions.



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

10

iv. Additional Marketing Activities. Describe any additional marketing activities the 
respondent proposes to provide besides, or in addition to those services already 
identified and required in the General Duties & Responsibilities, Administrative Services, 
and Reporting sections of the Scope of Work (Section II). Additional marketing activities 
may include, but are not limited to, the development and maintenance of a Film 
Commission website and/or participation in industry trade shows described in the 
Additional Marketing Activities section of the Scope of Work (Section II).

III. Budget. The Budget section of the proposal, not to exceed one (1) page, should clearly and simply 
identify how much the respondent proposes to charge the County for performing the Scope of 
Work. The Budget section of the proposal should identify:

i. Monthly Fee. The flat monthly fee the respondent expects to be compensated for 
providing and performing the General Duties & Responsibilities, Administrative Services, 
and Reporting requirements specified in the Scope of Work (Section II).

ii. Travel Expense. The annual, not-to-exceed amount the respondent expects to be 
compensated for routine travel associated with performing the Scope of Work (Section 
II), including specific travel costs incurred in association with Additional Marketing 
Activities described in the respondent's Scope of Work.

Note: The Contractor's travel and per diem expense will be paid in accordance with 
Section 3. Paragraph B. of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services 
(sample attached). These costs include all mileage, lodging, and food expenses associated 
with all of the general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement, as 
well as the specific marketing activities that may be undertaken by this agreement. The 
Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement for performing the agreed upon 
Scope of Work shall not exceed the amount proposed here by the respondent if agreed 
to by the County. The provisions of Section 3. Paragraph B. of the Agreement for the 
provision of Film Commissioner Services notwithstanding, due to the oftentimes 
spontaneous nature of the services and work being performed, the Contractor is pre-
approved to incur travel and per diem expenses in an amount not to exceed the agreed 
upon amount during the term of this contract.

iii. Additional Marketing Activities. The amount, if any, the respondent expects to be 
compensated for the provision of any Additional Marketing Services identified in the 
respondent's Scope of Work. As applicable, each additional marketing activity should be 
assigned a flat cost.

IV. Production Experience. The respondent must identify at least three (3) major motion pictures for 
which the respondent has performed a role or roles similar to those services being requested 
through this RFP during the past 10 years. For each of the three (3) motion pictures, provide a 
description not to exceed one page per movie, identifying the film; the person or persons 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

11

(including title and current contact information) with whom the respondent worked most closely; 
and a description of the services provided by the respondent. 

In addition, respondents are encouraged to provide a list, not to exceed two (2) pages, identifying 
the film-related projects in which they've been involved. For each project: identify the project, the 
year, the location, and a primary contact person.

V. Personnel & Volunteers. If the respondent is an entity or organization, it must identify, by name, 
the individual who is proposed to serve as Film Commissioner. All respondents, including 
individuals, must identify all subordinate employees or sub-contractors, if any, and their specific 
roles in supporting the Film Commissioner in carrying out the respondent's Scope of Work. 
Resumes for each identified individual may be submitted but are not required.

Similarly, if the respondent intends to utilize volunteers in carrying-out any portion of the 
respondents proposed Scope of Work, the specific services and activities relying on volunteer 
services should be identified.

VI. Ability to Contract & Exceptions. The respondent must provide a statement as to the respondent's 
ability to enter into County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 124, and note any exceptions. A sample 
of Standard Contract No. 124 is attached, which may be modified to incorporate provisions 
described in this RFP or the resulting negotiation of proposals. This section should also be used for 
the respondent to summarize any exception to the Scope of Work (Section II).

Note: Proposals will not be returned to the respondents, and any information a respondent desires to be 
kept confidential should be excluded from any proposal.

IV. EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION PROCESS

A review committee comprised of County staff will evaluate all submitted proposals. The evaluation will be 
based solely on the information conveyed in the proposal and the County's previous experience, if any, in 
working with the respondent under contract. 

In evaluating each proposal, each member of the review committee will assign a score of 1 to 25 points (with 
25 points being the highest score possible) for each of the following criteria. Each criterion will be weighted as 
indicated:

1. Completeness of Proposal. Does the proposal clearly and completely include the components and 
provide all of the information requested in Section III Proposal Requirements? 
Weighted 10%.

2. Experience. Does the respondent demonstrate the experience necessary to successfully implement 
the scope of work?
Weighted 20%.



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

12

3. Respondent's Scope of Work. Does the respondent's proposal demonstrate a reasonable approach 
and willingness to implement the Minimum Scope of Work (Section II)? Does the respondent's 
proposal include the provision of services – excluding additional marketing services for which the 
respondent seeks additional compensation – in addition to those required by the Minimum Scope of 
Work? Does the respondent identify exceptions to the Minimum Scope of Work?
Weighted 20%.

4. Budget. The respondent's proposed budget will be compared to other proposals in terms of the 
absolute total Monthly Fee and total annual not-to-exceed Travel Expense. Proposed budgets for 
Additional Marketing Activities will only be included in this evaluation if an additional marketing 
activity is common to all proposals.
Weighted 25%.

5. Value. What is the perceived value of the proposal when the respondent's experience and proposed 
scope of work is considered relative to the proposed budget?
Weighted 20%.

6. Ability to enter into and adhere to Standard Contract No. 124. Has the respondent clearly indicated 
their ability and willingness to enter into Standard contract No. 124 without deviation? What is the 
significance of the exceptions, if any, the respondent requests to Standard Contract No. 124? If a 
respondent has previously worked for the County under contract, how well has the contractor 
complied with contract provisions? 
Weighted 5%.

For each proposal, the individual scores that each member of the review committee assigns to each evaluation 
criteria will be weighted and totaled. In this manner, the highest possible score any proposal can receive from 
any member of the review committee is 25 points. For purposes of ranking proposals, the total score that each 
proposal receives from each member of the review committee will be totaled to arrive at an aggregate score 
for each proposal. If the review committee is comprised of five (5) or more reviewers, the highest and lowest 
score assigned to each proposal will be excluded from the aggregate score. 

Following the review and ranking of proposals, Inyo County may invite, at its discretion, up to five (5) 
respondents submitting the highest ranked proposals to in-person interviews to clarify aspects of their 
proposals. The interview process may result in additional rankings being developed.

Inyo County reserves the right to reject all proposals received in response to this RFP. The County is also 
reserving the right to negotiate with multiple respondents and, possibly, award multiple contracts for Film 
Commissioner services. 

Once proposals are ranked, the County's past experience in contracting with respondents considered, and the 
results of interviews (if any) considered, Inyo County will commence contract negotiations, including finalizing 
the Scope of Work and associated Fee Schedule, with the respondent(s) receiving the highest total ranking(s). 



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

13

If the County and a respondent are unable to consummate an agreement, the County may reject that 
respondent, and begin negotiations with the respondent receiving the next highest ranking. This process may 
continue until the County reaches an agreement with a contractor or contractors. Once an agreement is 
reached, the successful contractor shall execute County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 117, which will then be 
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for approval. The execution of the contract by the authorized 
representative of the County of Inyo will constitute notice to the contractor to proceed with the work. 

The term of the contract will be for a minimum of 8 months (October 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023), 
contingent on the Board’s approval of the FY 2022-2023 budget. The contract will include three, one-year 
extension options.  

V. INQUIRIES

Any inquiries regarding this solicitation, must be made in writing in the form of an email, addressed to Darcy 
Ellis, Assistant to the County Administrator, at dellis@inyocounty.us. At its sole discretion, the County will 
respond to inquiries made in this manner and received no later than 5 p.m. on February 8, 2013, via e-mail.
 
Any County responses to inquiries regarding this RFP will be simultaneously emailed to all potential 
respondents who, as of the time of the County's specific response, have been included on a Notification List. 
To be placed on the Notification List and receive responses to inquiries the County may issue, or be notified of 
changes to this RFP, interested parties must notify Ms. Ellis, via email, no later than 5 p.m. on Friday, August 
12, 2022. Receipt of the request will be confirmed via e-mail as soon as possible. Interested parties not 
receiving e-mail confirmation of their request to be placed on the Notification List should contact Ms. Ellis at 
(760) 878- 0292 to ensure their request has been received.

VI. SUBMITTAL INFORMATION

Those parties wishing to submit proposals should send them to: 

County of Inyo
Office of the Inyo County Administrator - Film Commissioner RFP

P.O. Drawer N / 224 N. Edwards Street
Independence, CA 93526

Note: The U.S. Post Office will only deliver mail addressed to the P.O. Drawer, not the street address. 
Postmarks will not be accepted. Facsimile and electronic copies will not be accepted. 

DEADLINE: To be considered, one (1) Printed Original and three (3) Printed Copies of the Proposal must be 
received prior to the close of business on August 12, 2022. Postmarks are not accepted. 

VII. CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION



Request for Proposals
Film Commissioner Services

14

Inyo County recommends applicants not submit materials it considers to be confidential or proprietary. Inyo 
County follows the intent of the California Public Records Act (PRA). If a respondent's Proposal contains 
material noted or marked as confidential and/or proprietary that, in Inyo County's sole opinion, meets the 
disclosure exemption requirements of the PRA, then that information will not be disclosed pursuant to a 
request for public documents. If Inyo County does not consider such material to be exempt from disclosure 
under the PRA, the material will be made available to the public, regardless of the notation or markings. If a 
respondent is unsure if its confidential and/or proprietary material meets the disclosure exemption 
requirements of the PRA, then it should not include such information in its proposal. 

VIII. EXECUTION OF COUNTY CONTRACT 

The selected contractor will be required to enter into County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 117, a draft copy 
of which is attached as Exhibit A. The contract may be modified to reflect specific conditions of this RFP or in 
response to proposals received. Please note the requirements in the Contract for worker's compensation, 
general liability, and vehicle liability insurance. 

IX. RIGHTS OF THE COUNTY

The County retains sole discretion regarding every aspect of the RFP evaluation and selection process. 
The County reserves the right to, but is not limited to: 

 Select the proposal for contract award 
 Accept other than lowest offer 
 Reject any or all responses without cause 
 Reject all responses and seek new responses when such action is judged to be in the best 

interest of the County 
 Request and receive additional information as the County believes is necessary, and disqualify 

any respondent and reject any responses for failure to promptly provide such additional 
information 

 Request additional information or clarification from respondents, or allow corrections of errors 
or omissions 

 Postpone or extend the RFP deadline for its own convenience or benefit 
 To disregard all non-conforming, non-responsive or conditional proposals 
 Approve or disapprove sub-contractors 
 Waive technical defects in responses and to accept the response which, in the sole judgment of 

the County, is in its best interest 
 Negotiate with any and all respondents 
 Change the amount of funding available 
 Enter into a contract with another respondent in the event the originally selected respondent 

fails to execute a contract with the County 
 Reject any or all proposals or portions thereof, and to reduce the scope of the Project 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 1 of 10    05/29/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND                                                                                                                      
FOR THE PROVISION OF __FILM COMMISSIONER__________________________  SERVICES 
  

INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for  
the __film commissioner___________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the Contractor 
to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, whose title is: 
_County Administrator______________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed 
under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no 
guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested 
of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or 
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should 
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state, 
and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions 
include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. INTIAL TERM AND OPTIONS. 

 The initial term of this Agreement shall be from __October 1, 2022__________ to ___June 30, 
2023__unless sooner terminated as provided below. In addition, County shall have two options to extend the 
Agreement for additional one-year periods as follows: 

a. From ___July 1, 2023________  through ____June 30, 2024______ 
b. From ___July 1, 2024________  through ___  June 30, 2025______ 
c. From ___July 1, 2025________  through ____June 30, 2026______ 

 
County may exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days before 

the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof. 

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon 
the same terms and conditions as stated in this Agreement. 

3. CONSIDERATION. 
  
 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set 
forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by Contractor 
at the County's request.  
 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem 
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  
 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall 
not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 2 of 10    05/29/2019 

type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled, 
by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement 
benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence 
of any type or kind whatsoever. 
D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County to 
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed $____twenty-seven 
thousand four-hundred and no/100____________    Dollars ($___27,400.00_____  ) (initial term);  
$_thirty-five thousand two hundred_and no/100___  Dollars ($___35,200.00______) (option 1);  
$_thirty-five thousand two hundred_and no/100___  Dollars ($___35,200.00______) (option 2);  
$_thirty-five thousand two hundred_and no/100___  Dollars ($___35,200.00______) (option 3); for a total of 
$ one-hundred thirty-three thousand and no/100_     Dollars ($_133,000.00) (hereinafter referred to as 
"contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by 
Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   

 (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state 
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this Agreement 
to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments to 
Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00). 
 (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from 
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other assessments on 
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for payment of 
Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
 (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California State 
Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an  
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of these 
services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be 
performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in 
full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 3 of 10    05/29/2019 

are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal 
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs 
issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
  
 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's 
possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, 
which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual 
properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or 
manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this 
Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 

8. INSURANCE. 

 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise 
any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered 
an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under 
any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.  
As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services  to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control 
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 

http://www.sam.gov/


 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 4 of 10    05/29/2019 

 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 

 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions 
of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  Contractor shall 
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.  
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute photographs, 
microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which County 
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, 
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  Further, County 
has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being 
performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap,  medical  condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government 
Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of 
Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) and all 
amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement without 
cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel 
to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  Further, 
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of County. 

  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 5 of 10    05/29/2019 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by  
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from 
the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, 
or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, 
not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term 
of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse 
party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this Agreement has gained 
access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county 
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall 
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this 
Agreement are severable. 

  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 6 of 10    05/29/2019 

21. FUNDING  LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the option 
to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying Contractor 
of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of this 
Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two (22) 
(Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change 
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or 
may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the 
respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
    County Administrator                                   Department 
    P.O. Drawer N                                              Address 
    Independence, CA 93526                           City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Address 
                                                                          City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

 

  ////       //// 

  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 7 of 10    05/29/2019 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND                                                                                                                     
FOR THE PROVISION OF ________FILM COMMISSIONER_______________________  SERVICES 

 
 
 IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS 
THIS                DAY OF                                           ,         . 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:                                                                   By:                                            
                        Signature 
 
Dated: _________________________________  _______________________________________                                                                           

                 Print or Type Name  
 
       Dated:                                       
       
      
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
                                                                                      
_________________________________________  
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                           
Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
   
                                                                                      
County Risk Manager 
 
 
 
  
  



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 8 of 10    05/29/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND                                                                                                                     

FOR THE PROVISION OF ________ FILM COMMISSIONER___________________ SERVICES 

 TERM: 

FROM:___October 1, 2022__________TO:___June 30, 2023_______________ 

  

SCOPE OF WORK: 

 

Section I. General Duties & Responsibilities 

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of Inyo County Film Commissioner. As the Inyo County 
Film Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a 
formal relationship with the California Film Commission and ensure the County's continued 
participation in the California Film Commission's Film Liaisons In California, Statewide (FLICS) 
Program. These duties include, but are not limited to: 

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of Inyo County; 
B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner, not to exceed one week from the 

date of initial inquiry;  
C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the County and the community, 

including public and private landowners and other public agencies in the region; and 
D. Maintaining an active online presence for the Inyo County Film Commission through 

specified social media platforms and web content hosted on the County website, or a new, 
separate website (with a link on the County website). 

 
In carrying out these duties, the Contractor shall regularly and routinely publicize contact 
information for the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film 
industry and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of 
Film Commissioner services. At a minimum, this information shall be included in the local crew 
lists, production guide, and resources database that the Contractor is required to develop, 
maintain, and distribute, and publish on the website/webpage the Contractor develops, maintains, 
or operates in conjunction.  

 
In performance of these duties, the Contractor shall: 

• Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government 
practices; 

• Maintain a working knowledge of local commercial and non-profit resources available to 
provide services to film productions;  

• Stay informed on production issues in Inyo County communities and convey this 
information to producers; 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 9 of 10    05/29/2019 

• Serve as an experienced troubleshooter for producers and the communities in which they 
work; 

• Know how to secure permission to film on a variety of properties within the county; 
• Be familiar with potential filming locations within the county and associated land tenure 

and ownership; 
• Remain sensitive to the needs of all communities within the county; 
• Develop and maintain relationships with Inyo County’s five sovereign Native American 

tribes, as well as an understanding of the indigenous history of the area;  
• Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the provision 

of Film Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so 
authorized pursuant to and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements; 

• Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent 
conflicts of interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial 
interests, as well as the provision of: 

 location scouting assistance; 
 referral and liaison services with industry facilities and services; 
 liaison services to and among communities, production companies, 

government agencies, and Tribal governments; 
 augmented outreach; and, 
 timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, 

governmental entities, and the California Film Commission; 
 

• Provide film liaison and location services, including photography of locations; 
• Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the 

close of the production, including problem solving on film related matters; 
• Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including the 

facilitation of permitting; 
• Network with regional and state organizations related to filming; 

 
• Only use the title of Inyo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity 

pursuant to this agreement, and never for personal gain; and, 
• Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to 

the established polices of the County of Inyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to 
the County. 

 
In addition, the Contractor shall: 

1. Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic 
form; 

2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography 
of locations throughout all regions of the County, in written and electronic form; 

3. Develop, maintain, and distribute a current local production guide in written and 
electronic form; and, 

4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national and/or 
international media. 

 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 10 of 10    05/29/2019 

With regard to the crew lists, resources database, and production guide noted above, the 
Contractor will be required to provide it in written and electronic format acceptable to the County, 
and thereafter upload it to the Film Commission website/webpage. 
 

Section II. Online Marketing 

The Contractor shall develop and maintain interactive web content hosted on www.inyocounty.us, 
or using software approved by the Inyo County Information Services Director. The Contractor 
shall also create and maintain Inyo County Film Commission profiles and accounts on Facebook, 
Twitter, and Instagram. 
 
With regard to the content posted online, the Contractor must: 

• Adhere to the terms of use and codes of conduct established and published by the social 
media platforms. 

• Ensure content is not in conflict with County values and policies. 
• Not engage in any argumentative or controversial behavior online while identified as the 

Inyo Film Commissioner. 
 
In particular, if the web content is not hosted on the County website, the Contractor must: 

• Register Inyo County as the owner of the domain name for the website, and provide the 
County’s Information Services Director with the information necessary to maintain the 
registration; 

• Develop the website using software specified by the County’s Information Services 
Director; 

• Host the website on a server specified or approved by the County’s Information Services 
Director and to which the County’s Information Services staff has access; 

• Provide backup electronic copies of all website contest to the Information Services 
Director. 

 
The total contract amount will vary depending on whether the Contractor develops a new website, 
or creates content for the County website. Payment for website services performed by the 
Contractor is dependent on the Contractor’s adherence to these requirements. 
 

Section III. Administrative Services  

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support 
the Inyo County Film Commission, including: 

1. Maintaining physical office space, including a telephone line and payment of all utility 
costs; 

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing: 
a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box; 
b. a cellular telephone with voicemail; 
c. an email account;  
d. an Internet-based photo hosting service;  

http://www.inyocounty.us/


 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 11 of 10    05/29/2019 

e. the Film Commission website; and  
f. social media accounts on the following platforms: Facebook, Twitter, and 

Instagram. 
3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services that may be 

necessary to support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner 
4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal 

services. 
 
In addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between 
two (2) and four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. The Contractor 
is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications and paperwork to the 
California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the Inyo Film 
Commissioner. 
 
Furthermore, it is desirable during the course of this contract that the Contractor research and 
work with County staff, including Public Works, to evaluate the current County permitting system 
and recommend a more collaborative and streamlined process – possibly with the levying of fees 
to support the Inyo County Film Commission.   
 

Section IV. Reporting  

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the Inyo County Board 
of Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the 
Agreement. At a minimum, the Contractor shall: 
 

1. Within 30 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner 
Services, the Contractor shall prepare all notifications and paperwork required by the 
California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the Inyo Film 
Commissioner. These documents shall be transmitted to the Office of the County 
Administrator for review and approval in advance of their submittal to the California Film 
Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film Commission by the 
County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation will be 
processed in the same manner. 
 

2. As soon as practicable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall 
transmit to the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the 
Contractor receives from the California Film Commission. 

 
3. Within 60 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner 

Services, the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper 
and electronic form, the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources 
database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County, that the 
Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute under the terms of this 
agreement. These products will become property of the County, and must be submitted in 
an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction, and posting to a 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 12 of 10    05/29/2019 

County website. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical and 
electronic locations where these resources are available. 

 
4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month prior to the expiration 

of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall 
update the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including 
photography of locations throughout all regions of the County, and transmit this 
information to the County as required in item 3 above. 

 
5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national 

and/or international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with 
the Contractor's next monthly invoice for services. 

 
6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the 

Board of Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to 
make additional Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based 
on filming activity in the County. The Contractor will be responsible for contacting the 
Assistant Board Clerk to make arrangements to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' 
agenda. 
 

7. In addition to the two (2) Verbal Reports required in item 5 above, the Contractor shall 
prepare and present, in person, two (2) Written Reports a year to the Board of Supervisors. 
The Written Reports shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized for 
an upcoming Board of Supervisors' meeting, no later than July 31st and January 31st of 
each year during the term of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner 
Services. During the last year of the Agreement, a Final Written Report shall be prepared 
and submitted no later than December 1st in lieu of the January 31st deadline. At a 
minimum, the Written Reports must include: 
 

a. A summary of the Contractor's activities and accomplishments relative to 
carrying out the duties and responsibilities of Inyo County Film Commissioner; 
 

b. A tally, by type of production (e.g., major motion picture, minor film, 
commercial, still photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the 
Film Commissioner), since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of 
the last Written Report of: 

i. production requests received by the Contractor; 
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and, 
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the 

Contractor. 
 

c. Identification and itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in Inyo 
County since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written 
Report. For each production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best 
estimate as to: 

i. number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production; 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 13 of 10    05/29/2019 

ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the 
production, and the estimated value; 

iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, 
and the estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; 
and, 

iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or 
services to the production, and the estimated aggregate value of 
the goods or services. 

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies 
of webpages, identification of events attended, and, photos of any Contractor 
exhibits or displays at attended events; 

e. Copies of the current local crew list, current local production guide, and current 
local resources database, including photography of locations throughout all 
regions of the County; and, 

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written 
report. 

 
The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of 
actual damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the 
parties agree that, in the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements 
and associated deadlines, Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of 
Contractor's monthly fee, as established in the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision 
of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to comply, which amount will be deducted from 
amounts due the Contractor.  
 

Section V. Additional Marketing Activities 

In addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and 
its California Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, and/or 
international media, the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional 
marketing activities. Any specific, supplemental marketing activities must be identified in the 
Contractor's proposal and associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the 
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services.  
 
Separately compensated marketing activities may include but are not limited to: 
 

• Attending appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive 
presence at industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and 
collateral material (e.g., artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and 
show and/or the Association of Film Commissions International (AFCI) Locations Show. 
 

• Developing and maintaining an interactive Inyo Film Commission website, separate from 
and not hosted on www.inyocounty.us. 

 

http://www.inyocounty.us/


 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 14 of 10    05/29/2019 

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of 
Work, including but not limited to the Inyo County Film Commission website, domain name, 
artwork and hand-outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and 
local resources database (including photography of locations throughout all regions of the 
County), in written and electronic form, shall: 
 

A. Identify the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film 
industry and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the 
provision of Film Commissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail 
address for the Office of the County Administrator for this purpose. 

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo. 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 15 of 10    05/29/2019 

 ATTACHMENT B 

 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND                                                                                                                     

FOR THE PROVISION OF ____FILM COMMISSIONER______________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

  FROM:____October 1, 2022_____TO:_____June 30, 2023_________ 

 

SCHEDULE  OF  FEES: 

 

Section I. General Duties & Responsibilities, Online Marketing, Administrative Services, 
Reporting 

In consideration for the services and work identified in Section I. General Duties & 
Responsibilities, Section II. Online Marketing, Section III. Administrative Services, and Section IV. 
Reporting of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid a flat fee of: 

 $2,500 per month for the period of October 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 
 

Section II. Additional Marketing Activities 

For the specific marketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section 
V. Marketing Activities of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid the actual 
cost of the specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed the amount 
identified below for each activity: 

1. If the Film Commission web content is not hosted on the County website, and the Film 
Commissioner opts to develop and maintain an interactive Inyo County Film 
Commission website pursuant to Attachment A: Section V:  

 $3,000.00 for the development of the website and $1,000 per year for its 
maintenance. 

 
2. Attend appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive 

presence at industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and 
collateral material (e.g., artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner 
and show and/or the Association of Film Commissions International (AFCI) Locations 
Show: 

 $900.00 for the period October 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023; and 
$1,200.00 for every subsequent, full fiscal year in which the County decides 
to contract with Contractor. 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 124  
 (Independent Contractor – Term/Options ) 
 Page 16 of 10    05/29/2019 

ATTACHMENT  C 

  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 
 AND                                                                                                               
FOR THE PROVISION OF ________FILM COMMISSIONER___________________  SERVICES 

 
TERM: 

  FROM:____October 1, 2022_____TO:_____June 30, 2023_________ 

  
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

County of Inyo 
 
  

 

Clerk of the Board 
  

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED  
  
MEETING:  July 12, 2022 
  
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
  
SUBJECT:  Approval of meeting minutes 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of July 5, 2022. 
  
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us. 
  
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A 
  
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
N/A 
  
FINANCING: 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 7/7/2022 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 7/7/2022 



Southern Inyo Healthcare District
501 E. Locust St. P.O. Box 1009 Lone pine, CA 93545

Phone: 760-876-550 I Fax: 760-876-226g

0611412022

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
224N. Edwards Street
Independence, CA 93526

ItFCertEo

JUL IIM
lnw 6ounW ilomfirurlil' 

CIctkoirre aoarC

Dear Inyo County Board of Supervisors,

Southern Inyo Healthcare District respectfully request that Resolution22-7 be placed on the
agenda for the Inyo County Board of Supervisors next board of supervisors meeting. A copy of
the resolution is attached.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely

Charles Carson
President, Board of Directors

Board of Directors:

Charles Carson

President
Bruce Branson
Vice President

Carma Roper
Secretary

Mark Lacey
Treasurer

Jaque Hickman

Director



RESOLUTION NO. 22.7

A RESOLUTION OF'THE BOARD OF'DIRECTORS,On SoUTHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATION ELECTIONS WITH THE

STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION

WHEREAS, Elections Code sections 1000 and 1001 provide that elections held on the first
Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even-numbered years are statewide election dates;

WHEREAS, Elections Code sections 10400 and 10401 provide that district elections may
be consolidated with a statewide election;

WHEREAS, Elections Code section 10402.5 provides that a district election must be
consolidated with a statewide election that is to be held on the same date; and

WHEREAS, Elections Code sestion 10403 further provides that the resolution requesting
the consolidation shall be adopted and filpd, and Election Code section 10413 provides such
consolidated elections shall be conducted in apcordance with provisions of law for statewide
regularly schedule elections.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Southern Inyo Healthcare District Board
of Directors that the election of Directors of the District be consolidated with statewide regularly
scheduled elections on November 8, 2022, and each statewide regularly scheduled election
thereafter until otherwise determined by resolution of the District's Board of Directors, all being
in accordance with the applicable provisions of law; and the District shall reimburse the County
of Inyo for all the costs of conducting any election on behalf of the District as provided in Election
Code Section 10002.

Adopted, Signed and Approved this l4th day of June

Carson,
ATTEST


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Pursu

	 Open Session
	3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW
	 4A. ADDENDUM - Request Board approve Resolution No
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution No. 2022-24


	5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)
	6. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS
	7. EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION - The Board will reco
	Service Award Invite 07.12.2022

	8. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b

	 Consent Agenda
	9. Request Board declare elected those persons for ea
	Agenda Request Form
	Certification of the Results of the Canvass
	Statement of All Votes Cast Letter to Board 
	Statement of Votes Cast

	10. Request Board approve CERF Partnership Agreement
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County CERF Partnership Agreement
	Sierra Business Council Overview - Eastern Sierra CERF Region - Vision and Goals Proposed Governance Model
	Vision and Goals for the Eastern Sierra CERF Region (1).pdf
	Proposed Governance Model for the Eastern Sierra CERF Region (1).pdf


	11. Request Board approve the  AIG Nonstandardized Gov
	Agenda Request Form
	Adoption Agreement

	12. Request Board: A) approve Assignment of the Agreem
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County - Transition Letter
	Amendment Number 1 
	Wendel Rosen LLC Contract

	13. Request Board adopt findings pursuant to AB 361 th
	Agenda Request Form
	AB 361 Public Meeting Recommendations

	14. Request Board authorize the District Attorney to s
	Agenda Request Form
	CalOES Letter
	Section 1.055 of Grant Subaward Terminology and General Requirements
	Relevant Minutes of 10.26.21 Board of Supervisor Meeting

	15. Request Board ratify and approve the agreement bet
	Agenda Request Form
	Implementation Grant Agreement

	16. Request Board: A) declare Symmetric Solutions, Inc
	Agenda Request Form
	Symmetric Solutions, Inc. Contract


	 Departmental
	17. Request Board discuss and consider directing staff
	Agenda Request Form
	School Lease Map

	18. Request Board review and provide input on a propos
	Agenda Request Form
	Film Commissioner RFP for FY 22-23
	Film Commissioner Contract for FY 22-23

	19. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Correspondence - Action
	20. Southern Inyo Healthcare District - Request to con
	SIH Request for Consolidated Election


	 Comment
	21. PUBLIC COMMENT (Comments may be time-limited)

	 Board Members and Staff Reports



